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Statement Regarding Forward Looking Statements

This Form 10-K contains forward-looking statemewiithin the meaning of Section 27A of the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Sectiona2ilie Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended
(the "Exchange Act"). For this purpose, any stateisicontained herein that are not statementsrodrduor
historical fact may be deemed to be forward-loolstayements. Without limiting the foregoing, worigh
as "anticipates,” "expects," "intends," "plantilieves," "seeks," "estimates," variations of swands and
similar expressions are intended to identify suniwérd-looking statements. These statements dre no
guarantees of future performance and are subjadrtain risks, uncertainties and assumptionsateat
difficult to predict. Therefore, actual resultsutadiffer materially from those expressed or fagted in any
such forward-looking statements as a result obhgefactors, including those set forth in "Risk teas,”
"Management's Discussion and Analysis of Finar€@idition and Results of Operations," "Businessf an
elsewhere in this Form 10-K. Readers are cautiow¢do place undue reliance on these forward-logki
statements.

Although we believe that expectations reflectethmmforward-looking statements are reasonable, we
cannot guarantee future results, levels of actiggrformance or achievements. We expressly discay
obligation or undertaking to release publicly apgates or revisions to any forward-looking stateisien
contained herein to reflect any change in our etgiens with regard thereto or any change in eyents
conditions or circumstances on which any such staie is based. These forward-looking statemergbyap
only as of the date of this Form 10-K or for sta¢es incorporated by reference from our 2015 defai
proxy statement on Schedule 14A, as of the datieeoSchedule 14A.

Internet Site

Our Internet address is www.heska.com. Becaudeelieve it provides useful information in a cost-
effective manner to interested investors, via k @in our website our annual report on Form 10-kKgrtprly
reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form & amendments to those reports filed or furnished
pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchaketeare publicly available free of charge and whdve
are available as soon as reasonably practicalwéieslectronically file such material with, or fish it to, the
Securities Exchange Commission (the "SEC"). Infttran contained on our website is not a part o thi
annual report on Form 10-K.

PART I
Item 1. Business.

We develop, manufacture, market, sell and suppdrinary products. Our core focus is on the
canine and feline companion animal health markéisre/we strive to provide high value products.

Our business is composed of two reportable segm@ote Companion Animal Health and Other
Vaccines, Pharmaceuticals and Products. The Comg&nion Animal Health segment ("CCA") includes,
primarily for canine and feline use, blood testingtruments and supplies, digital imaging produstdtware
and services, and single use products and sersticdsas heartworm diagnostic tests, heartworm ptizee
products, allergy immunotherapy products and afiéegting. These products are sold directly to
veterinarians by us as well as through distributiElationships. The Other Vaccines, Pharmacestiadi
Products segment ("OVP") includes private labekiree and pharmaceutical production, primarily fattle
but also for other animals including small mammaid. OVP products are sold by third parties untierd
party labels. Please refer to Note 10 of our a&dditonsolidated financial statements filed herefath
financial information about each of our segments.



Our principal executive offices are located at 3R&@ky Mountain Avenue, Loveland, Colorado
80538, our telephone number is (970) 493-7272 amdnbternet address is www.heska.com. We origynall
incorporated in California in 1988, and we subseatjyencorporated in Delaware in 1997.

Background

We were founded as Paravax, Inc. in 1988 and cdaeduesearch on vaccines to prevent infections
by parasites. We changed our name to Heska Cdiqoia 1995, completed our initial public offeritng
1997 and continued to be a research and develogoarged company, devoting substantial resourcéseto
research and development of innovative productthicompanion animal health market. In 2001 @GR2
we took steps to lower our expense base, largehtennal research and development. We subseguentl
continued to concentrate our efforts on operatimgrovements, such as enhancing the effectivenessrof
sales and marketing efforts and pursuing costieffaes, as well as seeking new product opporgsitiith
third parties. We acquired a 54.6% interest int€Cod/eterinary USA, LLC in February 2013 (the
"Acquisition"), which marked our entry into the eehary imaging market. In June 2013, we soldadert
non-core assets useful for the production of bottirte and feline vaccines to Elanco Animal Health
("Elanco"), a division of Eli Lilly and Company.

Core Companion Animal Health Segment

We presently sell a variety of companion animalthgaroducts and services, among the most
significant of which are the following:

Veterinary Blood Testing and Other Non-Imaging Instments

We offer a line of veterinary blood testing andestimstruments, some of which are described below.
We also market and sell consumable supplies f@etiestruments. Our line of veterinary instruments
includes the following:

« Blood Chemistry. The Element D@ Veterinary Chemistry Analyzer (the "Element DGan
easy-to-use, robust system that uses dry slideoday for blood chemistry and electrolyte
analysis and has the ability to run 22 tests aha with a single blood sample. Test slides are
available as both pre-packaged panels as welldagdoal slides. The Element DC is faster and
has an enhanced user interface compared to timermestt it replaced, the DRI-CHEM 4000
Veterinary Chemistry Analyzer (the "DRI-CHEM 4000"Yhe DRI-CHEM 7000 Veterinary
Chemistry Analyzer (the "DRI-CHEM 7000") is a cdexpentary chemistry offering, co-
branded with FUJIFILM Corporation ("FUJIFILM"), withigher throughput, multiple patient
staging and a "STAT" feature which provides emecgesample flexibility in critical cases.
The Element DC, DRI-CHEM 7000 and DRI-CHEM 4000uillize the same test slides. We
are supplied with the Element DC, the DRI-CHEM 7@0@ affiliated test slides and supplies
under a contractual agreement with FUJIFILM.

« Hematology. The Element H%.5 Hematology Analyzer (the "HT5") is a true 5-plagtnatology
analyzer which uses laser, impedance and colorrtethnologies to measure key parameters
such as white blood cell count, red blood cell ¢pplatelet count and hemoglobin levels in
animals. The HT5 can generate results in lessahmmute with 15ul of sample. We began to
ship HT5 units in January 2015. We are suppligtt tie HT5 and affiliated reagents and
supplies under a contractual agreement with Shektnedray Bio-Medical Electronics Co.,

Ltd. ("Mindray"). The HEMATRUE Veterinary Hematajg Analyzer (the "HEMATRUE") is
an easy-to-use and reliable 3-part hematology béoadyzer that we continue to offer to our
customers. In addition, we continue to service gupport a previous hematology instrument,
the HESKA CBC-DIFF Veterinary Hematology Systene(tiBC"). We are supplied new
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HEMATRUE instruments and affiliated reagents anpigdies for the HEMATRUE and the
CBC under a contractual agreement with Boule Médi&("'Boule™).

« Blood Gases and Electrolytes. The Element POC™ Blood Gas & Electrolyte Analyzer
("EPOC") is a handheld, wireless analyzer whicliveée$ rapid blood gas, electrolyte,
metabolite, and basic blood chemistry testing. ER€atures test cards with room temperature
storage which can offer results with less than {l00f sample as well as WiFi and Bluetooth
connectivity. We began to ship EPOC units to austie in October 2013. EPOC and affiliated
consumables and supplies are supplied to us uncterteactual agreement with Alere North
America, LLC, a unit of Alere Inc.

o IV Pumps. The VET/IV 2.2 infusion pump is a compact, afforlgaly pump that allows
veterinarians to easily provide regulated infusibfiuids, drugs or nutritional products for their
patients.

Veterinary Imaging Instruments and Services

On February 24, 2013, we acquired a 54.6% intémeSuattro Veterinary USA, LLC, which was
subsequently renamed Heska Imaging US, LLC ("Hésleaying™) and operates only in the United States.
This transaction marked our entry into the vetesimaaging market. Heska Imaging's offerings iis trea
include:

Digital Radiography Solutions. Our digital radiography solutions are marketed sold under the
"Cuattro" brand name. We sell hardware includirggtal radiography detectors, acquisition worksiati
equipment, positioning aides such as tunnels ddgaviewing computers and other accessories alathg
embedded software and support, data hosting ared séhvices. The CloudDR solution combines flat
panel digital radiography with web-based imageaser The Cloudbarfik archive is an automatic, secure,
web-based image storage solution designed to auerfvith the software we sell. ViewCldlids a PACS
(Picture Archival and Communications System) fanu@lbank for web or local viewing, reporting, plamgi
and email sharing of studies on internet deviceduding personal computers, Mac desktop and plertab
systems, tablet devices, iPdlevices and smartphones. SupportCi¥ud a support package including call
center voice and remote diagnostics, recovery #mer gervices, such as the provision of warrangted
loaner units, to support CloudDR, Cloudbank andnoud.

We also sell mobile digital radiography productimarily for equine use. The Und'is a full
powered, seamlessly integrated, portable digi#ibgraphy generator with an embedded detector and
touchscreen computer based upon a patented ddsiyratiro, LLC. The Slate'™ series features an
Automatic Exposure Detection technology detectoui®e with an existing generator and which
communicates wirelessly with a mobile, case-basedtosunlight readable display, including multiob
software and the ability to natively link to Diditanaging and Communication in Medicine, or DICOM,
servers of all types as well as Cloudbank. Sl8f&émes in a 20" model and a 12" model, both of whieh
handheld, touchscreen tablets with embedded wiel@mmunication, battery-powered and line-powered
capabilities, and image acquisition and commurocafiinctions.

Cuattro, LLC provides us with the hardware, sofevand support, data hosting and other services for
our digital radiography solutions under exclusieatcactual arrangements in the United States.



Ultrasound Systems. Our ultrasound products, including affiliated Ipes and peripherals, are
provided to us under an exclusive agreement witotesUSA ("Esaote"). We sell several different
ultrasound products with varying features and @poading price points, all under Esaote's tradeasamn
logos. These offerings include the MyLab familyhigh performance systems and probes, for use in
abdominal, cardiac and small parts applicatiorcompanion animal and equine patients as well & oth
species. The ultrasound products we sell genesaliynlessly integrate with our Cloudbank and Viewal
offerings discussed above for image storing andivig.

Point-of-Care Heartworm Diagnostic Tests

Heartworm infections of dogs and cats are causdtidoparasit®irofilariaimmitis. This parasitic
worm is transmitted in larval form to dogs and ¢atsugh the bite of an infected mosquito. Lardaeelop
into adult worms that live in the pulmonary arterad heart of the host, where they can causeauserio
cardiovascular, pulmonary, liver and kidney disea®er canine and feline heartworm diagnostic teses
monoclonal antibodies or a recombinant heartwortigan, respectively, to detect heartworm antigens o
antibodies circulating in the blood of an infectadmal.

We currently market and sell heartworm diagnoststg for both dogs and cats. SOLO STEP CH for
dogs and SOLO STEP FH for cats are available intpgiicare, single use formats that can be used by
veterinarians on site. We also offer SOLO STEPRz#th Test Strips, a rapid and simple point-of-care
antigen detection test for dogs that allows vesgiams in larger practices to run multiple samplethe same
time. We obtain SOLO STEP CH, SOLO STEP FH and S@I EP Batch Test Strips under a contractual
agreement with Quidel Corporation ("Quidel").

Heartworm Preventive Products

We have an agreement with Merck Animal Health, i efiMerck & Co., Inc., granting Merck
Animal Health the exclusive distribution and marnkgtrights for our canine heartworm prevention prig
TRI-HEART Plus Chewable Tablets, ultimately soldtahrough veterinarians in the United States and
Canada. TRI-HEART Plus Chewable Tablets (ivernmdagirantel) are indicated for use as a monthly
preventive treatment of canine heartworm infectiod for treatment and control of ascarid and hoskwo
infections. We manufacture TRI-HEART Plus Chewaldlets at our Des Moines, lowa production
facility.

Allergy Products and Services

Allergy is common in companion animals, and it basn estimated to affect approximately 10% to
15% of dogs. Clinical symptoms of allergy are &hl&, but are often manifested as persistent aimlise
skin disease in dogs and cats. Clinical manageofaitergic disease is problematic, as there daege
number of allergens that may give rise to theselitioms. Although skin testing is often regardedfze
most accurate diagnostic procedure, such testbeaainful, subjective and inconvenient. The difeness
of the immunotherapy that is prescribed to trelargic disease is inherently limited by inaccuradiethe
diagnostic process.

Our ALLERCEPT Definitive Allergen Panels provideettmost accurate determination of which we
are aware of the specific allergens to which amahisuch as a dog, cat or horse, is reacting. pahels use
a highly specific recombinant version of the natlgg receptor to test the serum of potentiallgajlc
animals for IgE directed against a panel of knoergens. A typical test panel consists primaoifyarious
pollen, grass, mold, insect and mite allergense {EBt results serve as the basis for prescription
ALLERCEPT Therapy Shots and ALLERCEPT Therapy Droye operate veterinary laboratories in
Loveland, Colorado and Fribourg, Switzerland whbolth offer blood testing using our ALLERCEPT
Definitive Allergen Panels.



We sell kits to conduct blood testing using our ARCEPT Definitive Allergen Panels to third-
party veterinary diagnostic laboratories outsidéhefUnited States. We also sell products to scieethe
presence of allergen-specific IgE to these custemare sell kits to conduct preliminary blood tegtusing
products based on our ALLERCEPT Definitive Allergeanels as well as a similar test requiring less
technical sophistication, our E-SCREEN Test. Angnasting positive for allergen-specific IgE usthgse
screening tests are candidates for further evaluaising our ALLERCEPT Definitive Allergen Panels.

Veterinarians who use our ALLERCEPT Definitive Atfen Panels often purchase our
ALLERCEPT Therapy Shots or ALLERCEPT Therapy Drégsthose animals with positive test results.
These prescription immunotherapy treatment setfoamaulated specifically for each allergic animabla
contain only the allergens to which the animal $igsificant levels of IgE antibodies. The prestidp
formulations are administered in a series of impad, with doses increasing over several months, to
ameliorate the allergic condition of the animahmunotherapy is generally continued for an exterithae.
Immunotherapy delivered by injection is referrecsosubcutaneous immunotherapy. We offer cargfiaef
and equine subcutaneous immunotherapy treatmedtigio We have licensed intellectual propertyafor
proprietary, sublingual (administered under theyta) therapy treatment for pets suffering withrgiles —
now known as ALLERCEPT Therapy Drops. We belieue ALLERCEPT Therapy Drops offer a
convenient alternative to subcutaneous injectioergby enhancing the likelihood of pet owner coampie.

Other Core Companion Animal Health Sngle Use Products. We also sell other products in our Core
Companion Animal Health segment. For example, ellelEsR.D. Reagent Packs used to detect
microalbuminuria, the most sensitive indicatorefal damage, to VCA Antech, Inc. for use in itsevieiary
diagnostic laboratories.

Other Vaccines, Pharmaceuticals and Products Segmien

We developed a line of bovine vaccines that aenbed by the United States Department of
Agriculture ("USDA"). Historically, the largeststributor of these vaccines was Agri Laboratorigd,
("AgriLabs"), who sold these vaccines primarily enthe Titaniurl and MasterGuafd brands. In
November 2013, AgriLabs assigned the long-termeagent with us related to these vaccines to, and the
agreement was assumed by, Eli Lilly and Companii Cily") acting through Elanco.

We manufacture biological and pharmaceutical prtsdfer a number of other animal health
companies. We manufacture products for animalsrdtian cattle including horses and small mammals.
Our offerings range from providing complete turnleeyvices which include research, licensing, prodoc
labeling and packaging of products to providing ang of these services as needed by our customerslia
as validation support and distribution services.

Marketing, Sales and Customer Support

We estimate that there are approximately 53,00€rwetrians in the United States whose practices
are devoted principally to small animal medicifidese veterinarians practice in approximately 22,00
clinics in the United States. In 2014, our produegere sold to approximately 13,000 such clinicgen
United States. Veterinarians may obtain our pregldicectly from us or indirectly through other&ll our
Core Companion Animal Health products ultimately sold primarily to or through veterinarians. lanmg
cases, veterinarians will markup their costs toetheé user. The acceptance of our products byinatens
is critical to our success.

We currently market our Core Companion Animal Hegltoducts in the United States to

veterinarians through an outside field organizatetelephone sales force, independent third-party
distributors, as well as through trade shows aimd pdvertising and through other distribution tiglaships,
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such as Merck Animal Health in the case of our tag@m preventive. Our outside field organization
currently consists of 36 individuals in varioustpaof the United States. Our inside sales foreesists of 18
persons currently.

We have a staff dedicated to customer and produypgtast in our Core Companion Animal Health
segment including veterinarians, technical supgpecialists and service technicians. Individuasifour
product development group may also be used aar@sin responding to certain product inquiries.

Internationally, we market our Core Companion Ariiealth products to veterinarians primarily
through third-party veterinary diagnostic laborasyindependent third-party distributors and Nasakgro
K.K., Tokyo ("Novartis Japan"). These entitiesitgly provide customer support. Novartis Japan
exclusively markets and distributes SOLO STEP CbBaipan.

All OVP products are marketed and sold by thirdiparunder third-party labels.

We grant third parties rights to our intellectusbgerty as well as our products, with our
compensation often taking the form of royalties/andilestone payments.

Manufacturing

The majority of our revenue is from proprietary guots manufactured by third parties. Third parties
manufacture our veterinary instruments, includifiji@ed consumables and supplies, as well asrothe
products including key components of our heartwpuoimt-of-care diagnostic tests. Our chemistry
instruments and affiliated supplies are manufadtureder contract with FUJIFILM. Our hematology
instruments and affiliated supplies are manufactuireder contracts with Mindray and Boule. Our blgas
and electrolyte analyzers and affiliated suppliessaipplied under a contract with Alere North Aroayi
LLC. Our digital radiography products are suppligler contract with Cuattro, LLC, which typicabiyys
its hardware products and components from thirtlggar Our ultrasound products are supplied under a
contract with Esaote USA. Key components of oartveorm point-of-care diagnostic tests are
manufactured under a contract with Quidel. We rfacture and supply Quidel with certain critical raw
materials and perform the final packaging operatimn these products. Our facility in Des Moinkesya is a
USDA, Food and Drug Administration ("FDA"), and yr&nforcement Agency ("DEA") licensed biological
and pharmaceutical manufacturing facility. Thisility currently has the capacity to manufacturerentihan
50 million doses of vaccine each year. We exgettwe will, for the foreseeable future, manufagtonost
or all of our pharmaceutical and biological produat this facility, as well as most or all of oacombinant
proteins and other proprietary reagents for ougraiatic tests. We currently manufacture our canine
heartworm prevention product, our allergy treatmm@otucts and all our OVP segment products at this
facility. Our OVP segment's customers purchasdymts in both finished and bulk format, and we qenf
all phases of manufacturing, including growth ad Httive bacterial and viral agents, sterile fijlin
lyophilization and packaging at this facility. Wenufacture our various allergy products at our Meses
facility, our Loveland facility and our Fribourgdiity. We believe the raw materials for produsts
manufacture are available from more than one source

Product Development
We are committed to providing innovative productstidress health needs of companion animals.
We may obtain such products from external soudgynal collaboration or internal research and
development.
We are committed to identifying external producporiunities and creating business and technical

collaborations that lead to high value veterinagdpicts. We believe that our active participation
scientific networks and our reputation for invegtin research enhances our ability to acquire pater
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product opportunities. We have collaborated, abehid to continue to do so, with a number of corigmn
and universities. Examples of such collaboratiookide:

«  Quidel for the development of SOLO STEP CH Casse8&L0O STEP CH Batch Test Strips
and SOLO STEP FH Cassettes;

«  Boule for the development of veterinary applicasidor the HEMATRUE Veterinary
Hematology Analyzer and associated reagents; and

«  FUJIFILM for the development of veterinary applioat for the Element DC Veterinary
Chemistry Analyzer and associated slides and segpli

Internal research and development is managed aseliy-case basis. We employ individuals with
microbiology, immunology, genetics, biochemistryglecular biology, parasitology as well as vetennar
expertise and will form multidisciplinary product¢sociated teams as appropriate. We incurred egperfis
$1.0 million, $1.5 million and $1.4 million in thears ended December 31, 2012, 2013 and 2014,
respectively, in support of our research and depratmt activities.

Intellectual Property

We believe that patents, trademarks, copyrightsodimer proprietary rights are important to our
business. We also rely upon trade secrets, knaw-bontinuing technological innovations and licegsi
opportunities to develop and maintain our compegiposition. The proprietary technologies of oMFO
segment are primarily protected through trade s@ecogection of, for example, our manufacturinggesses
in this area.

We actively seek patent protection both in the &thiBtates and abroad. Our issued and pending
patent portfolios primarily relate to heartworm troh flea control, allergy, infectious disease siaes,
diagnostic and detection tests, immunomodulatosttumentation, nutrition, pain control and vaccine
delivery technologies. As of December 31, 2014pweed, co-owned or had rights to 162 issued U.S.
patents expiring at various dates from January 20\bay 2028 and had no pending U.S. patent
applications. Our corresponding foreign patentfpbio as of December 31, 2014 included 139 issued
patents and 1 pending application in various far@guntries expiring at various dates from OctdiH5 to
March 2026.

We also have obtained exclusive and non-exclugieases for numerous other patents held by
academic institutions and for profit companies.

Seasonality

In 2013 and 2014, our fourth quarter results wageificantly stronger than those for any other
quarter. We expect this trend to continue in thare, primarily as this is our understanding & kistorical
results at Heska Imaging and other digital imadinginesses.

Government Regulation

Although the majority of our revenue is from théesaf unregulated items, many of our products or
products that we may develop are, or may be, sutgesxtensive regulation by governmental authesitn
the United States, including the USDA and the FBrd by similar agencies in other countries. These
regulations govern, among other things, the dewveéoy, testing, manufacturing, labeling, storage; pr
market approval, advertising, promotion, sale asttidution of our products. Satisfaction of these
requirements can take several years to achievéhartiine needed to satisfy them may vary substgntia
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based on the type, complexity and novelty of thadpct. Any product that we develop must receive al
relevant regulatory approval or clearances, if iegl) before it may be marketed in a particulamtou The
following summarizes the major U.S. government agemthat regulate animal health products:

« USDA. Vaccines and certain single use, point-of-céaigribstics are considered veterinary
biologics and are therefore regulated by the Cdoteveterinary Biologics, or CVB, of the
USDA. Industry data indicate that it takes appmadely four years and in excess of $1.0
million to license a conventional vaccine for anisnfiaom basic research through licensing. In
contrast to vaccines, single use, point-of-cargratics can typically be licensed by the USDA
in about two years, at considerably less cost. él@n vaccines or diagnostics that use
innovative materials, such as those resulting freecombinant DNA technology, usually require
additional time to license. The USDA licensinggass involves the submission of several data
packages. These packages include information antthe product will be manufactured,
information on the efficacy and safety of the prctda laboratory and target animal studies and
information on performance of the product in fietthditions.

« FDA. Pharmaceutical products, which typically incleyathetic compounds, are approved and
monitored by the Center for Veterinary Medicindle# FDA. Under the Federal Food, Drug
and Cosmetic Act, the same statutory standard@@ &pproval applies to both human and
animal drugs: demonstrated safety, efficacy andptiamce with FDA manufacturing standards.
However, unlike human drugs, neither preclinicatigts nor a sequential phase system of
studies are required. Rather, for animal drugsliss for safety and efficacy may be conducted
immediately in the species for which the drug teiiled. Thus, there is no required phased
evaluation of drug performance, and the CenteWgerinary Medicine will review data at
appropriate times in the drug development proc&é® process can be costly and time
consuming, requiring up to $100 million and seweteh years to sell an animal drug in the
market. In addition, the time and cost for deviggompanion animal drugs may be
significantly less than for drugs for livestock rmais, which generally have enhanced standards
designed to ensure safety in the food chain.

« EPA. Products that are applied topically to animaltogremises to control external parasites
are regulated by the Environmental Protection Ageac EPA.

After we have received regulatory licensing or appt for our products, numerous regulatory
requirements typically apply. Among the conditidoscertain regulatory approvals is the requiretibat
our manufacturing facilities or those of our thpdrty manufacturers conform to current Good Manufaty
Practices or other manufacturing regulations, winclude requirements relating to quality contnotla
guality assurance as well as maintenance of reardslocumentation. The USDA, FDA and foreign
regulatory authorities strictly enforce manufaatgrregulatory requirements through periodic indpest
and/or reports.

A number of our animal health products are notlegd. For example, certain products such as our
ALLERCEPT panels are not regulated by either th®RA®r FDA. Similarly, none of our veterinary
instruments requires regulatory approval to be etadk and sold in the United States.

We have pursued regulatory approval outside théedrBtates based on market demographics of
foreign countries. For marketing outside the Whi&ates, we are subject to foreign regulatoryirements
governing regulatory licensing and approval for gnahour products. Licensing and approval by
comparable regulatory authorities of foreign coi@stmust be obtained before we can market prodhuicts
those countries. Product licensing approval preegand requirements vary from country to coumugythe
time required for such approvals may differ subtiitly from that required in the United States. ‘d&not
be certain that approval of any of our productsrie country will result in approvals in any otheuntry.
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To date, we or our distributors have sought reguyaaipproval for certain of our products in Canaslaich
is governed by the Canadian Center for Veterinagyogics, or CCVB; in Japan, which is governed by t
Japanese Ministry of Agriculture, Forestry and Ergds, or MAFF; in Australia, which is governedtbg
Australian Department of Agriculture, Fisheries &wmaestry, or ADAFF; in South Africa, which is ganed
by the Republic of South Africa Department of Agitare, or RSADA; and in certain other countries
requiring such approval.

Core Companion Animal Health products previousgcdssed which have received regulatory
approval in the United States and/or elsewhersarenarized below.

Products Country Regulated Agency Status
ALLERCEPT Allergy Treatment Sets United States  Yes USDA Licensed
SOLO STEP CH United States Yes USDA Licensed
EU No-in most countries
Canada Yes CCcvB Licensed
Japan Yes MAFF Licensed
Australia Yes ADAFF Licensed
SOLO STEP CH Batch Test Strips United State¥es USDA Licensed
Canada Yes CCvB Licensed
SOLO STEP FH United States Yes USDA Licensed
Canada Yes CCvB Licensed
Australia Yes ADAFF Licensed
TRI-HEART Plus Heartworm Preventive United State¥es FDA Licensed
Japan Yes MAFF Licensed
South Korea Yes NVRQS Licensed
Competition

Our market is intensely competitive. Our compesiiaclude independent animal health companies
and major pharmaceutical companies that have areath divisions. We also compete with indepehden
third-party distributors, including distributors wisell products under their own private labelsthim point-
of-care diagnostic testing market, our major compestinclude IDEXX Laboratories, Inc. ("IDEXX"),
Abaxis, Inc. ("Abaxis") and Synbiotics Corporati@®ynbiotics"), a unit of Zoetis Inc. ("Zoetis")The
products manufactured by our OVP segment for satbild parties compete with similar products offe by
a number of other companies, some of which havstaotally greater financial, technical, reseanctl a
other resources than us and may have more esitlsarketing, sales, distribution and service
organizations than our OVP segment's customersap@nies with a significant presence in the aninealth
market such as Bayer AG, CEVA Santé Animale, Hlyl. Merck & Co., Inc. ("Merck"), sanofi-aventis,
Vétoquinol S.A., Virbac S.A. and Zoetis may be nedirkg or developing products that compete with our
products or would compete with them if successfdéyeloped. These and other competitors and pakent
competitors may have substantially greater findntdahnical, research and other resources andrlamgpre
established marketing, sales, distribution andiserrganizations than we do. Our competitors ofésr
broader product lines and have greater name reomgtinan we do.

Environmental Regulation

In connection with our product development actdgtand manufacturing of our biological,
pharmaceutical and diagnostic and detection preduat are subject to federal, state and local laviss,
regulations and policies governing the use, gelmgratnanufacture, storage, handling and disposeédhin
materials, biological specimens and wastes. Alghoue believe that we have complied with these Jlaws
regulations and policies in all material respecis bave not been required to take any significatib@a to
correct any noncompliance, we may be requireddorisignificant costs to comply with environmerdat
health and safety regulations in the future. Aliijo we believe that our safety procedures for hagdind
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disposing of such materials comply with the staddgrescribed by state and federal regulationg;jshef
accidental contamination or injury from these matercannot be eliminated. In the event of such an
accident, we could be held liable for any damabasresult and any such liability could exceed our
resources.

Employees

As of December 31, 2014, we and our subsidiarigd@rad 301 people, of whom 128 were focused
in production and technical and logistical servjéesluding instrumentation service, 116 in satearketing
and customer support, 51 in general and adminiigraervices, such as finance, and 6 in product
development. We believe that our ability to attieed retain skilled personnel is critical to ouceess.

None of our employees is covered by a collectivgdiaing agreement, and we believe our employee
relations are good.

Where You Can Find Additional Information

You may review a copy of this annual report on FAOG¥K, including exhibits and any schedule filed
therewith, and obtain copies of such materialgesqribed rates, at the Securities and Exchange
Commission's Public Reference Room in Room 1580,FL8treet, NE, Washington, D.C. 20549-0102. You
may obtain information on the operation of the RuBkeference Room by calling the Securities and
Exchange Commission at 1-800-SEC-0330. The Sexuuiahd Exchange Commission maintains a website
(http://www.sec.gov) that contains reports, prorg information statements and other informatiorarding
registrants, such as Heska Corporation, that liéetenically with the Securities and Exchange Cassion.

Executive Officers of the Registrant

Our executive officers and their ages as of Mag2P15 are as follows:

Name Age Position

Kevin S. Wilson 43 Chief Executive Officer and Rdesit

Robert B. Grieve, Ph.D. 63 Executive Chair of ttuafsl

Jason A. Napolitano 46 Executive Vice Presidentefdfinancial Officer and
Secretary

Michael J. McGinley, Ph.D. 54 President, Biologic& Pharmaceuticals

Steven M. Eyl 49 Executive Vice President, ComnarCiperations

Nancy Wisnewski, Ph.D. 52 Executive Vice Presidenbduct Development and
Customer Support

Steven M. Asakowicz 49 Executive Vice Presidentnfanion Animal Health
Sales

Rodney A. Lippincott 41 Executive Vice Presidenbn@anion Animal Health
Sales

Kevin S. Wilson was appointed President and Chief Executive Qffiffective March 31, 2014. He
previously served as our President and Chief Oper&fficer from February 2013. Mr. Wilson became
member of our Board of Directors in May 2014. Mifilson is a founder, member and officer of Cuattro,
LLC. Since 2008, he has been involved in develppéthnologies for radiographic imaging with Cuattr
LLC and as a founder of Cuattro Software, LLC, @watedical, LLC and Cuattro Veterinary, LLC. Mr.
Wilson served on the board of various private, poofit, and educational organizations from 2002@4.1.
He was a founder of Sound Technologies, Inc., grdiatic imaging company, in 1996. After Sound
Technologies, Inc. was sold to VCA Antech, Inc2004, Mr. Wilson served as Chief Strategy Officar f
VCA Antech, Inc. until 2006. Mr. Wilson attendeddslleback College.
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Robert B. Grieve, Ph.D., one of our founders, currently serves as Exeeuikair of the Board.
Dr. Grieve was named Executive Chair effective Ma&&, 2014, having previously served as Chief
Executive Officer from January 1999. He was na@kdirman of the Board effective May 2000 having
previously served as Vice Chairman from March 19B2. Grieve also served as Chief Scientific Office
from December 1994 to January 1999 and Vice Pmesiesearch and Development, from March 1992 to
December 1994. He has been a member of our Bé&ulextors since 1990. He holds a Ph.D. degrem fr
the University of Florida and M.S. and B.S. degreem the University of Wyoming.

Jason A. Napolitano was appointed Executive Vice President and Chirgdri€ial Officer in May
2002. He was appointed our Secretary in Februa®@ 2having previously served as our Secretary from
May 2002 to December 2006. Prior to joining usrfally, he was a financial consultant. From 1990Q61,
Mr. Napolitano held various positions at CreditsSei First Boston, an investment bank, includingVic
President in health care investment banking anddior in mergers and acquisitions. He holds a @efree
from Yale University.

Michae J. McGinley, Ph.D. was appointed President, Biologicals & Pharmacalgim February
2013. He previously served as President and @pefating Officer from January 2009 to February201
Vice President, Global Operations from April thraugecember 2008, Vice President, Operations and
Technical Affairs and General Manager, Heska Dembkfrom January 2002 to April 2008 and in other
positions beginning in June 1997. Prior to joinihg Company, Dr. McGinley held positions with Baye
Animal Health and Fort Dodge Laboratories. He hdtth.D. and M.S. degrees in Immunobiology from lowa
State University and successfully completed theahded Management Program at the Harvard Business
School in 2008.

Seven M. Eyl has served as our Executive Vice President, Comat@perations since May 2013.
Mr. Eyl was a principal of Eyl Business Servicespasulting firm, from January 2012 to May 2013e \Was
President of Sound Technologies, Inc. ("Sound'infRD00 to 2011, including after Sound's acquisitign
VCA Antech, Inc. in 2004. Mr. Eyl has an extendbaekground in medical technology sales. He is a
graduate of Indiana University.

Nancy Wisnewski, Ph.D. was appointed Executive Vice President, Produeeld@ment and
Customer Support in April 2011. She served as Piasident, Product Development and Technical
Customer Service from December 2006 to April 20Edom January 2006 to November 2006,

Dr. Wisnewski was Vice President, Research and Dpueent. Dr. Wisnewski held various positions in
Heska's Research and Development organization bat®@93 and 2005. She holds a Ph.D. in
Parasitology/Biochemistry from the University of tmDame and a B.S. in Biology from Lafayette Cgdle

Seven M. Asakowicz was appointed Executive Vice President, CompaAitimal Health Sales in
February 2013. From July 2011 to February 2013ydmeemployed by Cuattro, LLC as Vice President,
Sales — US Veterinary and sold exclusively on HedfaCuattro Veterinary USA, LLC. Mr. Asakowicz
previously worked as Sales Director for Sound Tetdgies, Inc. ("Sound") from November 2002 to June
2011, including after Sound was acquired by VCAe&&Ht, Inc. in 2004. Prior to entering the animalitie
market, Mr. Asakowicz spent 3.5 years employed mttfsMicro Software, Inc. as a Sales Manager and
spent 7.5 years employed by AirTouch Cellular aadTrel Cellular (currently Verizon Wireless) as a
Corporate Account Executive. Mr. Asakowicz holdB.A. degree from San Diego State University.

Rodney A. Lippincott was appointed Executive Vice President, CompaAimal Health Sales in
February 2013. From July 2011 to February 2013ydeemployed by Cuattro, LLC as Vice President,
Sales — US Veterinary and sold exclusively on HedfaCuattro Veterinary USA, LLC. Mr. Lippincottetd
various positions including Sales Director for Sodmechnologies, Inc., a unit of VCA Antech, Inecgrh
September 2007 to June 2011. Prior to enteringnimeal health market, Mr. Lippincott spent 13.%ange
employed by Smith Micro Software, Inc. and heldipmss including US and International Sales Manager
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and Director of Marketing. Mr. Lippincott attend8dddleback College and completed the Executive
Education Marketing Management Program at Starifongtersity, Graduate School of Business.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

Our future operating results may vary substanti@tyn period to period due to a number of factors,
many of which are beyond our control. The follogvifiscussion highlights some of these factors had t
possible impact of these factors on future resfltsperations. The risks and uncertainties desdrlielow
are not the only ones we face. Additional risksimcertainties not presently known to us or thatieem to
be currently immaterial also may impair our buseegerations. If any of the following factors adty
occur, our business, financial condition or resofteperations could be harmed. In that caseptioe of our
Public Common Stock could decline and you couldeeigmce losses on your investment.

Our February 2013 acquisition of a 54.6% majoritgterest in Cuattro Veterinary USA, LLC,
which has been renamed Heska Imaging US, LLC, coblkel detrimental to the interests of our
shareholders due to related puts, calls or otheowisions, or for other reasons.

Under the Amended and Restated Operating Agreeafidteska Imaging US, LLC (the "Operating
Agreement"), should Heska Imaging meet certaingoerdnce criteria, the unit holders of the 45.4%le$ka
Imaging we do not own (the "Imaging Minority") hlasen granted a put option to sell us some or ahef
Imaging Minority's position in Heska Imaging followg the audit of our financial statements for 202316
and 2017. Based on Heska Imaging's current owipepsisition, this put option could require us tdivkr
either up to $17.0 million following calendar ye4r15, $17.0 million following calendar year 2016$86.9
million following calendar year 2017 - as well &2 of Heska Imaging's cash (any applicable payriment
aggregate to be defined as the "Put Payment")doirecthe outstanding minority interest in Heskading.
While we have the right to deliver up to 55% of gdemsideration in our Public Common Stock undetaoer
circumstances, such stock is to be valued bas@®%nof market value (the "Delivery Stock Value"das
limited to approximately 650 thousand shares inaasge. If the Delivery Stock Value is less thamriarket
value of our Public Common Stock at the time of Aleguisition, we do not have the right to deliveya
Public Common Stock as consideration. Cash reduingler any Put Payment could put a significairstr
on our financial position or require us to raisditidnal capital. There is no guarantee that aoldit capital
will be available in such a circumstance on reabtengerms, if at all. We may be unable to obtadbtd
financing, the public markets may be unreceptivedoity financing and we may not be able to obtain
financing from other alternative sources, suchragafe equity. Any debt financing, if availableagninclude
restrictive covenants and high interest rates agdeguity financing would likely be dilutive to sikholders
in this scenario. If additional funds are requisedl are not available, it would likely have a mateadverse
effect on our business, financial condition and&hility to continue as a going concern.

Under the Operating Agreement, should Heska Imagjiegt certain performance criteria, and the
Imaging Minority fail to exercise an applicable patsell us all of the Imaging Minority's positionHeska
Imaging following the audit of our financial statents for 2015, 2016 and 2017, we would have aogsibn
to purchase all, but not less than all, of the limadJinority's position in Heska Imaging. Basedtdeska
Imaging's current ownership position, exercising tall option could require us to deliver up to
$19.6 million following calendar year 2015, $19.8lion following calendar year 2016 or $42.4 millio
following calendar year 2017 - as well as 25% o$kéelmaging's cash (any applicable payment in agdee
to be defined as the "Call Payment") to acquireotitistanding minority interest in Heska Imaginghil& we
have the right to deliver up to 55% of the consatien in our Public Common Stock under certain
circumstances, such stock is to be valued bas@d%nof market value (the "Delivery Stock Value"dds
limited to approximately 650 thousand shares inaasge. If the Delivery Stock Value is less thamriarket
value of our stock at the time of the Acquisitiare do not have the right to deliver any Public Camm

-12-



Stock as consideration. If we believe it is ddd@ao exercise any one of these calls, cash redjuinder the
Call Payment could put a significant strain on fimancial position or require us to raise additiorepital.
There is no guarantee that additional capital bellavailable in such a circumstance on reasonebiest if at
all. If we believe it is desirable to exercise angh call, determine we are unable to economidialiynce
the Call Payment and do not exercise the callrasut, we could be subject to a more expensive Put
Payment less than a year in the future. In tliuoistance, unless there is a significant changeiin
financial position or market conditions, such a Payment could have a material adverse effect on ou
business, financial condition and our ability tmtioue as a going concern.

Under and as defined in the Operating Agreemepyldhwe undergo a change in control prior to the
end of 2017, the Imaging Minority will be entitléal sell their Heska Imaging units to us for casthat
highest call value they otherwise could have olet@ifthe "Change in Control Payment”). This will$s2.4
million until at least the end of 2015 and couldasehigh as $42.4 million beyond 2015 if Heska limgg
meets certain minimum performance criteria. Thar@e in Control Payment may materially decrease the
interest of third parties in acquiring the Companya majority of the Company's shares, which could
otherwise have occurred at a significant premiurthéoCompany's then current market price for theebe
of some or all of our shareholders. This could enstme investors less likely to buy and hold ooelst

Under the terms of the Operating Agreement, Heslaging will be managed by a three-person
board of managers, two of which are to be appoibjedeska Corporation and one of which is to be
appointed by Kevin S. Wilson, a founder of Heskadimng who has also been Heska Corporation's Chief
Executive Officer and President since March 31420TLhe current board of managers consists of
Robert B. Grieve, Ph.D., Heska Corporation's Exeeu€hair, Mr. Wilson and Jason A. Napolitano, Hesk
Corporation's Executive Vice President, Chief FoalnOfficer and Secretary. Until the earlier &j bur
acquiring 100% of the units of Heska Imaging punsta the puts and/or calls discussed above dhg?)
sixth anniversary of the Acquisition, Heska Imagmay only take the following actions, among othéss,
unanimous consent of the board of managers: (ipisecurities, (ii) incur, guarantee, prepay, ezfoe,
renew, modify or extend debt, (iii) enter into mi&kcontracts, (iv) hire or terminate an officearammend the
terms of their employment, (v) make a distributather than a tax or liquidation distribution, (efter into a
material acquisition or disposition arrangemena onerger, (vii) lease or acquire an interest ih peaperty,
(viii) convert or reorganize Heska Imaging, or @rend its certificate of formation or the Heskadjimg
Agreement. This unanimous consent provision magidr our ability to optimize the value of its intrgnt
in Heska Imaging in certain circumstances.

Mr. Wilson's employment agreement with us acknogéedthat Mr. Wilson has business interests in
Cuattro, LLC, Cuattro Software, LLC, Cuattro Medjda.C and Cuattro Veterinary, LLC which may recgiir
a portion of his time, resources and attentionsnatorking hours. If Mr. Wilson is distracted dyetse or
other business interests, he may not contributeuash as he otherwise would have to enhancing our
business, to the detriment of our shareholder vallie Wilson is the spouse of Shawna M. Wilson (8M
Wilson™). Mr. Wilson, Mrs. Wilson and trusts fdrdir children and family own a majority interestGaattro
Veterinary, LLC and Cuattro Medical, LLC. In addit, including shares held by Mrs. Wilson and lsts
for the benefit of Mr. and Mrs. Wilson's childremdefamily, Mr. Wilson also owns a 100% interest in
Cuattro, LLC, the largest supplier to Heska Imagi@uattro, LLC owns a 100% interest in Cuattro
Software, LLC. While the terms of both the Amended Restated Master License Agreement and the
Supply Agreement between Heska Imaging and Cuatti@,were negotiated at arm's length as part of the
Acquisition, Mr. Wilson has an interest in theseeggnents and any time and resources devoted tdariogi
and overseeing this relationship may prevent us fileploying such time and resources on more proguct
matters.
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Since January 1, 2014, Cuattro, LLC charged Hesleaying $10.5 million, primarily related to
digital imaging products, for which there is an ariging supply contract with minimum purchase
obligations, software and services as well as atperating expenses provided for under a licensseagent
and a supply agreement, respectively; Heska Caiiporeharged Heska Imaging $3.9 million, primarily
related to sales and other administrative expem$eska Corporation net charged Cuattro, LLC
$219 thousand, primarily related to facility usaael other services.

At December 31, 2014, Heska Imaging had a $1.5amiliote receivable, including accrued interest,
from Cuattro Veterinary, LLC, which is due on Marth, 2016; Heska Imaging had accounts receivabie fr
Cuattro Software, LLC of $871 thousand; Heska Crapon had accounts receivable from Heska Imagfng o
$6.1 million, including accrued interest; Heska @wation had net accounts receivable from Cuatir@ of
$21 thousand; Heska Imaging had net accounts pafah Cuattro, LLC of $252 thousand. All monies
owed accrue interest at the same interest rateaHeskporation pays under its credit and securitgegent
with Wells Fargo once past due with the exceptibtihe note receivable, which accrues at this @iest
maturity date.

Mrs. Wilson, Clint Roth, DVM, Mr. Asakowicz, Mr. ppincott, Mr. Wilson and Cuattro, LLC own
approximately 29.75%, 8.39%, 4.09%, 3.07%, 0.05%@05% of Heska Imaging, respectively, each are a
member of Heska Imaging, and each have an interésé puts and calls discussed above. If Mr. B¥ils
Mr. Asakowicz or Mr. Lippincott is distracted byetbe holdings or interests, they may not contribstenuch
as they otherwise would have to enhancing our lessirto the detriment of our shareholder valueilé/the
Operating Agreement was negotiated at arm's lessgygbart of the Acquisition, and requires that nointne
members shall cause Heska Imaging to operate sisd®s in any manner other than the ordinary cafrse
business, any time and resources devoted to mimgitand overseeing this relationship may preveritara
deploying such time and resources on more prodriotiatters.

In addition, like any acquisition, if Heska Imagisignificantly underperforms our financial
expectations, it may serve to diminish rather thalnance shareholder value. Heska Imaging genexated
operating loss of approximately $2.1 million in §rear ended December 31, 2014.

The loss of significant customers who, for exampdee historically large purchasers or who are
considered leaders in their field could damage dausiness and financial results.

Revenue from Merck entities, including Merck Aninigalth, represented approximately 12% of our
consolidated revenue for the twelve months endextmdber 312014, and 13% for the twelve months ended
December 31, 2013. Revenue from Elanco represapigximately 11% of our consolidated revenue for
the twelve months ended December 31, 2014. Na sthgle customer accounted for more than 10% of ou
consolidated revenue for the twelve months endexmber 31, 2014, December 31, 2013 or December 31,
2012. Merck entities accounted for approximatdl9olof our consolidated accounts receivable at
December 31, 2014 and 12% of our consolidated atsoaceivable at December 31, 2013. No othetesing
customer accounted for more than 10% of our cotistad accounts receivable at December 31, 2014 or
December 31, 2013.

The loss of significant customers who, for examate, historically large purchasers or who are
considered leaders in their field could damagebmsiness and financial results.

We have historically not consistently generated ipge cash flow from operations, may need
additional capital and any required capital may nbé available on reasonable terms or at all.

If our actual performance deviates from our opatpfilan, we may be required to raise additional

capital in the future. If necessary, we expectise these additional funds by borrowing underreuolving
line of credit, the increased sale of customerdsathe sale of equity securities or the issuahoew term
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debt secured by the same assets as the term Ibéatswe fully repaid in 2010. There is ho guarartteat
additional capital will be available from these sms on reasonable terms, if at all, and certathege
sources may require approval by existing lendétmds we expect to be available under our existing
revolving line of credit may not be available arnbdey lenders could refuse to provide us with adddl debt
financing. Financial institutions and other poiaihy interested parties may not be interestedurcpasing
our customer leases on economic terms, or affakk public markets may be unreceptive to equitsufoings
and we may not be able to obtain additional prieafeity or debt financing. Any equity financing wad
likely be dilutive to stockholders and additionabd financing, if available, may include restrietivovenants
and increased interest rates that would limit aurently planned operations and strategies. Wie\ethe
credit markets are particularly restrictive anchéty be more difficult to obtain funding versus medaistory.
Furthermore, even if additional capital is avaigglit may not be of the magnitude required to noeetneeds
under these or other scenarios. If additional $usr@ required and are not available, it wouldyikeve a
material adverse effect on our business, finamdatition and our ability to continue as a goingaarn.

If the third parties to whom we granted substantialarketing rights for certain of our existing
products or future products under development aret successful in marketing those products, then our
sales and financial position may suffer.

Our agreements with our corporate marketing pastgenerally contain no or small minimum
purchase requirements in order for them to mairttaeir exclusive marketing rights. We are partato
agreement with Merck Animal Health, which grantsrdkeAnimal Health exclusive distribution and
marketing rights for our canine heartworm prevenmfivoduct, TRI-HEART Plus Chewable Tablets,
ultimately sold to or through veterinarians in theited States and Canada. Novartis Agro K.K., Toky
("Novartis Japan") markets and distributes our SGBXEP CH heartworm test in Japan under an exclusive
arrangement. AgriLabs had the non-exclusive riglsell certain of our produced bovine vaccinethan
United States, Africa and Mexico and has histolyogénerated the majority of our sales of thosecivess in
those territories under an agreement which wagmeagito and assumed by Eli Lilly acting throughrEtmin
November 2013. One or more of these marketingipestmay not devote sufficient resources to margeti
our products and our sales and financial positmrdsuffer significantly as a result. Revenuenfriglerck
entities, including Merck Animal Health, represehi®% of our 2014 revenue. Revenue from Elanco
represented 11% of our 2014 revenue. If Merck Ahidealth personnel fail to market, sell and suppaoit
heartworm preventive sufficiently or if Elanco pamsel fail to market, sell and support the boviaecines
we produce and sell to Elanco, our sales couldriesignificantly. Furthermore, there may be noghio
prevent these partners from pursuing alternatigiertelogies or products that may compete with oadpcts
in current or future agreements, including as pamergers, acquisitions or divestitures. For examwe
believe a unit of Merck has obtained FDA approwald canine heartworm preventive product with
additional claims compared with our TRI-HEART P{Cisewable Tablets, which we believe is not currently
being marketed actively. Should Merck decide tpleasize sales and marketing efforts of this procatbier
than our TRI-HEART Plus Chewable Tablets or cancelagreement regarding canine heartworm preventive
distribution and marketing, our sales could dec$igmificantly. In the future, third-party markeg
assistance may not be available on reasonable,tératsll. If any of these events occur, we may be able
to maintain our current market share or commemaatiertain of our products and our sales will ehecli
accordingly.

We may be unable to market and sell our productsaassfully.

We may not develop and maintain marketing and/e@sszapabilities successfully, and we may not
be able to make arrangements with third partiggetéorm these activities on satisfactory termsouif
marketing and sales strategy is unsuccessful, lolityeo sell our products will be negatively imgad and
our revenues will decrease. This could resulb@nlbss of distribution rights for products or aé to gain
access to new products and could cause damage tepatation and adversely affect our businessfatiutde
prospects.
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The market for companion animal healthcare prodsdigghly fragmented. Because our CCA
proprietary products are generally available oaolyédterinarians or by prescription and our medical
instruments require technical training to operate ultimately sell all our CCA products primarily or
through veterinarians. The acceptance of our mtsday veterinarians is critical to our succesbar@ges in
our ability to obtain or maintain such acceptancehanges in veterinary medical practice couldifigantly
decrease our anticipated sales. As the vast magdrcash flow to veterinarians ultimately is fugatby pet
owners without private insurance or government sttppur business may be more susceptible to severe
economic downturns than other health care busisegkih rely less on individual consumers.

We recently have entered into agreements with iewégnt third party distributors, including Butler
Animal Health Supply, LLC d/b/a Henry Schein Aninkégalth ("Henry Schein™), which we expect to market
and sell our products to a greater degree thdmeimdcent past. Our agreement with Henry Scheihilpits
us from selling our chemistry blood testing produehd our hematology blood testing products to an
independent third party distributor other than HeBchein. Independent third-party distributors rhay
effective in increasing sales of our products texearians, although we would expect a correspanttiwer
gross margin as such distributors typically buydoicis from us at a discount to end user prices gossible
new or existing independent third-party distribstoould cannibalize our direct sales efforts ameeloour
total gross margin. For us to be effective whemkimg with an independent third-party distributtire
distributor must agree to market and/or sell oodpcts and we must provide proper economic incestio
the distributor as well as contend effectivelyttoe time, energy and focus of the employees of such
distributor given other products the distributoryn@ carrying, potentially including those of our
competitors. If we fail to be effective with newexisting independent third-party distributorsy Gnancial
performance may suffer.

We depend on key personnel for our future succedsve lose our key personnel or are unable to
attract and retain additional personnel, we may beable to achieve our goals.

Our future success is substantially dependent @effiorts of our senior management and other key
personnel, including our Chief Executive Officeguh Wilson. The loss of the services of membésuo
senior management or other key personnel may gignify delay or prevent the achievement of ouliness
objectives. Although we have an employment agre¢nvéh many of these individuals, all are at-will
employees, which means that either the employéteska may terminate employment at any time without
prior notice. If we lose the services of, or failrecruit, key personnel, the growth of our bustneould be
substantially impaired. We do not maintain keysperlife insurance for any of our senior managerent
key personnel.

We rely substantially on third-party suppliers. €Hoss of products or delays in product availalyilit
from one or more third-party suppliers could substglly harm our business.

To be successful, we must contract for the supplgrananufacture ourselves, current and future
products of appropriate quantity, quality and cdatich products must be available on a timely kesisbe
in compliance with any regulatory requirementsmifirly, we must provide ourselves, or contracttfor
supply of certain services. Such services mugtrbeided in a timely and appropriate manner. Faito do
any of the above could substantially harm our begsn

We rely on third-party suppliers to manufacturesthproducts we do not manufacture ourselves and
to provide services we do not provide ourselvempfetary products provided by these suppliersesgnt a
majority of our revenue. We currently rely on thasippliers for our blood testing instruments and
consumable supplies for these instruments, foiroaging products and related software and servioes,
key components of our point-of-care diagnosticstastwell as for the manufacture of other products.
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The loss of access to products from one or morpl®up could have a significant, negative impact
on our business. Major suppliers who sell us petary products who are responsible for more tH4mob
our 2014 revenue for the twelve months ended Deee3ib, 2014 are Boule Medical AB, Cuattro, LLC, and
FUJIFILM Corporation. None of these suppliers asddoroducts which were responsible for more tHab 2
of our 2014 revenue, although products purchased tme of these suppliers was responsible for rthane
20% of our 2014 revenue and products purchaseddrather was responsible for more than 10% of our
2014 revenue. We often purchase products fromuppliers under agreements that are of limited dumadr
potentially can be terminated on an annual bdsishe case of our blood testing instruments anddaital
radiography solutions we are typically entitlechtin-exclusive access to consumable supplies, @iogg
non-exclusive access to products and services &b tine needs of an existing customer base, respigtfor
a defined period upon expiration of exclusive righthich could subject us to competitive pressimrese
period of non-exclusive access. Although we beliee will be able to maintain supply of our majooguct
and service offerings in the near future, therelmno assurance that our suppliers will meet thidigations
under any agreements we may have in place with traimat we will be able to compel them to do Risks
of relying on suppliers include:

» Inability to meet minimumobligations. Current agreements, or agreements we may negitiate
the future, may commit us to certain minimum pusehar other spending obligations. Itis
possible we will not be able to create the markshand to meet such obligations, which could
create a drain on our financial resources andditgui Some such agreements may require
minimum purchases and/or sales to maintain pradlitts and we may be significantly harmed
if we are unable to meet such requirements anddas#uct rights.

» Lossof exclusivity. In the case of our blood testing instrumentgdfare entitled to non-
exclusive access to consumable supplies for aetbferiod upon expiration of exclusive rights,
we may face increased competition from a thirdypaith similar non-exclusive access or our
former supplier, which could cause us to lose austs and/or significantly decrease our margins
and could significantly affect our financial resultin addition, current agreements, or agreements
we may negotiate in the future, with suppliers meguire us to meet minimum annual sales
levels to maintain our position as the exclusivatributor of these products. We may not meet
these minimum sales levels and maintain exclusowgr the distribution and sale of these
products. If we are not the exclusive distribudbthese products, competition may increase
significantly, reducing our revenues and/or dedérgpsur margins.

» Changesin economics. An underlying change in the economics with a fieppsuch as a large
price increase or new requirement of large mininpurchase amounts, could have a significant,
adverse effect on our business, particularly ifane unable to identify and implement an
alternative source of supply in a timely manner.

» Theloss of product rights upon expiration or termination of an existing agreement. Unless we
are able to find an alternate supply of a similadpct, we would not be able to continue to offer
our customers the same breadth of products andades and operating results would likely
suffer. In the case of an instrument suppliercald also potentially suffer the loss of sales of
consumable supplies, which would be significantdees where we have built a significant
installed base, further harming our sales prosmauisopportunities. Even if we were able to
find an alternate supply for a product to whichles rights, we would likely face increased
competition from the product whose rights we laghg marketed by a third party or the former
supplier and it may take us additional time andegige to gain the necessary approvals and
launch an alternative product.

» High switching costs. In our blood testing instrument products we cdalte significant
competition and lose all or some of the consumedienues from the installed base of those
instruments if we were to switch to a competitinstiument. If we need to change to other
commercial manufacturing contractors for certailmwf regulated products, additional regulatory
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licenses or approvals generally must be obtainethfsse contractors prior to our use. This
would require new testing and compliance inspestyanor to sale, thus resulting in potential
delays. Any new manufacturer would have to be aghatin, or develop, substantially equivalent
processes necessary for the production of our ptedWe likely would have to train our sales
force, distribution network employees and custosugaport organization on the new product and
spend significant funds marketing the new prodocur customer base.

The involuntary or voluntary discontinuation of a product line. Unless we are able to find an
alternate supply of a similar product in this an#ar circumstances with any product, we would
not be able to continue to offer our customersstrae breadth of products and our sales would
likely suffer. Even if we are able to identify ahernate supply, it may take us additional time
and expense to gain the necessary approvals amchlam alternative product, especially if the
product is discontinued unexpectedly.

Inconsistent or inadequate quality control. We may not be able to control or adequately noonit
the quality of products we receive from our suppgliePoor quality items could damage our
reputation with our customers.

Limited capacity or ability to scale capacity. If market demand for our products increases
suddenly, our current suppliers might not be ableilfill our commercial needs, which would
require us to seek new manufacturing arrangemetsnay result in substantial delays in
meeting market demand. If we consistently generatiee demand for a product than a given
supplier is capable of handling, it could leadaime backorders and potentially lost sales to
competitive products that are readily availablé&isTcould require us to seek or fund new sources
of supply, which may be difficult to find or maygeire terms that are less advantageous if
available at all.

Regulatory risk. Our manufacturing facility and those of some wff third-party suppliers are
subject to ongoing periodic unannounced inspedijoregulatory authorities, including the FDA,
USDA and other federal, state and foreign agerforesompliance with strictly enforced Good
Manufacturing Practices, regulations and similaeign standards. We do not have control over
our suppliers' compliance with these regulatiord standards. Regulatory violations could
potentially lead to interruptions in supply thatittbcause us to lose sales to readily available
competitive products.

Developmental delays. We may experience delays in the scale-up questiteeded for product
development that could delay regulatory submiss@mmscommercialization of our products in
development, causing us to miss key opportunities.

Limited intellectual property rights. We typically do not have intellectual propertgtris, or may
have to share intellectual property rights, togheducts supplied by third parties and any
improvements to the manufacturing processes ormamufacturing processes for these products.

Potential problems with suppliers such as thoseudsed above could substantially decrease sales,
lead to higher costs and/or damage our reputatiimour customers due to factors such as poor tyuali
goods or delays in order fulfillment, resultingdar being unable to sell our products effectivaig a
substantially harming our business.

We operate in a highly competitive industry, whicbuld render our products obsolete or
substantially limit the volume of products that vgell. This would limit our ability to compete and
maintain sustained profitability.

The market in which we compete is intensely contipeti Our competitors include independent
animal health companies and major pharmaceuticapaaies that have animal health divisions. We also
compete with independent, third-party distributamsjuding distributors who sell products underittoavn
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private labels. In the point-of-care diagnostatitey market, our major competitors include IDEX3Qaxis,
and Synbiotics, a unit of Zoetis. The products ufiactured by our OVP segment for sale by thirdipart
compete with similar products offered by a numidestber companies, some of which have substantially
greater financial, technical, research and oth&wueees than us and may have more established tingrke
sales, distribution and service organizations thase of our OVP segment's customers. Competitars
have facilities with similar capabilities to our ®\6egment, which they may operate and sell at arlawit
price to customers than our OVP segment does, vduiald cause us to lose customers. Companiesawith
significant presence in the companion animal haalinket, such as Bayer AG, CEVA Santé Animale, Eli
Lilly, Merck, Sanofi, Vétoquinol S.A., Virbac S.Aand Zoetis may be marketing or developing prodizs
compete with our products or would compete witmthitdeveloped. These and other competitors and
potential competitors may have substantially grefatancial, technical, research and other resauarel
larger, more established marketing, sales andcgeorganizations than we do. Our competitors nfégy o
broader product lines and have greater name retmgtinan we do. For example, if Zoetis devotss it
significant commercial and financial resourcesrmagng Synbiotics' market share, our sales couffesu
significantly. Our competitors may also developrarket technologies or products that are morectifie or
commercially attractive than our current or futpreducts or that would render our technologies@moducts
obsolete. Further, additional competition coulchedrom new entrants to the animal health care atark
Moreover, we may not have the financial resourtsnical expertise or marketing, sales or support
capabilities to compete successfully. One of ampgetitors, Abaxis, recently announced agreemeitis w
units of VCA Inc. ("VCA") for the long-term supplyf blood chemistry testing products to VCA-owned
veterinary clinics and for the co-marketing of Alsaklood chemistry testing products with VCA'seratary
diagnostic laboratory offering, which may serveniensify competition and lower our margins as vasl|
limit our prospects to sell blood chemistry testprgducts to VCA-owned veterinary clinics.

If we fail to compete successfully, our abilityachieve sustained profitability will be limited and
sustained profitability, or profitability at all, ay not be possible.

Obtaining and maintaining regulatory approvals inrder to market our products may be costly and
delay the marketing and sales of our products. la¢ to meet all regulatory requirements could caus
significant losses from affected inventory and thess of market share.

Many of the products we develop, market or manufactnay subject us to extensive regulation by
one or more of the USDA, the FDA, the EPA and fgmednd other regulatory authorities. These reguiat
govern, among other things, the development, gstiranufacturing, labeling, storage, pre-marketaygd,
advertising, promotion and sale of some of our potel Satisfaction of these requirements candakeral
years and time needed to satisfy them may varytauotislly, based on the type, complexity and ngveft
the product. The decision by a regulatory autfidatregulate a currently non-regulated produgtroduct
area could significantly impact our revenue andehaeorresponding adverse impact on our financial
performance and position while we attempt to comyity the new regulation, if such compliance isgibke
at all. The effect of government regulation maytddelay or to prevent marketing of our productsao
considerable period of time and to impose costhcedures upon our activities. We have experiencée
past, and may experience in the future, difficsltizat could delay or prevent us from obtaining the
regulatory approval or license necessary to inttedur market our products. Such delays in appnoesl
cause us to forego a significant portion of a nesdpct's sales in its first year due to seasonahty
advanced booking periods associated with certaidymts. Regulatory approval of our products map al
impose limitations on the indicated or intendedsuse which our products may be marketed. Diffiigd in
making established products to all regulatory dpations may lead to significant losses relatedffected
inventory as well as market share. Among the dardi for certain regulatory approvals is the reguient
that our facilities and/or the facilities of ouirthparty manufacturers conform to current Good
Manufacturing Practices and other requirementsnyfregulatory authority determines that our
manufacturing facilities or those of our third-gamanufacturers do not conform to appropriate
manufacturing requirements, we or the manufactwkosir products may be subject to sanctions, dtioy,
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but not limited to, warning letters, manufacturswgpensions, product recalls or seizures, injunsticefusal
to permit products to be imported into or expoxetiof the United States, refusals of regulatotypauities
to grant approval or to allow us to enter into goweent supply contracts, withdrawals of previously
approved marketing applications, civil fines anidnimal prosecutions. Furthermore, third partieyma
perceive procedures required to obtain regulatppr@val objectionable and may attempt to disrupt or
otherwise damage our business as a result. Iti@udiertain of our agreements may require usto p
penalties if we are unable to supply products pidiclg for failure to maintain regulatory approvaksny of
these events, alone or in unison, could damagéusiness.

Our stock price has historically experienced higblatility, and could do so in the future, including
experiencing a material price decline resulting froa large sale in a short period of time. In addih, our
Public Common Stock has certain transfer restriati® which could reduce trading liquidity from what i
otherwise would have been and have other undesetdcts.

According to the latest available filings with t8&C of which we are aware and excluding our
executive officers, we have one shareholder wharatsnmore than 5% of our shares outstanding. This
shareholder holds approximately 5.5% of our shawstanding according to the latest availabledginvith
the SEC of which we are aware. Should this shddehor another relatively large shareholder detodgell
a large number of shares in a short period of tirmuld lead to an excess supply of our sharadabte for
sale and correspondingly result in a significardlide in our stock price. For example, we hadaeholder
who held over 16% of our shares outstanding agpfesnber 30, 2011 sell all of its holdings in dimick on
or before December 7, 2011 — and we believe thributed to a corresponding decline in our stod&ep
during this period.

The securities markets have experienced signifigpao¢ and volume fluctuations and the market
prices of securities of many microcap and smalla@ppanies have in the past been, and can in theefhe
expected to be, especially volatile. During thelts® months ended December 31, 2014, our closouk st
price has ranged from a low of $8.63 to a high18.$3. Fluctuations in the trading price or ligtyidf our
Public Common Stock may adversely affect our abititraise capital through future equity financings
Factors that may have a significant impact on theket price and marketability of our Public Common
Stock include:

» stock sales by large stockholders or by insiders;

» changes in the outlook for our business;

» our quarterly operating results, including as coregdo expected revenue or earnings and in
comparison to historical results;

» termination, cancellation or expiration of our thparty supplier relationships;

* announcements of technological innovations or neslycts by our competitors or by us;

» litigation;

» regulatory developments, including delays in pradoiroductions;

» developments or disputes concerning patents origtapy rights;

« availability of our revolving line of credit and epliance with debt covenants;

» releases of reports by securities analysts;

e economic and other external factors; and

* general market conditions.

In the past, following periods of volatility in thearket price of a company's securities, securities
class action litigation has often been institutdch securities class action suit is filed agaimstit is likely
we would incur substantial legal fees and our manamt's attention and resources would be diverted f
operating our business in order to respond toitigation.
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On May 4, 2010, our shareholders approved an amemidfthe "Amendment") to our Restated
Certificate of Incorporation. The Amendment placestrictions on the transfer of our stock thatldou
adversely affect our ability to use our domestiddfal Net Operating Loss carryforward ("NOL"). In
particular, the Amendment prevents the transfahafes without the approval of our Board of Direxify as
a consequence, an individual, entity or groupsidividuals or entities would become a 5-percentéol
under Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Cod®86,las amended, and the related Treasury reguatio
and also prevents any existing 5-percent holden frcreasing his or her ownership position in tleenpany
without the approval of our Board of Directors. yAmansfer of shares in violation of the Amendmg@nt
"Transfer Violation") shall be voidb initio under the our Restated Certificate of Incorporgtas amended
(our "Certificate of Incorporation”) and our BoastiDirectors has procedures under our Certifichte o
Incorporation to remedy a Transfer Violation indhglrequiring the shares causing such Transferatimh
to be sold and any profit resulting from such salbe transferred to a charitable entity chosethby
Company's Board of Directors in specified circums&s. The Amendment could have an adverse impact o
the value and trading liquidity of our stock if tan buyers who would otherwise have bid on or pased
our stock, including buyers who may not be comtagawning stock with transfer restrictions, do hiat on
or purchase our stock as a result of the Amendmieraddition, because some corporate takeovens occ
through the acquirer's purchase, in the public etaok otherwise, of sufficient shares to give ibicol of a
company, any provision that restricts the transfeshares can have the effect of preventing a takecolhe
Amendment could discourage or otherwise preveniraatations of substantial blocks of shares in wiaah
stockholders might receive a substantial premiuavatmarket value and might tend to insulate managém
and the Board of Directors against the possibiftyemoval to a greater degree than had the Amentnu
passed.

Our future revenues depend on successful produatelepment, commercialization and/or market
acceptance, any of which can be slower than we ex@e may not occur.

The product development and regulatory approvatgse for many of our potential products is
extensive and may take substantially longer thamamtieipate. Research projects may fail. New pctsl
that we may be developing for the veterinary manlkee may not perform consistently within our
expectations. Because we have limited resourcdsvote to product development and commercialinatio
any delay in the development of one product ol@eation of resources to product development efftirat
prove unsuccessful may delay or jeopardize theldpreent of other product candidates. If we fail to
successfully develop new products and bring themddket in a timely manner, our ability to generate
additional revenue will decrease.

Even if we are successful in the development abduyrct or obtain rights to a product from a third-
party supplier, we may experience delays or shtgtfacommercialization and/or market acceptaricin®
product. For example, veterinarians may be sloadpt a product or there may be delays in produeirge
volumes of a product. The former is particulaikely where there is no comparable product aveslaiol
historical precedent for such a product. The w@temadoption of a new product by veterinariansyalte of
such adoption and the extent veterinarians chaosgegrate such a product into their practiceadire
important factors in the economic success of ormiohew products and are factors that we do natrabto
a large extent. If our products do not achievigaificant level of market acceptance, demand far o
products will not develop as expected and our regsmill be lower than we anticipate. For example,
VitalPath Blood Gas and Electrolyte Analyzer getesiasignificantly less revenue than we anticipated
following its launch in May 2010 as placementsto$ foroduct with customers did not occur as we etque
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We may face costly legal disputes, including rethte our intellectual property or technology or
that of our suppliers or collaborators.

We may face legal disputes related to our businEss example, on March 12, 2015, a complaint
was filed against us in the United States Distiotirt Northern District of Illinois alleging ouralation of
the federal Telephone Consumer Protection Act 8fl18s amended by the Junk Fax Prevention Act@5,20
as a class action. Even if meritless, these déspmiay require significant expenditures on our gagt could
entail a significant distraction to members of management team or other key employees. We maytbav
use legal means to collect payment for goods sHippéhird parties. A legal dispute leading to an
unfavorable ruling or settlement could have sigaifit material adverse consequences on our business.

We may become subject to patent infringement dand litigation in the United States or other
countries or interference proceedings conductedarUnited States Patent and Trademark Office, or
USPTO, to determine the priority of inventions. eldefense and prosecution of intellectual propsutis,
USPTO interference proceedings and related leghhdministrative proceedings are likely to be ggstl
time-consuming and distracting. As is typical ur oxdustry, from time to time we and our collaldora and
suppliers have received, and may in the futureiveceotices from third parties claiming infringemend
invitations to take licenses under third-party p&ge Any legal action against us or our collabansbr
suppliers may require us or our collaborators ppsars to obtain one or more licenses in orden&wket or
manufacture effected products or services. Howeweror our collaborators or suppliers may not lbe &
obtain licenses for technology patented by otharsanmercially reasonable terms, or at all, maybeoable
to develop alternative approaches if unable toinllgenses or current and future licenses maybeot
adequate, any of which could substantially harmbuginess.

We may also need to pursue litigation to enforoepatents issued to us or our collaborative
partners, to protect trade secrets or know-how ovayeus or our collaborative partners, or to deteenthe
enforceability, scope and validity of the proprigtaghts of others. Any litigation or interferemc
proceedings will likely result in substantial experto us and significant diversion of the efforftewur
technical and management personnel. Any advetsendi@ation in litigation or interference proceegbn
could subject us to significant liabilities to tthiparties. Further, as a result of litigation they proceedings,
we may be required to seek licenses from thirdgevrhich may not be available on commercially
reasonable terms, if at all.

We often depend on third parties for products wéeind to introduce in the future. If our current
relationships and collaborations are not successfwke may not be able to introduce the products ntemnd
to introduce in the future.

We are often dependent on third parties and calidibve partners to successfully and timely perform
research and development activities to successdaNglop new products. For example, we jointlyedeped
point-of-care diagnostic products with Quidel Cogimn. In other cases, we have discussed Heska
marketing in the veterinary market an instrumermdpeleveloped by a third party for use in the hurnealth
care market. In the future, one or more of thbse parties or collaborative partners may not cletep
research and development activities in a timelhitas or at all. Even if these third parties awecessful in
their research and development activities, we nmypa able to come to an economic agreement wethmth
If these third parties or collaborative partneikttacomplete research and development activitaisto
complete them in a timely fashion, or if we arelhledo negotiate economic agreements with sucH thir
parties or collaborative partners, our abilitynreduce new products will be impacted negativelg aur
revenues may decline. For example, we have exparikesignificant delays compared to our expectation
our development of products in collaboration withpiRl Diagnostek, Inc.
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We may not be able to continue to achieve sustaipeatfitability or increase profitability on a
guarterly or annual basis.

Prior to 2005, we incurred net losses on an anpmasik since our inception in 1988 and, as of
December 31, 2014, we had an accumulated defi§it69.5 million. We have achieved only four queste
with income before income taxes greater than $1llm Accordingly, relatively small differences our
performance metrics may cause us to generate aatimgeor net loss in future periods. Our abitidy
continue to be profitable in future periods willpgad, in part, on our ability to increase salesinCCA
segment, including maintaining and growing ouraiistl base of instruments and related consumatoles,
maintain or increase gross margins and to limitriiceease in our operating expenses to a reasoleslgleas
well as avoid or effectively manage any unanti@passues. We may not be able to generate, sustain
increase profitability on a quarterly or annualibadf we cannot achieve or sustain profitabifily an
extended period, we may not be able to fund oueetga cash needs, including the repayment of deibt a
comes due, or continue our operations.

Interpretation of existing legislation, regulationand rules, including financial accounting
standards, or implementation of future legislatiorggulations and rules could cause our costs torease
or could harm us in other ways.

We prepare our financial statements in conformavitte United States generally accepted
accounting principles, or GAAP. These accountinggiples are established by and are subject to
interpretation by the SEC, the Financial Accounttgndards Board ("FASB") and others who interpnet
create accounting policies. A change in thosecjgsican have a significant effect on our reporgsdlts and
may affect our reporting of transactions compldiefbre a change is made effective. Such changgs ma
adversely affect our reported financial resulte,way we conduct our business or have a negatipadtron
us if we fail to track such changes. For exampkehave found FASB's recent decision to codify the
accounting standards has made it more difficutesearch complex accounting matters, increasingske
we will fail to account consistent with FASB ruliesthe future.

If our regulators and/or auditors adopt or interpnere stringent standards than we anticipate, we
could experience unanticipated changes in our tegdmancial statements, including but not limited
restatements, which could adversely affect ourrass due to litigation and investor confidenceun o
financial statements. In addition, changes inuhgerlying circumstances to which we apply given
accounting standards and principles may affectesults of operations and have a negative impactson
For example, we review goodwill recognized on cumsolidated balance sheets at least annually amel if
were to conclude there was an impairment of goddwé would reduce the corresponding goodwill o it
estimated fair value and recognize a corresponelipgnse in our statement of operations. This impeit
and corresponding expense could be as large astd#hi@mount of goodwill recognized on our consatedti
balance sheets, which was $21.2 million at DecerBbeP014. There can be no assurance that future
goodwill impairments will not occur if projectechfincial results are not met, or otherwise.

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 ("Sarbanes-Oxleg®)increased our required administrative
actions and expenses as a public company sinematsment. The general and administrative costs of
complying with Sarbanes-Oxley will depend on hovs iinterpreted over time. Of particular concern the
level of standards for internal control evaluatam reporting adopted under Section 404 of Sarb@mésy .
If our regulators and/or auditors adopt or intetrjpnere stringent standards than we anticipate, wiéoa our
auditors may be unable to conclude that our intexmatrols over financial reporting are designed an
operating effectively, which could adversely affestestor confidence in our financial statements eause
our stock price to decline. Even if we and ouritnd are able to conclude that our internal cdstover
financial reporting are designed and operatingegiffely in such a circumstance, our general and
administrative costs are likely to increase. Iditidn, if our stock market value is at or aboveeatain level
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on June 30, 2015, we will be required to have ndependent registered public accountant conduatidit
of our internal controls, which would increase ganeral and administrative costs.

Similarly, we are required to comply with the SE@andate to provide interactive data using the
eXtensible Business Reporting Language as an éxbibertain SEC filings. Compliance with this rdate
has required a significant time investment, whial &nd may in the future preclude some of our eyepl®
from spending time on more productive mattersaddition, actions by other entities, such as enddungles
to maintain our listing on the Nasdaq Capital M&rkeuld also increase our general and adminiggatbsts
or have other adverse effects on us, as couldduldigislative, regulatory or rule-making actiomaore
stringent interpretations of existing legislatiogulations and rules.

Many of our expenses are fixed and if factors begoour control cause our revenue to fluctuate,
this fluctuation could cause greater than expectedses, cash flow and liquidity shortfalls.

We believe that our future operating results viltfuate on a quarterly basis due to a variety of
factors which are generally beyond our controlludmg:

» supply of products from third-party suppliers aneation, cancelation or expiration of such
relationships;

* competition and pricing pressures from competifix@ducts;

» the introduction of new products or services by @mpetitors or by us;

» large customers failing to purchase at historiea¢ls;

» fundamental shifts in market demand;

* manufacturing delays;

» shipment problems;

» information technology problems, which may prevesfrom conducting our business
effectively, or at all, and may also raise our spst

» regulatory and other delays in product development;

e product recalls or other issues which may raisecosts;

» changes in our reputation and/or market acceptaihecer current or new products; and

» changes in the mix of products sold.

We have high operating expenses, including thdagedkto personnel. Many of these expenses are
fixed in the short term and may increase over these of the coming year. If any of the factostell above
cause our revenues to decline, our operating eesalild be substantially harmed.

If we are unable to maintain various financial andther covenants required by our credit facility
agreement we will be unable to borrow any funds endhe agreement and fund our operations.

Under our credit and security agreement with Wediggo, we are required to comply with various
covenants, both financial and non-financial, inesr borrow under the agreement. The availakility
borrowings under this agreement is expected tanpsiitant to continue to fund our operations. Beigfig
January 1, 2015 a key financial covenant is basealfixed charge coverage ratio, as defined ircthdit
and security agreement with Wells Fargo. Althoughbelieve we will be able to maintain compliandghw
all these covenants and any covenants we may aggatithe future, there can be no assurance thevée
have not always been able to maintain compliante ali covenants under our credit and security exgent
with Wells Fargo. Although Wells Fargo has granisdh waiver of non-compliance in each case, tteme
be no assurance we will be able to obtain similaivers or other modifications if needed in the fatan
economic terms, if at all. Failure to comply withy of the covenants, representations or warrarities
failure to modify them to allow future complian@auld result in our being in default and could eaal
outstanding borrowings under our credit and secagreement to become immediately due and payable,
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impact our ability to borrow under the agreemdntaddition, Wells Fargo has discretion in setting
advance rates which we may borrow against eligibfets. We may need to rely on available borrasing
under the credit and security agreement to fundparations in the future. If we are unable tadaerfunds
under this agreement, we will need to raise aduificapital from other sources to continue our afens,
which capital may not be available on acceptalyiageor at all.

Our Public Common Stock is listed on the Nasdaq @alpMarket and we may not be able to
maintain that listing, which may make it more diffult for you to sell your shares. In addition, weave
less than 300 record holders, which would allowtesterminate voluntarily the registration of our ecomon
stock with the SEC and after which we would no l@rge eligible to maintain the listing of our Puladli
Common Stock on the Nasdag Capital Market.

Our Public Common Stock is listed on the Nasdagt@aidarket. The Nasdaq has several
guantitative and qualitative requirements compamiast comply with to maintain this listing, inclugj a
$1.00 minimum bid price. We completed a 1-for-&0erse stock split effective December 30, 2010rdkei0
to resolve an ongoing minimum bid price deficientyhile we believe we are currently in complianaghw
all Nasdag requirements, there can be no assuvameell continue to meet Nasdagq listing requirensent
including the minimum bid price, that Nasdaq wiltdérpret these requirements in the same manneowfe d
we believe we meet the requirements, or that Nagdlagot change such requirements or add new
requirements to include requirements we do not mettie future. If we are delisted from the Nas@agpital
Market, our Public Common Stock may be considerpdrany stock under the regulations of the SEC and
would therefore be subject to rules that imposétimel sales practice requirements on broker-deaido
sell our securities. The additional burdens impagaon broker-dealers may discourage broker-defitars
effecting transactions in our Public Common Staeahkich could severely limit market liquidity of thublic
Common Stock and any stockholder's ability to @etlsecurities in the secondary market. This te#ck
liquidity would also likely make it more difficufbr us to raise capital in the future.

We have less than 300 record holders as of owstlat®rmation, a fact which would make us
eligible to terminate voluntarily the registratiohour common stock with the SEC and therefore sndur
reporting obligations with the SEC under the Exg®Act and become a non-reporting company. If we
were to cease reporting with the SEC, we wouldongér be eligible to maintain the listing of ournooon
stock on the Nasdaq Capital Market, which we waxdect to materially adversely affect the liquidityd
market price for our common stock.

We may face product returns and product liabilif§igiation in excess of, or not covered by, our
insurance coverage or indemnities and/or warrantieem our suppliers. If we become subject to pratu
liability claims resulting from defects in our pragtts, we may fail to achieve market acceptance wf o
products and our sales could substantially decline.

The testing, manufacturing and marketing of ourenirproducts as well as those currently under
development entail an inherent risk of productiligbclaims and associated adverse publicity. Iéwing
the introduction of a product, adverse side effatdy be discovered. Adverse publicity regardinghsu
effects could affect sales of our other productsafoindeterminate time period. To date, we hate n
experienced any material product liability clairbat any claim arising in the future could substlhtiharm
our business. Potential product liability claimaynexceed the amount of our insurance coverageapibm
excluded from coverage under the terms of the poliWe may not be able to continue to obtain adequa
insurance at a reasonable cost, if at all. Irethent that we are held liable for a claim againsictvwe are
not indemnified or for damages exceeding the $1Momilimit of our insurance coverage or which risun
significant adverse publicity against us, we maeloevenue, be required to make substantial pagment
which could exceed our financial capacity and/selor fail to achieve market acceptance.
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We may be held liable for the release of hazardowsterials, which could result in extensive
remediation costs or otherwise harm our business.

Certain of our products and development prograrodymred at our Des Moines, lowa facility involve
the controlled use of hazardous and bio hazardaterrals, including chemicals and infectious diseas
agents. Although we believe that our safety pracesifor handling and disposing of such materiataply
with the standards prescribed by applicable Ia&tate and federal regulations, we cannot elimitteeisk of
accidental contamination or injury from these mater In the event of such an accident, we coeldhéld
liable for any fines, penalties, remediation caststher damages that result. Our liability foz telease of
hazardous materials could exceed our resourceshwbiuld lead to a shutdown of our operations,iagmt
remediation costs and potential legal liability. addition, we may incur substantial costs to cgmpth
environmental regulations if we choose to expandheanufacturing capacity.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments.

Not applicable.

Item 2 Properties.

Our principal administrative and research and dpraknt activities are located in Loveland,
Colorado. We currently lease approximately 60 8f@are feet at a facility in Loveland, Colorado eman
agreement which expires in 2023. Our principabpagion facility located in Des Moines, lowa, catsiof
168,000 square feet of buildings on 34 acres af,lamich we own. We also own a 175-acre farm used
principally for testing products, located in Cddidowa. Our European facility in Fribourg, Svétland has
approximately 6,000 square feet leased under aeagmt which expires in 2017.

Iltem 3 Legal Proceedings.

From time to time, we may be involved in litigaticelated to claims arising out of our operatioAs.
December 31, 2014, we were not a party to any Ipgateedings that are expected, individually othia
aggregate, to have a material adverse effect obuginess, financial condition or operating results
ltem 4 Mine Safety Disclosures.

Not applicable.

PART Il

ltem 5 Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer
Purchases of Equity Securities.

Our Public Common Stock is quoted on the Nasdadt&ldaparket under the symbol "HSKA." The

following table sets forth the high and low salesgs for our Public Common Stock as reported gy th
Nasdaq Capital Market for the periods indicatedwel
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High Low

2013

First Quarter 9.37 7.70
Second Quarter 9.33 6.62
Third Quarter 6.98 5.16
Fourth Quarter 8.93 5.50
2014

First Quarter 11.43 8.19
Second Quarter 12.74 10.27
Third Quarter 14.58 10.60
Fourth Quarter 18.63 11.89
2015

First Quarter (through March 24) 26.68 15.58

As of February 27, 2015, there were approximat&B i2cord holders of our Public Common Stock,

including approximately 95 participant accountefle & Co.'s position held with our registrar, and
approximately 3,700 beneficial stockholders. Whikepaid $1.6 million in dividends in 2012, we dut n
anticipate any dividend payments in the foresecfitlee.

The following graph provides a comparison overfihe-year period ended December 31, 2014 of

STOCK PRICE PERFORMANCE GRAPH

the cumulative total shareholder return from a $ib@@stment in the Company's common stock with the
NASDAQ Medical Supplies Index and the NASDAQ Comio3 otal Return.
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Item 6 Selected Financial Data.

The following consolidated statement of operatiand consolidated balance sheets data have been
derived from our consolidated financial statemefitse information set forth below is not necesgaril
indicative of the results of future operations ahduld be read in conjunction with "Management's
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition &webults of Operations" and the Consolidated Fir@nci
Statements and related Notes included as Itemsd B anthis Form 10-K. We completed a 1-for-10emese
stock split effective December 30, 2010. Exceptthsrwise indicated, all related amounts repoeddw
have been retroactively adjusted for the effe¢hisf reverse stock split.
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Year Ended December 31,

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
(in thousands, except per share amounts)
Consolidated Statement of Operations Data:
Revenue:
Core companion animal health $ 55,655 $ 57,481 $ 61,502 $ 66,404 72,354
Other vaccines, pharmaceuticals and
products 9,796 12,584 11,303 11,935 17,483
Total revenue, net 65,451 70,065 72,805 78,339 89,837
Cost of revenue 40,659 40,878 41,704 47,707 54,122
Gross Profit 24,792 29,187 31,101 30,632 35,715
Operating expenses:
Selling and marketing 14,726 15,167 18,339 19,428 19,159
Research and development 1,597 1,650 958 1,500 1,414
General and administrative 8,111 9,121 9,646 11,134 12,231
Total operating expenses 24,434 25,938 28,943 32,062 32,804
Operating income (loss) 358 3,249 2,158 (1,430) 2,911
Interest and other (income) expense, net 289 (117) 135 (37) (39)
Income (loss) before income taxes 69 3,366 2,023 (1,393 2,950
Income tax expense:
Current income tax expense 61 165 214 183 47
Deferred income tax expense (benefit) (10) 1,056 606 (637) 1,304
Total income tax expense (benefit) 51 1,221 820 (454) 1,351
Net income (los: $ 18 $ 2,145 $ 1,203 $ (939) 1,599
Net income (loss) attributable to r-
controlling interest — — — 257 (1,004)
Net income (loss) attributable to Hes
Corporation 18 2,145 1,203 (1,196) 2,603
Basic net income (loss) per share attributable
to Heska Corporation $ 0.00 $ 0.41 $ 0.23 $ (0.21) 0.44
Diluted net income (loss) per share
attributable to Heska Corporation $ 0.00 $ 0.40 $ 0.22 $ (0.21) 0.41
Dividends declared per share $ — $ — $ 0.30 $ — —
Consolidated Balance Sheet Data:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 5,492 $ 6,332 $ 5,784 $ 6,016 5,855
Total current assets 27,279 28,891 32,955 33,911 34,400
Note receivabl related party — — — 1,407 1,466
Total assets 63,048 61,894 66,826 93,553 96,844
Line of credit 3,079 — 2,552 4,798 48
Other short-term borrowings, including
current portion of long-term debt — — — 132 141
Total current liabilities 12,660 9,289 14,389 17,706 15,052
Long-term debt, excluding current portion — — — 369 227
Non-controlling interest — — — 13,659 15,679
Public Common Stock subject to redemption — — — 3,405 —
Total stockholders' equity 45,798 48,439 48,862 47,116 53,132
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Item 7 Management's Discussion and Analysis of Fimaial Condition and Results of Operations.

The following discussion and analysis of our finahcondition and results of operations should be
read in conjunction with "Selected ConsolidatedafRtial Data" and the Consolidated Financial Statésne
and related Notes included in Iltems 6 and 8 offisn 10-K. This discussion contains forward-loaki
statements that involve risks and uncertaintiagchStatements, which include statements concefatnge
revenue sources and concentration, gross profgjimgrselling and marketing expenses, research and
development expenses, general and administratiyenses, capital resources, additional financings or
borrowings and additional losses, are subjectsisrand uncertainties, including, but not limitedthose
discussed below and elsewhere in this Form 10-Kigodarly in Item 1A "Risk Factors," that coulduse
actual results to differ materially from those paipd. The forward-looking statements set forttiis Form
10-K are as of the close of business on March @452and we undertake no duty and do not intenghtiate
this information.

Overview

We develop, manufacture, market, sell and suppagrinary products. Our business is comprised of
two reportable segments, Core Companion AnimaltHd&CCA"), which represented 81% of our revenue
for the twelve months ended December 31, 2014 ¢whie define as "LTM") and Other Vaccines,
Pharmaceuticals and Products ("OVP"), which represt19% of LTM revenue.

The CCA segment includes, primarily for canine élohe use, blood testing instruments and
supplies, digital imaging products, software anwises, and single use products and services such a
heartworm diagnostic tests, heartworm preventieelpets, allergy immunotherapy products and allergy
testing.

Blood testing and other non-imaging instruments sumaplies represented approximately 36% of our
LTM revenue. Many products in this area involvagihg an instrument in the field and generatingriait
revenue from consumables, including items suclupgl®s and service, as that instrument is used.
Approximately 31% of our LTM revenue resulted fréme sale of such consumables to an installed fase o
instruments and approximately 5% of our LTM revenas from hardware revenue. A loss of, or disaupti
in, the supply of consumables we are selling toatalled base of instruments could substantiadiyvhour
business. All of our blood testing and other nmging instruments and supplies are supplied g thi
parties, who typically own the product rights ang@y the product to us under marketing and/oritistion
agreements. In many cases, we have collaboratbdavthird party to adapt a human instrument for
veterinary use. Major products in this area inelodr chemistry instruments, our hematology insanits
and our blood gas instruments and their affiliadpdrating consumables. Revenue from productseiseth
three areas, including revenues from consumaldpsesented approximately 32% of our LTM revenue.

Imaging hardware, software and services represampximately 15% of LTM revenue. Digital
radiography is the largest product offering in tiea, which also includes ultrasound instrumebigjital
radiography solutions typically consist of a conation of hardware and software placed with a custpm
often combined with an ongoing service and suppamtract. Our experience has been that most of the
economic benefit is generated at the time of sathis area, in contrast to the blood testing aateg
discussed above where ongoing consumable revemfieisa larger component of economic value as a
given blood testing instrument is used.
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Other CCA revenue, including single use diagnastid other tests, pharmaceuticals and biologicals
as well as research and development, licensingayadty revenue, represented approximately 29%uof o
LTM revenue. Since items in this area are ofteglsiuse by their nature, our typical aim is tddbui
customer satisfaction and loyalty for each prodgeherate repeat annual sales from existing cussoamsl
expand our customer base in the future. Prododtss area are both supplied by third partiesfaodided
by us. Major products and services in this arelude our heartworm diagnostic tests, our heartworm
preventives, our allergy test kits, our allergy iomotherapy and our allergy testing. Combined raedrom
heartworm-related products and allergy-related petslrepresented 27% of our LTM revenue.

We consider the CCA segment to be our core busaragsievote most of our management time and
other resources to improving the prospects forgagment. Maintaining a continuing, reliable aodr®mic
supply of products we currently obtain from thirtges is critical to our success in this areartudily all of
our sales and marketing expenses occur in the @@ment. The majority of our research and developme
spending is dedicated to this segment as well.

All our CCA products are ultimately sold primartly or through veterinarians. In many cases,
veterinarians will mark up their costs to the esdru The acceptance of our products by veteringig
critical to our success. CCA products are soldaty to end users by us as well as through digioh
relationships, such as our corporate agreementMatttk Animal Health, the sale of kits to condultidal
testing to third-party veterinary diagnostic laliorges and independent third-party distributorevéue
from direct sales and distribution relationshipgsresented approximately 73% and 27%, respectieély,
CCA LTM revenue.

We intend to sustain profitability over the longntethrough a combination of revenue growth, gross
margin improvement and expense control. Accorgingk closely monitor revenue growth trends in our
CCA segment. LTM revenue in this segment incre®8eds compared to pro forma revenue for the twelve
months ended December 31, 2013 assuming we hadlictaied Heska Imaging for the entire period.

The OVP segment includes our 168,000 square fo@tAJ&nd FDA-licensed production facility in
Des Moines, lowa. We view this facility as an asgeich could allow us to control our cost of goa@isany
pharmaceuticals and vaccines that we may commizesial the future. We have increased integratioinis
facility with our operations elsewhere. For exagpiirtually all our U.S. inventory, excluding Hesk
Imaging, is now stored at this facility and relatelfillment logistics are managed there. CCA segin
products manufactured at this facility are transféiat cost and are not recorded as revenue faD@x
segment. We view OVP reported revenue as revemmanly to cover the overhead costs of the fagidind
to generate incremental cash flow to fund our CEgnsent.

Our OVP segment includes private label vaccineramaceutical production, primarily for cattle
but also for other animals such as small mammalisOVP products are sold by third parties underdh
party labels.

We have an agreement for the production of celtairine vaccines which was assigned by a
previous distributor, Agri Laboratories, Ltd., ("Algabs") to, and assumed by, Eli Lilly and Compdti
Lilly") acting through its Elanco Animal Health dsion ("Elanco”) in November 2013. AgriLabs prevsty
conducted the marketing and sale of certain ofetvascines, which AgriLabs sold primarily under the
Titaniun] and MasterGuarfd brands, under this agreement. This agreementibtasically generated a
significant portion of our OVP segment's reven@air OVP segment also produces vaccines and
pharmaceuticals for other third parties.
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Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our discussion and analysis of our financial caadiaind results of operations is based upon the
consolidated financial statements, which have lpeepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles ("GAAP"). The preparatiorfiobincial statements in conformity with GAAP reps
management to make estimates and assumptiondfatttthe reported amounts of assets and liakilitiee
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilitiesfabe date of the financial statements, and tperted
amounts of revenue and expense during the periblalsse estimates are based on historical experate
various other assumptions that we believe to bsorgble under the circumstances. We have idahtifiese
critical accounting policies used in reporting fimancial position and results of operations bagaoh a
consideration of those accounting policies thadime the most complex or subjective decisions or
assessment. We consider the following to be dticarpolicies.

Revenue Recognition

We generate our revenue through the sale of predastwell as through licensing of technology
product rights, royalties and sponsored researdidamelopment. Our policy is to recognize
revenue when the applicable revenue recognitidar@ihave been met, which generally include
the following:

« Persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists;
« Delivery has occurred or services rendered;

« Price is fixed or determinable; and

« Collectability is reasonably assured.

Revenue from the sale of products is recognizeat afith the goods are shipped to the customer
and acceptance has been received, if required amittppropriate provision for estimated returns
and allowances. We do not permit general retufipsazlucts sold. Certain of our products have
expiration dates. Our policy is to exchange certaitdated, expired product with the same
product. We record an accrual for the estimateti @breplacing the expired product expected to
be returned in the future, based on our histoggpkerience, adjusted for any known factors that
reasonably could be expected to change historatééqms, such as regulatory actions which
allow us to extend the shelf lives of our produd&evenue from both direct sales to veterinarians
and sales to independent third-party distributoesgenerally recognized when goods are
shipped. Our products are shipped complete amty teause by the customer. The terms of the
customer arrangements generally pass title anafiskwnership to the customer at the time of
shipment. Certain customer arrangements providadoeptance provisions. Revenue for these
arrangements is not recognized until the accepthasdeen received or the acceptance period
has lapsed. We reduce our revenue by the estimagtaf any rebates, allowances or similar
programs, which are used as promotional programs.

Recording revenue from the sale of products invthe use of estimates and management
judgment. We must make a determination at the tifreale whether the customer has the ability
to make payments in accordance with arrangeménitsle we do utilize past payment history,
and, to the extent available for new customerslipabedit information in making our
assessment, the determination of whether colldittaisi reasonably assured is ultimately a
judgment decision that must be made by managenwetmust also make estimates regarding
our future obligation relating to returns, rebatdkwances and similar other programs.

License revenue under arrangements to sell ordeeprnoduct rights or technology rights is

recognized as obligations under the agreemeniatisfied, which generally occurs over a period
of time. Generally, licensing revenue is defemad recognized over the estimated life of the
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related agreements, products, patents or technoldgyrefundable licensing fees, marketing
rights and milestone payments received under coimharrangements are deferred and
recognized over the remaining contractual termgithe straight-line method.

Recording revenue from license arrangements ingdlve use of estimates. The primary
estimate made by management is determining theldgefof the related agreement, product,
patent or technology. We evaluate all of our Igieg arrangements by estimating the useful life
of either the product or the technology, the leraftthe agreement or the legal patent life and
defer the revenue for recognition over the appetpnperiod.

We may enter into arrangements that include mel@éments. Such arrangements may include
the licensing of technology and manufacturing aidorct. In these situations we must determine
whether the various elements meet the criteriatadzounted for as separate elements. If the
elements cannot be separated, revenue is recogmipedevenue recognition criteria for the

entire arrangement have been met or over the ptraadhe Company's obligations to the
customer are fulfilled, as appropriate. If thensdats are determined to be separable, the revenue
is allocated to the separate elements based diveelair value and recognized separately for

each element when the applicable revenue recogrititeria have been met. In accounting for
these multiple element arrangements, we must metieerdinations about whether elements can
be accounted for separately and make estimatesdiegaheir relative fair values.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

We maintain an allowance for doubtful accountsiked#e based on client-specific allowances,
as well as a general allowance. Specific allowaree maintained for clients which are
determined to have a high degree of collectahiiy based on such factors, among others, as: (i)
the aging of the accounts receivable balanceth@)client's past payment history; (iii) a
deterioration in the client's financial conditi@vjdenced by weak financial condition and/or
continued poor operating results, reduced cretlitgs, and/or a bankruptcy filing. In addition to
the specific allowance, the Company maintains @&g#rallowance for credit risk in its accounts
receivable which is not covered by a specific allase. The general allowance is established
based on such factors, among others, as: (i) takldalance of the outstanding accounts
receivable, including considerations of the agiagpgories of those accounts receivable; (ii) past
history of uncollectable accounts receivable woiis; and (iii) the overall creditworthiness of

the client base. A considerable amount of judgnisergquired in assessing the realizability of
accounts receivable. Should any of the factorsidened in determining the adequacy of the
overall allowance change, an adjustment to theigi@vfor doubtful accounts receivable may be
necessary.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or etaidost being determined on the first-in, first-
out method. Inventories are written down if thérmeated net realizable value of an inventory
item is less than its recorded value. We reviesvctrrying cost of our inventories by product
each quarter to determine the adequacy of ourveséor excess/obsolescence inventory. In
accounting for inventories we must make estimatganding the estimated net realizable value of
our inventory. This estimate is based, in partponforecasts of future sales and shelf life of
product.
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Deferred Tax Assets — Valuation Allowance

Our deferred tax assets, such as a domestic NeateLoss ("NOL"), are reduced by an
offsetting valuation allowance based on judgmeasabssment of available evidence if we are
unable to conclude that it is more likely than tiatt some or all of the related deferred tax assets
will be realized. If we are able to conclude itnsre likely than not that we will realize a future
benefit from a deferred tax asset, we will redueerelated valuation allowance by an amount
equal to the estimated quantity of income taxesvaeld pay in cash if we were not to utilize the
deferred tax asset in the future. The first titne dccurs in a given jurisdiction, it will resutt a

net deferred tax asset on our consolidated balsimeets and an income tax benefit of equal
magnitude in our statement of operations in thiodere make the determination. In future
periods, we will then recognize as income tax egpdhe estimated quantity of income taxes we
would have paid in cash had we not utilized thatesl deferred tax asset. The corresponding
journal entry will be a reduction of our deferred asset. If there is a change regarding our tax
position in the future, we will make a correspomdaujustment to the related valuation
allowance.
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Results of Operations
The following table summarizes our results of opers for the three most recent fiscal years:

Year Ended December 31,
2012 2013 2014
(in thousands except per share amounts)

Consolidated Statement of Income Data:

Revenue:
Core companion animal health $ 61502 % 66,404 % 72,354
Other vaccines, pharmaceuticals and products 11,303 11,935 17,483
Total revenue, net 72,805 78,339 89,837
Cost of revenue 41,704 47,707 54,122
Gross profit 31,101 30,632 35,715
Operating expenses:
Selling and marketing 18,339 19,428 19,159
Research and development 958 1,500 1,414
General and administrative 9,646 11,134 12,231
Total operating expenses 28,943 32,062 32,804
Operating income (loss) 2,158 (1,430) 2,911
Interest and other (income) expense, net 135 (37) (39)
Income (loss) before income taxes 2,023 (1,393 2,950
Income tax expense (benefit):
Current income tax expense 214 183 47
Deferred income tax expense (benefit) 606 (637) 1,304
Total income tax expense (benefit) 820 (454) 1,351
Net income (lost $ 1,203 $ 939) 3% 1,599
Net income (loss) attributable to r-controlling interest $ — $ 257 $ (1,004)
Net income (loss) attributable to Heska Corpor: $ 1,203  $ (1,196) $ 2,603

Basic net income (loss) per share attributable to

Heska Corporation $ 0.23 $ (0.21) % 0.44
Diluted net income (loss) per share attributable to

Heska Corporation $ 022 $ 0.21) % 0.41
Weighted average outstanding shares used to corbpsie net

income (loss) per share attributable to Heska Gaitjmm 5,326 5,755 5,951
Weighted average outstanding shares used to cordpuited net

income (loss) per share attributable to Heska Qatjum 5,489 5,755 6,409

Revenue

Total revenue increased 15% to $89.8 million in26@mpared to $78.3 million in 2013. Total
revenue increased 8% to $78.3 million in 2013 caegbéo $72.8 million in 2012.

CCA segment revenue increased 9% to $72.4 miliid20il4, including $13.6 million in revenue
from Heska Imaging, compared to $66.4 million irL20 Increased sales of our instrument consumables,
somewhat offset by lower sales of our heartworngmiistic tests, were a key factor in the improvement
CCA segment revenue increased 8% to $66.4 miltid20il3 compared to $61.5 million in 2012. Theédatg
factor in the increase was $12.7 million in revefroen Heska Imaging, which represents the reverwma f
sales after our acquisition of Heska Imaging ornrératy 24, 2013. We also generated greater revieaoe
sales of our heartworm preventive to Merck Animabhh. These were somewhat offset by lower revenue
from domestic sales of our heartworm diagnostitstesir chemistry instruments, our hematology
instruments, our instrument consumables and oarnational allergy business.
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OVP segment revenue increased 47% to $17.5 mili@®14 compared to $11.9 million in 2013.
The largest factor in the increase was greatemteyérom the contract Elanco Animal Health assufmath
Agrilabs in 2013. OVP segment revenue increasedos$4.1.9 million in 2013 compared to $11.3 million
2012. Increased revenue from sponsored reseadctieelopment activities was the largest factahen
increase.

Cost of Revenue

2014 Cost of revenue was $54.1 million, an incredse3% compared to $47.7 million in 2013.
Gross profit increased 17% to $35.7 million in 2@ $30.6 million in 2013. 2014 gross profit inded
$3.6 million in gross profit from Heska Imaging.rass Margin, i.e. gross profit divided by total eeue,
increased to 39.8% in 2014 from 39.1% in 2013June 2013, we recognized a reserve (the "Roche
Reserve") related to an agreement (the "Roche Aggat) with Roche related to our blood gas anakyzer
under which we would be relieved of any minimumghase obligations other than the Roche Agreemeht an
Roche would be obligated to supply us with consuesalnd spare parts for a shortened period of tifitne
Roche Reserve was $1.1 million, as follows: $6@u#land recognized in cost of revenue related toinedy
purchase of new instruments under the Roche Agnee®&68 thousand recognized in cost of revenue
related to instruments already in inventory ancebeated depreciation on service units, $13 thalisan
recognized in sales and marketing expenses reflai@ctelerated depreciation on demonstration Ub@S8,
thousand recognized in research and developmernsgp related to the purchase of research and
development equipment required under the Rocheehgeat we would not have otherwise purchased and
$243 thousand recognized in general and adminigrakpenses related to other anticipated cosasectto
the Roche Agreement. In addition, in June 2013egegnized a $453 thousand reserve (the "SpotChem
Reserve") related to consumable and accessorytoyerwhich we did not expect to sell. A shift iroguct
mix to relatively lower margin product areas aslhaslthe impact of the Roche Reserve and the SpatCh
Reserve, were factors in the decline in Gross Midi@i the twelve months ended December 31, 2013 as
compared to the prior year period. The Roche Resand the Spot Chem reserve, along with product mi
were factors in the improved year-over-year Grossdih. These factors were somewhat offset by hernig
relative revenue contribution from our OVP segmaittich tends to operate at lower Gross Margin than
consolidated Gross Margin, and lower Gross Margaognized from Heska Imaging.

2013 Cost of revenue was $47.7 million, an incredset% compared to $41.7 million in 2012.
Gross profit decreased 2% to $30.6 million in 2658 $31.1 million in 2012. Gross Margin, i.e. gso
profit divided by total revenue, decreased to 39112013 from 42.7% in 2012. A shift in productao
relatively lower margin product areas as well asithpact of the Roche Reserve and the Spot CheeriRes
were factors in the decline in Gross Margin in 2883ompared to 2012.

Operating Expenses

Selling and marketing expenses were $19.2 millio2d14, including $4.5 million recognized from
Heska Imaging. This represents a 1% decline cosap@a $19.4 million in selling and marketing expenm
2013. Lower promotional and advertising expensas avkey factor in the change. Selling and margeti
expenses increased by 6% to $19.4 million in 2@iB8pared to $18.3 million in 2012. Heska Imaginigsa
and marketing expense of $3.3 million recognize®dmh3 but not 2012, was the largest factor in tienge.
This was somewhat offset by lower spending on trand compensation for members of our sales fande a
lower marketing expenses related to advertisingadher third party services.

Research and development expenses were $1.4 mill@®14, including $273 thousand in expense
recognized from Heska Imaging, a decrease of $8%stnd as compared to $1.5 million in 2013. Rebear
and development expenses were $1.5 million in 2Bt8jding $175 thousand in expense recognized from
Heska Imaging, an increase of $542 thousand asa@uipo $958 thousand in 2012. In addition to agpe
recognized from Heska Imaging, which did not odol2012, factors in the change in both cases irchud
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reserve in 2013 for equipment that had been prseljaised in a project that was discontinued in 281@
expenses related to the Roche Reserve, neitheniohwccurred in 2012 or 2014.

General and administrative expenses were $12.®milhcluding approximately $913 thousand in
expense recognized from Heska Imaging, in 2014n@ease of 10% as compared to $11.1 million in201
Increased non-cash compensation expense relatesvtemployment agreements for our Chief Executive
Officer and our Executive Chair which were signed/iarch 2014, were key factors in the change. eGsdn
and administrative expenses were $11.1 millioniaalided approximately $1.0 million in expense
recognized from Heska Imaging in 2013, a 15% irsgess compared to $9.6 million in 2012. In additm
expenses from and related to the acquisition ok&lémaging, severance expenses related to thertatiom
of certain employees and expenses related to theeRReserve were key factors in the increase.

Interest and Other Expense, Net

Interest and other expense, net, was income oft&8%and in 2014, as compared to income of $37
thousand in 2013 and an expense of $135 thousa&@il This line item can be broken into two
components: net interest expense or income anidmeégn currency gains and losses. Net interest wa
expense of $16 thousand in 2014, as compared eonmof $53 thousand in 2013 and an expense of
$22thousand in 2012. We recognized net interest iecatated to Heska Imaging in 2013 and 2014,
primarily related to income on an interest-beanote from Cuattro Veterinary, LLC, which did notcoc in
2012, although the net interest income relateddska Imaging was lower in 2014 as compared to 20&3
to higher interest expense from increased averageest-bearing balances owed by Heska Imaging. Ne
foreign currency gain was $55 thousand in 2014paspared to net foreign currency losses of $16thod
in 2013 and $113 thousand in 2012.

Income Tax Expense (Benefit)

In 2014, we had total income tax expense of $1ldomj including $1.3 million in domestic deferred
income tax expense, a hon-cash item, and $47 thdusaurrent income tax expense. In 2013, wetbtd
income tax benefit of $454 thousand, including $88sand in domestic deferred income tax bereefit,
non-cash item, and $183 thousand in current indamexpense. In 2012, we had total income tax rsge
of $820 thousand, including $606 thousand in doiméstferred income tax expense, and $214 thousand i
current income tax expense. We had a deferred iadambenefit in 2013 as we had a loss before iecom
taxes in 2013. We generated domestic taxable iadora013 due to the impact of upfront payments
received in 2013, which is why we had domesticenirtax expense despite a loss before income tardca
deferred tax benefit. We had both current tax egpend deferred tax expense in 2012 and 2014 as we
generated income before income taxes and utilieéehicbd tax assets, including our NOL, in both qusi

Net Income (Loss)

Our 2014 net income was $1.6 million as comparetetdoss of $939 thousand in 2013 and net
income of $1.2 million in 2012. Increased reveand Gross Margin, somewhat offset by higher opagati
expenses, were factors in the improvement from 202914. Increased operating expenses and lowsssG
Margin, somewhat offset by higher revenue, werentbst important factors in the decline from 2012 to
2013.
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Net Income (Loss) attributable to Heska Corporation

Net income attributable to Heska Corporation wa$ $allion in 2014, as compared to a net loss
attributable to Heska Corporation of $1.2 million2013 and net income attributable to Heska Cotjmoraf
$1.2 million in 2012. The difference between fitie item and "Net Income (Loss)" above is theinebme
or loss attributable to the minority interest indda Imaging, which was a net loss of $1.0 millior2014 and
net income of $257 thousand in 2013. There wason@sponding entry for 2012 as Heska Imaging ve&s n
consolidated into our financial statements untbfeary 24, 2013.

Liquidity, Capital Resources and Financial Conditian

We have incurred net cumulative negative cash ffom operations since our inception in 1988. For
the year ended December 31, 2014, we had net inob8k6 million. In 2014, net cash provided from
operations was $5.8 million. At December 31, 2044 had $5.9 million of cash and cash equivalents,
working capital of $19.3 million and $48 thousandstanding borrowings under our revolving line m#dit,
discussed below.

Net cash provided from operating activities was3$8illion in 2014 as compared to cash used by
operating activities of $1.4 million in 2013, a dga of approximately $7.2 million. Key factorstire
change were a $4.5 million improvement in cash iglext by net income and deferred tax expense, a
$4.1 million improvement in cash provided by acdsyrayable, accrued liabilities and other currizdility
accounts primarily related to payment timing, a&b%illion increase in non-cash stock-based compemsa
which was primarily related to restricted stockrgsato our Chief Executive Officer and our Execettvhair
in 2014 and $1.2 million in increased depreciatiod amortization for which a factor was increased
depreciation and amortization recognized from Héslaging rental assets. Greater cash provided from
these key factors in 2014 as compared to 2013 semewhat offset by $3.9 million in greater castdise
inventory in 2014, some of which related to inventmansferred to property, plant and equipmerneasal
units. Net cash flows from operating activitieedigash of $1.4 million in 2013 as compared to $369
thousand in 2012, a change of approximately $1lilomi A key factor in the change was a $3.4 railli
change in cash used in moving from net income 220 a net loss in 2013, including the impact on
deferred tax expense or benefit. We had higheldenf accounts receivable, accounts payable, edcru
liabilities and other current assets at year eri®2Ban we did at year end 2013, which had corrdipg
cash flow effects; we experienced $4.2 million ¢geaash usage due to accounts payable, accriddiéa
and other short term liabilities in 2013 as comddme2012; we also experienced $3.8 million greasesh
generated from accounts receivable and other dusissets in 2013 as compared to 2012. We werddaabv
$2.4 million greater cash from deferred revenuleeolong-term liabilities and other long-term asset
primarily related to upfront payments received @12 as compared to 2012. Depreciation and ambdiza
provided $798 thousand more cash in 2013 as oppos@ll 2, with the increase primarily related to
depreciation and amortization from Heska Imaging.

Net cash flows from investing activities used cak#i2.3 million in 2014 as compared to cash
provided of $71 thousand in 2013 and using cas$idf million in 2012. The major factor in theaclge in
2014 from 2013 and 2013 from 2012 was $5.0 mililoproceeds from disposition of property, including
non-core vaccine-related intellectual property,chioccurred in June 2013, which was somewhat dffget
the incremental $3.0 million investment in Heskagimg in February 2013. Purchases of property and
equipment increased $407 thousand in 2014 as ceapa2013. Purchases related to loaner and
demonstration equipment for Heska Imaging, somewfisét by lower spending related to our OVP segmen
and capitalized software costs, was a factor irctlamge. Purchases of property and equipment also
increased $421 thousand in 2013 as compared ta 2R largest factor in the change was capitalized
software costs related to a new customer relatipmaanagement system.
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Net cash flows from financing activities used caé#3.5 million in 2014, provided cash of
$1.5 million in 2013 and provided cash of $1.3 ioiilin 2012. In 2014, we used cash by repaying
$4.8 million under our revolving line of credit ad78 thousand in other debt. This was somewlisetaby
$1.4 million in cash provided by the issuance ahomn stock under our Employee Stock Purchase Pidn a
upon option exercises, net of Heska Imaging distidims to the Imaging Minority which include paynten
required by a state tax authority. Cash providethk issuance of common stock was greater in #@ddin
2013 or 2012 due to increased cash from optionceses. In 2013, we borrowed $2.2 million under lone
of credit and received $323 thousand in proceexs the issuance of common stock under our Employee
Stock Purchase Plan and upon option exerciseshwiece cash inflows, but we repaid $1.0 milliorother
debt which was a cash outflow. The increaseddireedit borrowing was largely necessary to fumel t
other debt repayments as well as cash used inpmuating activities. In 2012, we borrowed $2.6lionl
under our line of credit and received $390 thousamptoceeds from the issuance of common stock unaie
Employee Stock Purchase Plan and upon option ees;,csomewhat offset by funds paid to participating
shareholders in our odd lot tender offer for shalddrs with 99 shares or less. These cash flows we
somewhat offset by $1.6 million in dividends wecpaln 2012, we essentially borrowed under our ihie
credit to finance dividends paid to shareholdeus,capital expenditures and cash used in our apgrat
activities.

At December 31, 2014, Heska Corporation had acsaectivable from Heska Imaging of
$6.1 million, including accrued interest, whichnglnates upon consolidation of our financial statetse
These monies accrue interest at the same interteshs Heska Corporation pays under its asset-based
revolving line of credit with Wells Fargo once pdsi.

At December 31, 2014, we, including the balancetshef our consolidated subsidiaries, had an
account receivable from Cuattro Software, LLC of $8housand, net accounts receivable from CuditrG,
of $21 thousand and net accounts payable to Cuhttf® of $252 thousand. These items are listedun
consolidated balance sheets as "Due from - refaeibs" and "Due to — related party" as Kevin Ssén,
our Chief Executive Officer and President, Mrs. 8@t and trusts for their children and family holti®%
interest in Cuattro, LLC and Cuattro, LLC owns ®&%®interest in Cuattro Software, LLC. All monieseax
are to accrue interest at the same interest rat€dmpany pays under its credit and security ageaemith
Wells Fargo once past due.

At December 31, 2014, we had a $1.5 million Notzheable, including accrued interest, from
Cuattro Veterinary, LLC. The note accrues intead$he same interest rate as the Company pays itsde
asset-based revolving line of credit with Wellsgéaand is due on March 15, 2016. Cuattro VeteyinarC
sells the same digital radiography solutions oetsie United States that Heska Imaging sells irthieed
States. The note is listed on our consolidatedrnua sheets as "Note receivable — related partifeeain S.
Wilson, Mrs. Wilson and trusts for their childremdafamily hold a majority interest in Cuattro Vetery,
LLC. This note was held by Heska Imaging at theetbf our acquisition of a majority interest in Kas
Imaging on February 24, 2013.

At December 31, 2014, we had a $15.0 million abastd revolving line of credit with Wells Fargo
which has a maturity date of December 31, 2015asqgh our credit and security agreement with Wells
Fargo. At December 31, 2014, we had $48 thous&hdroowings outstanding on this line of crediturO
ability to borrow under this line of credit varibased upon available cash, eligible accounts rabkivand
eligible inventory. On December 31, 2014, anyriegeon borrowings due was to be charged at adstate
of three month LIBOR plus 3.75% and payable montWie expect the stated rate will decline to LIBOR
plus 2.75% as of April 1, 2015 based on the terfiBeocredit and security agreement and our 2Qiahtial
performance. We are required to comply with vasiimancial and non-financial covenants, and weshav
made various representations and warranties unglexgpeement with Wells Fargo. Among the financial
covenants through December 31, 2014 were requirsni@nminimum capital monthly, minimum net
income quarterly and capital expenditures monttlg.of January 1, 2015 a key financial covenabiaised
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on a fixed charge coverage ratio, as defined iragoeement with Wells Fargo. Failure to complyhvany

of the covenants, representations or warrantieklgesult in our being in default on the loan andld cause
all outstanding amounts payable to Wells Fargoetmbime immediately due and payable or impact ouityabi
to borrow under the agreement. We were in compdiamith all financial covenants as of December 31,
2014. We failed to comply with the net income auaat as of June 30, 2013, for which we obtaineciaav
and subsequently negotiated new covenants as svetl axtension of our asset-based revolving lirerexdit
with Wells Fargo to December 31, 2015. At Decengigr2014, our available borrowing capacity based
upon eligible accounts receivable and eligible maey under our revolving line of credit was appnoately
$8.8 million.

At December 31, 2014, we had other borrowings antihg totaling $368 thousand, all of which
were obligations of a Heska Imaging loan from Dgd.danden Financial Services, Inc. ("DLL"). Thaeo
bears an interest rate of 6% and is due in equatlthopayments, including principal and interest, o
$13 thousand through June 2017. The note maydpaijat prior to maturity, but is subject to a surgean
such a circumstance. $141 thousand of princil@ated with this note is listed as short ternoon
consolidated balance sheets as it is due withieea. y

At December 31, 2014, our consolidated balancetslimaguded $15.7 million in non-controlling
interest. This represents the value of the aggeguasition in Heska Imaging of the Imaging MingritAt
the time of the Acquisition, we estimated a weighdgerage valuation for this position and begamedicg
to this value over a three year period from the d@éitthe Acquisition using a weighted average obsapital
of 18.65%. The cost of capital assumption wasigeai’to us by a third party with expertise in estiimg
such items. We evaluate the value of this posiigry reporting period and in 2014 decided to stdjur
accretion to a weighted average accretion base@mous potential outcomes and our estimate of the
likelihood of such outcomes, which had the effddbwering the accretion from what it otherwise bu
have been. The accretion is to be recorded asdit gvhere this line item has increased compareddarior
reporting period, with the corresponding debit itectly reduce additional paid-in-capital as we dawn
accumulated deficit. If the value of non-contmgliinterest were to decrease compared to the qaparting
period, we anticipate non-controlling interest wbbe adjusted with a debit to non-controlling iestrand a
corresponding credit to additional paid-in-capital.

At December 31, 2013, our consolidated balancetsimeauded $3.4 million in Public Common
Stock subject to redemption. This representedhiaees of stock we issued to acquire our positidtdska
Imaging, which may have been used to meet the paechbligation if a Cuattro 12-month Call Optioraor
Cuattro 18-month Call Option had been exercisecutite Operating Agreement. The Cuattro 12-month
Call Option expired in February 2014 and the Imgdiinority waived the Cuattro 18-month Call Optiion
May 2014, and, accordingly, these shares are rgetoreported as "Public Common Stock subject to
redemption” following the waiver. The corresporyaredit at the time of waiver increased our addéi
paid-in capital.

Our financial plan for 2015 indicates that our &fale cash and cash equivalents, together with cash
from operations and borrowings expected to be abkglunder our revolving line of credit, will beffscient
to fund our operations through 2015 and into 20d6wever, our actual results may differ from thiam
and we may be required to consider alternativeegiies. We may be required to raise additionaitakip
the future. If necessary, we expect to raise thdsiional funds through the increased sale oforner
leases, the sale of equity securities or the issiahnew term debt secured by the same assédis &
loans which were fully repaid in 2010. There isguarantee that additional capital will be avaidatobm
these sources on acceptable terms, if at all, artdin of these sources may require approval bstiegi
lenders. See "Risk Factors" in Item 1A of thisrRdrO-K for a discussion of some of the factors #ftect
our capital raising alternatives.

-40-



Under the Operating Agreement, should Heska Imagiegt certain performance criteria, the
Imaging Minority has been granted a put optionetibss some or all of the Imaging Minority's remam
45.4% position in Heska Imaging following the awafibur financial statements in 2015, 2016 and 2017
Furthermore, should Heska Imaging meet certairopgidnce criteria, and the Imaging Minority fail to
exercise an applicable put to sell us all of thading Minority's position in Heska Imaging follovgrnhe
audit of our financial statements in 2015, 2016 2047, we would have a call option to purchaseball,not
less than all, of the Imaging Minority's positionHeska Imaging. While we intend to meet any eslatash
payment obligations with funds provided by our angoperations and assets, likely supplementeceby d
financing and potentially with equity financinggtie can be no assurance our results will unfoldraloeg to
our expectations. These potential cash paymeigaildns are an important consideration for ustuinaash
management decisions.

We believe it is likely that Heska Imaging will nie¢be required performance criteria for its 2015
lowest strike put, but not its 2015 highest stpke, in 2015. In this case, the Imaging Minoritgwid be
granted a put following our 2015 audit which coréduire us to deliver up to $13.6 million, as vasl25%
of Heska Imaging's cash, to purchase the 45.4%eské&limaging we do not own. In such a case, wele
have the right to deliver up to 55% of the consatien in our Pubic Common Stock under certain
circumstances, such stock is to be valued bas®@®%nof market value (the "Delivery Stock Value"das
limited to approximately 650 thousand shares inaasge. If the Delivery Stock Value is less thamriarket
value of our stock at the time of the Acquisitiare do not have the right to deliver any Public Camm
Stock as consideration. Assuming we deliver ttieskf6 of the consideration in our Public Commonckt
we could still have an obligation to pay approxietat6.1 million in cash as well as 25% of Heskading's
cash to the Imaging Minority in this circumstance.

We would consider acquisitions if we felt they weomsistent with our strategic direction. We paid
$1.6 million in dividends in 2012, and while we mapnsider paying dividends again in the long temado
not anticipate the payment of any further dividefaighe foreseeable future. We conducted an otld |
tender offer in 2012 which could have led to theurehase of approximately $400 thousand of ourksfcall
eligible holders had chosen to participate, andemie may consider stock repurchase alternativas in
opportunistic manner or in the long term, we doarticipate any stock repurchase programs in the
foreseeable future.

A summary of our contractual obligations at Decengie 2014 is shown below:

Payments Due by Period (in thousands)

Less Than 1-3 4-5 After
Total 1 Year Years Years 5 Years
Contractual Obligations

Long-term debt $ 368 $ 141 3 227 $ — $ —
Interest payments on debt 129 118 11 — —
Line of credit 48 48 — — —
Unconditional purchase obligations 4,322 4,322 — — —
Operating leases 14,081 1,861 3,259 3,017 5,944
Purchase of non-controlling interest 6,214 — 6,214 — —
Total contractual cash obligations $25,162 $ 6,490 $ 9,711 $ 3,017 $ 5,944
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In addition to those agreements considered aboesgendur contractual obligation is fixed, we are
party to commercial agreements which may requireusake milestone payments under certain
circumstances. Any milestone obligations whichb&beve are likely to be triggered but are notpest are
included in "Unconditional Purchase Obligationsthi table above. We do not believe other potentia
milestone obligations, some of which we considdramf remote likelihood of ever being triggered| w
have a material impact on our liquidity, capitadaarces or financial condition in the foreseeabtare.

The line item entitled "Purchase of non-controllintgrest” indicates our obligations to purchase th
non-controlling interest in Heska Imaging undeedes of performance-based puts. We believelikey
that Heska Imaging will meet the required perforoeaariteria for its 2015 lowest strike put, but itet2015
highest strike put, in 2015 and that we will beeatiol deliver 55% of the consideration requiredh®sy put in
our Public Common Stock. The table above assunigsstthe case, assumes that Heska Imaging's
performance merits the maximum payout under thisgaiimates Heska Imaging year end 2015 cash based
on year end 2014 and assumes the Imaging Minotéyceses this option in full. In such a circumst@we
would pay $6.2 million in cash in 2016 followingra2015 audit. As discussed above, if our stockices
such that Delivery Stock Value is less than theketavalue of our stock at the time of Acquisitiore would
not be able to deliver our Public Common Stockassmleration upon the exercise of any put by thaging
Minority and we would have to deliver the full casheration to acquire the minority interest in cash.
Furthermore, we are limited to a maximum of apprately 650 thousand shares as consideration ugon th
exercise of any put by the Imaging Minority, whialcertain circumstances could require us to delinere
than 45% of the consideration required by a pesh. The maximum Put Payment, excluding a change-
control, by year is 25% of Heska Imaging's casls plu amount as follows: $17.0 million in 2016 fallng
the 2015 audit, $17.0 million in 2017 following tB616 audit and $36.9 million in 2018 following th@17
audit. In addition, the Change in Control Payme#42.4 million in cash until at least the en®?61.5.

Net Operating Loss Carryforwards

As of December 31, 2014, we had a net domestiatipgrioss carryforward, or NOL, of
approximateh$108.4million, a domestic alternative minimum tax crechirryforward of approximately
$308 thousand and a domestic research and deveibpemecredit carryforward of approximately
$472 thousand for federal tax purposes. Our féd@d is expected to expire as follows if unused:
$102.5 million in 2018 through 2022, $5.5 million2024 and 2025 and $385 thousand in 2027. The NOL
and tax credit carryforwards are subject to altévaaninimum tax limitations and to examination thy tax
authorities. In addition, we had a "change of awhip" as defined under the provisions of Secti8a 8f the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (an "@hipeChange"). We believe the latest Ownership
Change occurred at the time of our initial publfeong in July 1997.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting StandardsrBessued Accounting Standards Update
("ASU™ 2014-09, "Revenue from Contracts with Cusers", which provides guidance for revenue
recognition that supersedes existing revenue retoigguidance (but does not apply to nor supersede
accounting guidance for lease contracts). The /30 be effective for reporting periods beginnafter
December 15, 2016, and is anticipated to be appdiedspectively to each prior reporting periodserged or
retrospectively with the cumulative effect of ialty applying the ASU recognized at the date diiahi
application. The Company has not evaluated theatpf the adoption of this ASU on the Company's
consolidated results.

In August 2014, the Financial Accounting Standadard issued ASU No. 2014-15, "Presentation
of Financial Statements — Going Concern: Disclasat®ut an Entity's Ability to Continue as a Going
Concern." The new standard requires managemgertorm interim and annual assessments of an &ntity
ability to continue as a going concern within oearyof the date the financial statements are isagedkll as
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certain disclosures if conditions or events raigestantial doubt about the entity's ability to done as a
going concern. The new guidance is effective forual periods ending after December 15, 2016, and
interim periods thereafter. The Company has naluated the impact of the adoption of this ASU loa t
Company's consolidated results.

Management has evaluated recent accounting proamerds other than ASU No. 2014-09 and ASU
No. 2014-15 and determined none would have a nahierpact on the Company's financial statements.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures &dout Market Risk.

Market risk represents the risk of loss that magdnt the financial position, results of operations
cash flows due to adverse changes in financiatandmodity market prices and rates. We are exptsed
market risk in the areas of changes in United Statel foreign interest rates and changes in for@igrency
exchange rates as measured against the United Stdler. These exposures are directly relataxlito
normal operating and funding activities.

Interest Rate Risk

At December 31, 2014, there was approximately fid8gand outstanding on our line of credit with
Wells Fargo. We also had approximately $5.9 millid cash and cash equivalents at December 31, 2014
the majority of which was invested in liquid intst®earing accounts. We had no interest rate hedge
transactions in place on December 31, 2014. Weplmiad an interest rate risk sensitivity analysisdal on
the above and an assumed one-percentage poinh$eddecrease in interest rates. If market rates
increase/decrease by one percentage point, we wapktience a decreasel/increase in annual ned$nter
expense of approximately $58 thousand based oousstanding balances as of December 31, 2014.

Foreign Currency Risk

Our investment in foreign assets consists primarfilgur investment in our Swiss subsidiary.
Foreign currency risk may impact our results ofrafiens. In cases where we purchase inventoryén o
currency and sell corresponding products in anpthargross margin percentage is typically at biaked on
foreign currency exchange rates. In additionases where we may be generating operating income in
foreign currencies, the magnitude of such operatingme when translated into U.S. dollars will beisk
based on foreign currency exchange rates. Oueagnats with suppliers and customers vary signifigan
regard to the existence and extent of currencysamjent and other currency risk sharing provisionge had
no foreign currency hedge transactions in placBecember 31, 2014.

We have a wholly-owned subsidiary in Switzerlandolituses the Swiss Franc as its functional
currency. We purchase inventory in foreign curiesigprimarily Euros, and sell corresponding praslirc
U.S. dollars. We also sell products in foreignrencies, primarily Euros and Japanese Yen, whare ou
inventory costs are largely in U.S. dollars. Basaaur 2014 results of operations, currency hgisliand
currency-related prepaid accounts, accounts relsieiaand accounts payable (all of which, includingency
holdings, we will refer to as "Currency Accounta¥) of December 31, 2014 and the functional currefhcy
the accounting entity where such Currency Accoarasheld, the expected impact on our consolidated
statements of operations, if foreign currency ergearates were to strengthen/weaken by 25% aghimst
dollar, would be a resulting gain/loss in operaimgpme of approximately $254 thousand and a cayren
loss/gain of $69 thousand, if all other curreneiese to strengthen/weaken by 25% against the Jwis,
would be a resulting loss/gain in operating incarhapproximately $93 thousand and a currency ge/bf
$352 thousand, and if all other currencies wergrengthen/weaken by 25% against the Euro, woula be
resulting loss/gain in operating income of appradiaty $306 thousand and a currency loss/gain o8 $27
thousand.
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
HESKA CORPORATION
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
Heska Corporation
Loveland, Colorado

We have audited the accompanying consolidated talaheets of Heska Corporation and subsidiaries (th
"Company") as of December 31, 2013 and 2014, aedreétated consolidated statements of operations,
stockholders' equity, comprehensive income (loas)l cash flows for each of the years in the thesg-y
period ended December 31, 2014. Our audits aldaded financial statement Schedule 1l appearimdeun
Item 15(a)(2) of this Form 10-K. These consolidai@ancial statements and financial statement chalee
are the responsibility of the Company's manageméhntr responsibility is to express an opinion oesth
consolidated financial statements based on outsaudi

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards requireweaplan and perform the audit to obtain reasanabl
assurance about whether the financial statemeptdree of material misstatement. The Company is no
required to have, nor were we engaged to performmgulit of its internal control over financial repog.
Our audit included consideration of internal cohtveer financial reporting as a basis for designauglit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstarimé not for the purpose of expressing an opiniorthe
effectiveness of the Company's internal controlrdireancial reporting. Accordingly, we express such
opinion. An audit also includes examining, on st teasis, evidence supporting the amounts andogis@s

in the financial statements, assessing the accuumfinciples used and significant estimates magle b
management, as well as evaluating the overall filsdurstatement presentation. We believe that owlita
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial stateteaeferred to above present fairly, in all matergspects,

the financial position of Heska Corporation andssdiaries as of December 31, 2013 and 2014, and the
results of their operations and their cash flowsefach of the years in the three-year period el mber

31, 2014, in conformity with accounting principlgsnerally accepted in the United States of Amerikso,

in our opinion, the related financial statementestthe, when considered in relation to the basiarfamal
statements taken as a whole, presents fairly] imaterial respects, the information set forth ¢irer

/s/ EKS&H LLLP

March 25, 2015
Boulder, Colorado
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HESKA CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

December 31,

2013 2014
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 6,016 $ 5,855
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doub#fttounts of

$209 and $216, respectively 11,409 11,919
Due from — related parties 1,200 892
Inventories, net 11,687 12,658
Deferred tax asset, current 2,156 1,489
Other current assets 1,443 1,587

Total current assets 33,911 34,400
Property and equipment, net 9,928 13,410
Note receivabl« related party 1,407 1,466
Goodwill and other intangibles 21,571 21,205
Deferred tax asset, net of current portion 26,358 25,721
Other long-term assets 378 642
Total assets $ 93553 $ 96,844
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 4,448 $ 4,897
Due to — related party — 252
Accrued liabilities 4,420 5,130
Current portion of deferred revenue 3,908 4,584
Line of credit 4,798 48
Other short-term borrowings, including currenttpor of
long-term note payable 132 141
Total current liabilities 17,706 15,052
Long-term note payable, net of current portion 369 227
Deferred revenue, net of current portion, and other 11,298 12,754
Total liabilities 29,373 28,033
Commitments and contingencies
Non-Controlling Interest 13,659 15,679
Public Common Stock subject to redemption 3,405 —
Stockholders' equity:
Preferred stock, $.01 par value, 2,500,000 steart®rized; none

issued or outstanding — —
Common stock, $.01 par value, 7,500,000 sharémarnéd, none

issued or outstanding — —
Public common stock, $.01 par value, 7,500,000eshauthorized,

5,845,931 and 6,342,205 shares issued and outstpmdspectively 58 63
Additional paid-in capital 217,588 222,297
Accumulated other comprehensive income 580 283
Accumulated deficit (171,110 (169,519

Total stockholders' equity 47,116 53,132
Total liability and stockholders' equity $ 93,553 $ 96,844

See accompanying notes to consolidated financigdrsents.
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HESKA CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Year Ended December 31,

2012 2013 2014
Revenue:
Core companion animal health $ 61,502 $ 66,404 $ 54,3
Other vaccines, pharmaceuticals and products 31,30 11,935 17,483
Total revenue, net 72,805 78,339 89,837
Cost of revenue 41,704 47,707 54,122
Gross profit 31,101 30,632 35,715
Operating expenses:
Selling and marketing 18,339 19,428 19,159
Research and development 958 1,500 1,414
General and administrative 9,646 11,134 12,231
Total operating expenses 28,943 32,062 32,804
Operating income (loss) 2,158 (1,430) 2911
Interest and other (income) expense, net 135 (37) 39) (
Income (loss) before income taxes 2,023 (1,393) 2,950
Income tax expense:
Current income tax expense 214 183 47
Deferred income tax expense (benefit) 606 (637) 304,
Total income tax expense (benefit) 820 (454) 1,35
Net income (los: $ 1,203 (939) $ 1,599
Net income (loss) attributable to r-controlling interest — 257 (1,004)
Net income (loss) attributable to Heska Corporz 1,203 (1,196) 2,603
Basic net income (loss) per share attributabledekid
Corporation $ 0.23 (0.2 $ 0.44
Diluted net income (loss) per share attributableléska
Corporation $ 0.22 (0.2 $ 0.41
Weighted average outstanding shares used to corbpsie net
income (loss) per share attributable to Heska Gaitjmm 5,326 5,755 5,951
Weighted average outstanding shares used to cordjputed net
income (loss) per share attributable to Heska Gaitjfmm 5,489 5,755 6,409

See accompanying notes to consolidated financigdrsents.
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HESKA CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LO SS)
(in thousands)

Year Ended December 31,

2012 2013 2014

Net income (lost $ 1,203 % (939) $ 1,599
Other comprehensive income (expense):

Minimum pension liability (20) 182 —

Unrealized gain (loss) on available for sale itwvesnts — 30 3

Foreign currency translation 74 72 (300)
Comprehensive income (loss) $ 1,257 $ (655) $ 1,302
Comprehensive income (loss) attributable to nortretiing interest $ —  $ 257 % (1,004)
Comprehensive income (loss) attributable to Heslap@ration $ 1,257 $ (912) $ 2,306

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@gsients.
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HESKA CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
(in thousands)

Accumulated

Additional Other Total
Common Stock Paid-in Comprehensive Accumulated  Stockholders'
Shares Amount Capital Income (Loss) Deficit Equity
Balances, January 1, 2012 5,250 52 217,778 242 (169,633 48,439
Net incomi (loss) — — — — 1,203 1,203
Issuance of common stock related to options, ESPP
and other 122 2 388 — — 390
Recognition of stock based compensation — — 378 — — 378
Dividends paid — — — — (1,602 (1,602
Minimum pension liability adjustments — — — (20) — (20)
Foreign currency translation adjustments — — — 74 — 74
Balances, December 31, 2012 5,372 54 218,544 296 (170,032 48,862
Net income (lost — — — — (939) (939)
Issuance of common stock related to options, ESPP
and other 55 — 323 — — 323
Recognition of stock based compensation — — 423 — — 423
Stock issued for Heska Imaging 419 4 3,571 — — 3,575
Stock issued for Heska Imaging Mark to Market — — (3,405 — — (3,405
Accretion of non-controlling interest — — (1,868 — — (1,868
Accrued distribution for Heska Imaging minority — — — — (139) (139)
Minimum pension liability adjustments — — — 182 — 182
Unrealized gain on available for sale investments — — — 30 — 30
Foreign currency translation adjustments — — — 72 — 72
Balances, December 31, 2013 5,846 58 217,588 580 (171,110 47,116
Net income (los: — — — — 1,599 1,599
Issuance of common stock related to options, ESPP
and other 496 5 1,443 — — 1,448
Recognition of stock based compensation — — 1,881 — — 1,881
Stock issued for Heska Imaging Mark to Market — — 3,405 — — 3,405
Accretion of non-controlling interest — — (2,020) — — (2,020)
Accrued distribution for Heska Imaging minority — — — — — —
Minimum pension liability adjustments — — — — — —
Unrealized gain on available for sale investments — — — 3 — 3
Foreign currency translation adjustments — — — (300) — (300)
Balances, December 31, 2014 6,348 63 $ 222,297 $ 283 $ (169,511 $ 53,132

See accompanying notes to consolidated financtersients.
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HESKA CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in thousands)

Year Ended December 31,

2012 2013 2014
CASH FLOWS PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING
ACTIVITIES:
Net income (lost $ 1,203 $ 939 $ 1,599
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to qasivided by
(used in) operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 1,699 2,497 3,712
Deferred tax (benefit) expense 606 (637) 1,304
Stock based compensation 378 42°% 1,881
Unrealized (gain) loss on foreign currency tratish 46 2C (81)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable (3,099) (159 (510)
Inventories (1,405) (1,687 (5,592)
Other current assets (1,551) (642) (73)
Accounts payable 1,298 (2,276 900
Accrued liabilities and other 741 (130 814
Other non-current assets — (179 (263)
Deferred revenue and other (285) 2,317 2,091
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activ (369) (1,399 5,782
CASH FLOWS PROVIDED BY (USED IN) INVESTING
ACTIVITIES:
Investment in subsidiary — (3,019 —
Purchases of property and equipment (1,509) (1,930 (2,337)
Proceeds from disposition of property and equigmen — 5,02( 6
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activ (1,509) 71 (2,331)
CASH FLOWS PROVIDED BY (USED IN) FINANCING
ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from issuance of common stock, net ailalisions 390 32¢ 1,430
Proceeds from (repayments of) line of credit baings, net 2,552 2,24¢ (4,751)
Proceeds from (repayments of) other debt — (1,025 (178)
Dividends paid to stockholders (1,602) — —
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activ 1,340 1,54¢ (3,499)
EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON CASH (10) 14 (114)
INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (548) 23z (162)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 6,332 5,78¢ 6,016
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR $ 5784  $ 6,01¢ $ 5,855
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Cash paid for interest $ 7 $ 7€ % 92
Cash paid for income taxes $ 153  §$ 84 $ 272
Non-cash transfer of inventory to property and equipnaad other
long-term assets $ 1,327  $ 395( $ 4,598
Prepaid applied to acquisition of Heska Imaging $ —  $ 1,000 % —

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@sdsents.
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HESKA CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. ORGANIZATION AND BUSINESS

Heska Corporation ("Heska" or the "Company") depsjananufactures, markets, sells and supports
veterinary products. Heska's core focus is orcéimne and feline companion animal health markets.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statemiectade the accounts of the Company, its
wholly-owned subsidiaries and its majority-ownetdsdiaries since their respective dates of acqomst
All material intercompany transactions and balar@ege been eliminated in consolidation. Where the
Company's ownership of a subsidiary is less th@94d,@he non-controlling interest is reported on the
Company's consolidated balance sheets. The ndmetiog interest in the Company's consolidated net
income is reported as "Net income (loss) attribletédn non-controlling interest”" on the Company's
consolidated statements of operations.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conféymiith accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America requires manageneemake estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, theloksire of contingent assets and liabilities atdate of the
financial statements and the reported amountsveihtges and expenses during the reporting periaduah
results could differ from those estimates. Sigaifit estimates are required when establishingllibveance
for doubtful accounts and the provision for exagissblete inventory, in determining the period owéich
the Company's obligations are fulfilled under agrepts to license product rights and/or technolagjyts,
evaluating long-lived and intangible assets forampent, determining the allocation of purchasegptinder
purchase accounting, estimating the expense agswewth the granting of stock options and in deieing
the need for, and the amount of, a valuation alimezon deferred tax assets.

Trade Accounts Receivable

Trade accounts receivable are recorded at thedes@mount. The allowance for doubtful accounts
is the Company's best estimate of the amount dfgirie credit losses in the Company's existing ausou
receivable. The Company determines the allowaasedon historical write-off experience. The Conypa
reviews its allowance for doubtful accounts monthBast due balances over 90 days and over aiggecif
amount are reviewed individually for collectabilitAccount balances are charged against the allosvafter
all means of collection have been exhausted anddtemntial for recovery is considered remote. The
Company does not have any off-balance-sheet argisure related to its customers.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject@mmpany to a concentration of credit risk consiist o
cash and cash equivalents and accounts receivabkeCompany maintains the majority of its cash eash
equivalents with financial institutions that manangmt believes are creditworthy in the form of dechan
deposits. The Company has no significant off-begasheet concentrations of credit risk such asgore
exchange contracts, options contracts or othergioreurrency hedging arrangements. Its accouctivable
balances are due primarily from domestic veterimdinics and individual veterinarians, and both @stic
and international corporations.
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HESKA CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are stated at cost, apfrioximates market, and include short-term,
highly liquid investments with original maturitie$ less than three months. The Company valueglite
and Japanese Yen cash accounts at the spot mandiginf exchange rate as of each balance sheetndtite,
changes due to foreign exchange fluctuations recbird current earnings. The Company held 321,41 a
652,110 Euros at December 31, 2013 and 2014, rbaglgc The Company held 1,252,220 and 1,252,221
Yen at December 31, 2013 and 2014, respectivelye Jompany held 209,486 and 166,832 Swiss Francs
at December 31, 2013 and 2014, respectively. Tdrepany held 0 and 22,761 Canadian Dollars at
December 31, 2013 and 2014, respectively. The majfrthe Company's cash and cash equivalents are
held at U.S.-based or Swiss-based financial ingita in accounts not insured by governmental iestit

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company's financial instruments consist of @aghcash equivalents, short-term trade
receivables and payables and the Company's regalivie of credit. The carrying values of cash aagh
equivalents and short-term trade receivables apahbes approximate fair value. The fair valuehsf t
Company's line of credit balance is estimated baseclirrent rates available for similar debt withikar
maturities and collateral, and at December 31, 20132014, approximates the carrying value due
primarily to the floating rate of interest on sud#bt instruments.

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or etauking the first-in, first-out method. Inventory
manufactured by the Company includes the cost eériad, labor and overhead. If the cost of inveie®

exceeds estimated fair value, provisions are madeduce the carrying value to estimated fair value

Inventories, net consist of the following (in thansls):

December 31,

2013 2014
Raw materials $ 5787 $ 6,298
Work in process 2,92( 2,966
Finished goods 4,78¢ 4,949
Allowance for excess or obsolete inventory (1,809 (1,555)
$ 11,68 % 12,658

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost améclafed on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful lives of the related assets. diedd improvements are amortized over the applkcabl
lease period or their estimated useful lives, wineh is shorter. Maintenance and repairs are eldaxg
expense when incurred, and major renewals and waptents are capitalized.
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HESKA CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

Property and equipment consist of the followingtfiousands):

December 31,

Estimated

Useful Life 2013 2014
Land N/A $ 377 $ 377
Building 10 to 20 years 2,868 2,868
Machinery and equipment 3 to 15 years 36,107 30,655
Leasehold and building improvements 7 to 15 years 5,838 5,871
Construction in progress 753 185

45,943 39,956

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (36,015) (26,546)

$ 9,928 $ 13,410

The Company has utilized marketing programs wheistpstruments in inventory may be placed
in a customer's location on a rental basis. Tlst @these instruments is transferred to machiaady
equipment or other long-term assets and deprecigtgidally over a five to seven year period depegd
on the circumstance under which the instrumeniasgal with the customer. During 2012, 2013 andi201
total costs transferred from inventory were apprately $1.3 million, $3.9 million and $4.6 million,
respectively.

The Company has sold certain customer rental aisteand underlying assets to a third party under
the agreement that once the customer has met shenoer obligations under the contract, ownershifhef
assets underlying the contract would be returngdgdCompany. The Company enters a debit to aagh a
a corresponding credit to deferred revenue atithe of these sales. These sales provided $1.iomadhd
$1.8 million of cash which was reported in the ‘&teéd revenue and other" line item of the Company's
consolidated statements of cash flows in 2013 &1d 2respectively, all related to the Company'$%#.
owned subsidiary, Heska Imaging US, LLC. As thenPany anticipates it will regain ownership of the
assets underlying these sales, it reports thestsass part of property and equipment and depescihese
assets per its depreciation policies. The Compauy$1.3 million of net property and equipment $8d
million of net property and equipment related tesh transactions as December 31, 2013 and Dec@&hper
2014, respectively, all related to the Company:$%downed subsidiary, Heska Imaging US, LLC.

Depreciation and amortization expense for propanty equipment was $1.7 million, $2.5 million
and $3.7 million for the years ended December 81222013 and 2014, respectively.

Capitalized Software

The Company capitalizes third-party software costere appropriate, and reports such capitalized
costs, net of accumulated amortization, on thep'pry and equipment" line of its consolidated beéan
sheets. The Company had $791 thousand and $583athd of such capitalized costs, net of accumulated
amortization, on the "property and equipment” lbhé&s consolidated balance sheets as of Deceniher 3
2013 and December 31, 2014, respectively. Capatlsoftware costs in a given year are reportetien
"purchases of property and equipment” line iterthefCompany's consolidated statements of cash flows
The Company had $11 thousand, $809 thousand anth&384and of capitalized software costs reported on
the "purchases of property and equipment” line ibéis consolidated statements of cash flowstier t
years ended December 31, 2012, 2013 and 2014 ctasbhe
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HESKA CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

Realizability of Long-Lived Assets

The Company continually evaluates whether everdscanumstances have occurred that indicate
the remaining estimated useful life of long-livestets may warrant revision, or that the remainalgrize
of these assets may not be recoverable. When deeecessary, the Company completes this evaluation
by comparing the carrying amount of the assets tghestimated undiscounted future cash flows
associated with them. If such evaluations inditiaée the future undiscounted cash flows of amahbtie
long-lived assets are not sufficient to recoverdaeying value of such assets, the assets arstad;jto
their estimated fair values.

Goodwill

Goodwill is subject to an annual assessment foaimpent or sooner if there is an indication of
impairment. Impairment is indicated when the cagyamount of the related reporting unit is gredten
its estimated fair value.

The Company's recorded goodwill relates to the lratyr2013 acquisition of a majority interest in
Cuattro Veterinary USA, LLC, which was subsequentlyamed Heska Imaging US, LLC and the 1997
acquisition of Heska AG, the Company's Swiss suéasid This goodwill is reviewed at least annuddy
impairment. This impairment assessment is conglatehe reporting unit level. The Company congadet
its annual analysis of the Company's Swiss subrgidistimating that the fair value of the reportumgt
exceeds the carrying value of the reporting urdluding goodwill at December 15, 2014 and deterchine
there was no indicated impairment. The key inputhe estimated fair value included estimatesitfre
profitability for the reporting unit as well as d@unt rate and operating income terminal multiplae
Company also determined there is no indicatiomfairment for goodwill related to the acquisitidn o
Cuattro Veterinary USA, LLC at December 15, 20T4e key inputs to the estimated fair value included
estimates of future profitability for the reportingit as well as discount rate and operating inctemainal
multiple. At December 31, 2013 and 2014, goodwdk approximately $21.0 million and $21.0 million,
respectively, and was included in the assets o€dre Companion Animal Health segment. There @an b
no assurance that future goodwill impairments mall occur if projected financial results are not,noe
otherwise.

Revenue Recognition

The Company generates its revenues through sal®dficts and services, licensing and sale of
product and technology rights, and research andldement services. Revenue is accounted for in
accordance with the guidelines provided by SEC fazadion of Staff Accounting Bulletins, Topic 13:
Revenue Recognition. The Company's policy is togeize revenue when the applicable revenue
recognition criteria have been met, which generaltjude the following:

» Persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists;
» Delivery has occurred or services rendered,;

* Price is fixed or determinable; and

» Collectability is reasonably assured.
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HESKA CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

Revenue from the sale of products is generallygeized after both the goods are shipped to the
customer and acceptance has been received, ifedgwith an appropriate provision for estimatetdmes
and other allowances. The terms of the custommangements generally pass title and risk of ownitsh
the customer at the time of shipment. Certainarust arrangements provide for acceptance provisions
Revenue for these arrangements is not recognizildhenacceptance has been received or the aceapta
period has lapsed. The Company maintains an atlogvéor sales returns based upon its customeri@slic
and historical experience. Shipping and handlmgicharged to customers are included as revande,
the related costs are recorded as a componensbbtproducts sold.

In addition to its direct sales force, the Compatiyzes distributors to sell its products.
Distributors purchase goods from the Company, tdlketo those goods and resell them to their qusis
in the distributors' territory.

Upfront payments received by the Company undengaments for product, patent or technology
rights in which the Company retains an intereshenunderlying product, patent or technology arigilly
deferred, and revenue is subsequently recognizedtbe estimated life of the agreement, produdernia
or technology. Similarly, upfront payments receiygy the Company under agreements where the
Company is obligated to maintain a product or tetdgy sold to a third party and/or transfer knowvhar
technology to a third party are initially deferraad revenue is subsequently recognized over tiraagsd
life of the agreement. Milestone payments rel&besh improvement in a product in which the Company
retains an interest in the product are initiallfedieed and recognized over the estimated life ef th
agreement or product. The Company received up&odtmilestone payments totaling $0.0, $7.0 million
and $3.0 million in 2012, 2013 and 2014, respebtivRevenue from royalties is recognized as the
Company is informed of sales on which it is enditle royalties.

For multiple-element arrangements that are noestilp a higher level of authoritative literature,
the Company follows the authoritative guidancedctounting for revenue arrangements with multiple
deliverables in determining the separate unitxobanting. For those arrangements subject to apjpte
separation criteria, the Company must determinghenghe various elements meet the criteria to be
accounted for as separate elements. If the elsncannot be separated, revenue is recognized once
revenue recognition criteria for the entire arranget have been met or over the period that the @agip
obligations to the customer are fulfilled, as appiate. If the elements are determined to be siparthe
revenue is allocated to the separate elements loasexfative fair value and recognized separatayefch
element when the applicable revenue recognitideréiihave been met. In accounting for these pialti
element arrangements, the Company must make detgiaris about whether elements can be accounted
for separately and make estimates regarding tekitive fair values.

Cost of Products Sold

Royalties payable in connection with certain licegsaagreements (see Note 9) are reflected in cost
of products sold as incurred.
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HESKA CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

Sock-Based Compensation

During the years ended December 31, 2012, 2012@hd, the Company's operating income and
income before income taxes were reduced by $31&tral, $423 thousand and $1.9 million, respectively
and net income was reduced by $219 thousand, $888and and $1.2 million, respectively, for
compensation related to stock options issued aagkslissued under our employee stock purchase plan.
Basic and diluted earnings per share were redug&® 194 and $0.04 in 2012, $0.07 and $0.07 in 2018
$0.20 and $0.19 in 2014, respectively. For alrygaesented, there was no material impact onftash
from operations. Cash flow from financing actiegtiwas increased by approximately $386 thousand,
$312 thousand and $1.4 million in the years endeckhber 31, 2012, 2013 and 2014. At December 31,
2014, the Company had two stock-based compengaiaos. See Note 7 for a description of these plans
and additional disclosures regarding the plans.

Advertising Costs

The Company expenses advertising costs as incuAeédertising expenses were $701 thousand,
$386 thousand and $111 thousand for the years ddeleember 31, 2012, 2013 and 2014, respectively.

Income Taxes

The Company records a current provision for incémxes based on estimated amounts payable or
refundable on tax returns filed or to be filed egebr. Deferred tax assets and liabilities aregeized for
the future tax consequences attributable to diffege between the financial statement carrying afsafn
existing assets and liabilities and their resped@ax bases and operating loss and tax creditfoanrgrds.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measuried) @nacted tax rates, in each tax jurisdictiopeeked to
apply to taxable income in the years in which theseporary differences are expected to be recovared
settled. The effect on deferred tax assets abdities of a change in tax rates is recognizedperations
in the period that includes the enactment datee Gverall change in deferred tax assets and lisilfor
the period measures the deferred tax expense efibim the period. Deferred tax assets are redury a
valuation allowance based on a judgmental assesshawailable evidence if the Company is unable to
conclude that it is more likely than not that samnall of the deferred tax assets will be realized.

Basic and Diluted Net Income (Loss) Per Share

Basic net income (loss) per common share is cordpuging the weighted average number of
common shares outstanding during the period. &iluet income (loss) per share is computed using th
sum of the weighted average number of shares ofrmomnstock outstanding, and, if not anti-dilutiviee t
effect of outstanding common stock equivalentsi{sagstock options and warrants) determined usiag t
treasury stock method.

For the twelve months ended December 31, 2012 @hd, 2he Company reported net income
attributable to Heska Corporation and thereforleitite common stock equivalent securities, as cdegbu
using the treasury method (but excluding optionguichase fractional shares resulting from the
Company's December 2010 1-for-10 reverse stock,splkre added to basic weighted average shares
outstanding for the period to derive the weighteerage shares for diluted earnings per share eionl
Common stock equivalent securities other than aptto purchase fractional shares that were anttrad
for the twelve months ended December 31, 2012 Atd,2and therefore excluded, were outstanding
options to purchase 643,094 and 367,225 sharemuion stock, respectively. These securities die an
dilutive primarily due to exercise prices greatert the average trading price of the Company's camm
stock during the twelve months ended December @12 2nd 2014.
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HESKA CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

For the twelve months ended December 31, 2013 tmepany reported a net loss attributable to
Heska Corporation and therefore all common stockvatent securities would be anti-dilutive and were
not included in the diluted earnings per shareutaton for the period. Common stock equivalent
securities other than options to purchase fractisimares that were anti-dilutive for the twelve rifen
ended December 31, 2013, and therefore excluded, autstanding options to purchase 1,321,232 shares
of common stock.

Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Comprehensive income (loss) includes net incomassefjl for the results of certain stockholders'
equity changes. Such changes include foreign cyrigems and minimum pension liability adjustments
At December 31, 2012, Accumulated Other Comprekerisicome (Loss) consists of $912 thousand gain
for cumulative translation adjustments, $629 thaddass for unrealized pension liability and
$13 thousand of unrealized gain on available ft& swestments. At December 31, 2013, Accumulated
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) consists of $88dsand gain for cumulative translation adjustsient
$447 thousand loss for unrealized pension liabéitg $43 thousand of unrealized gain on availabledle
investments. At December 31, 2014, AccumulateceOffomprehensive Income (Loss) consists of
$683 thousand gain for cumulative translation adjests, $447 thousand loss for unrealized pension
liability and $47 thousand of unrealized gain onikable for sale investments.

Foreign Currency Translation

The functional currency of the Company's Swiss isiidy is the Swiss Franc. Assets and
liabilities of the Company's Swiss subsidiary aamslated using the exchange rate in effect abalence
sheet date. Revenue and expense accounts anfioseshre translated using an average of exchaatgs r
in effect during the period. Cumulative translatgains and losses are shown in the consolidateddz
sheets as a separate component of stockholdeity.efxchange gains and losses arising from tretiewas
denominated in foreign currencies (i.e., transacgains and losses) are recognized as a compohent o
other income (expense) in current operations, @agx@hange gains and losses on intercompany
transactions expected to be settled in the near. ter

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting StandardsrBessued Accounting Standards Update
("ASU") No. 2014-09, "Revenue from Contracts withstbmers", which provides guidance for revenue
recognition that supersedes existing revenue retoigrguidance (but does not apply to nor supersede
accounting guidance for lease contracts). The /A30 be effective for reporting periods beginnafter
December 15, 2016, and is anticipated be applieds@ectively to each prior reporting period preésdror
retrospectively with the cumulative effect of ialty applying the ASU recognized at the date diiahi
application. The Company has not evaluated the ¢inpiathe adoption of this ASU on the Company's
consolidated results.

In August 2014, the Financial Accounting Standadard issued ASU No. 2014-15, "Presentation
of Financial Statements - Going Concern: Disclosateout an Entity's Ability to Continue as a Going
Concern." The new standard requires managemgertorm interim and annual assessments of an &sntity
ability to continue as a going concern within oearyof the date the financial statements are isasedl|
as certain disclosures if conditions or eventseraigstantial doubt about the entity's abilitydatmue as a
going concern. The new guidance is effective forual periods ending after December 15, 2016, and
interim periods thereafter. The Company has naluated the impact of the adoption of this ASU loa t
Company's consolidated results.
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HESKA CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
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3. ACQUISITION AND RELATED PARTY ITEMS

On February 24, 2013, the Company acquired a 5&@8est in Cuattro Veterinary USA, LLC
("Cuattro Vet USA") for approximately $7.6 millian cash and stock, including more than $4 million i
cash (the "Acquisition"). Immediately following éiias a result of the transaction, former CuattrolV®A
unit holders owned approximately 7.2% of the ComyfsaRublic Common Stock. The remaining minority
position (45.4%) in Cuattro Vet USA is subject torghase by Heska under performance-based puts and
calls following calendar year 2015, 2016 and 20%Rould Heska undergo a change in control, as eldfin
prior to the end of 2017, Cuattro Vet USA minoutyit holders will be entitled to sell their Cuativet
USA units to Heska at the highest call value theylad have otherwise obtained.

The Company accounted for the acquisition purstteASC No. 805, "Business Combinations."
Accordingly, it recorded assets acquired, lial@itassumed and non-controlling interests at tisémated
fair values. The intangible assets and non-cdirtgointerest were valued based on a report from an
independent third party. The following summarittes aggregate consideration paid by the Company and
the allocation of the purchase price (in thousands)

Consideration

Cash $ 4,073
Stock 3,571
Total $ 7,644
Inventories $ 1,466
Notes from Cuattro Veterinary, LLC, due March 161¢ 1,360
Other tangible assets 1,278
Intangible assets 688
Goodwill 19,994
Notes payable and other borrowi (1,527)
Accounts payable (1,424)
Other assumed liabilities (2,399)
Total Net Assets Acquired $ 19,436
Non-controlling interest (11,792)
Total $ 7,644

Intangible assets and their amortization periodsaarfollows:

Useful Life
(in years) Fair Value
Trade name 2.75 $ 688
$ 688
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The Company believes goodwill is a function of sal/éactors. Cuattro Vet USA had assembled a
workforce highly knowledgeable in the veterinanaging area. These individuals had acquired the
training necessary to identify opportunities fog thuattro Vet USA to sell products, including tram
related to which components from existing systemgd:be utilized within the Cuattro Vet USA's sdabut
to minimize the out-of-pocket cost to the custom@uattro Vet USA had demonstrated an ability to
combine disparate assets including but not limitedigital radiography detectors, positioning aidash as
tunnels and tables, viewing computers and othexsscries along with embedded software and support,
data hosting and other services to provide custemith a simple, efficient and convenient experéeeimc
utilizing advanced data imaging technology fariess of what a typical customer could have created
individually with similar but separately purchasessets and services. The Company anticipatedibgndl
and cross promotion programs, including potentiglgne customer contract, could enhance the revefiu
both the Company and Cuattro Vet USA following Aauisition. The ability of Cuattro Vet USA to
generate estimated future cash flows due to treeters supports the goodwill calculated at theictpsf
the Acquisition and the current carrying valuels# goodwill on the Company's consolidated balance
sheets. The Company estimates it had approxim&é®/million in tax deductible goodwill from the
Acquisition at the closing of the Acquisition.

Cuattro Vet USA was subsequently renamed HeskaiimgagS, LLC ("Heska Imaging") and
markets, sells and supports digital radiographywtrdsound products along with embedded softwade a
support, data hosting and other services.

Shawna M. Wilson, Clint Roth, DVM, Steven M. Asakory Rodney A. Lippincott, Kevin S.
Wilson and Cuattro, LLC own approximately 29.75%3%%0, 4.09%, 3.07%, 0.05% and 0.05% of Heska
Imaging, respectively. Kevin S. Wilson is the Ghisecutive Officer and President of the Compang an
the spouse of Shawna M. Wilson. Steven M. Asakpwérves as Executive Vice President, Companion
Animal Health Sales for the Company. Rodney A pliigott serves as Executive Vice President,
Companion Animal Health Sales for the Company. Wilson, Mrs. Wilson and trusts for their children
and family own a 100% interest in Cuattro, LLC. a@ito, LLC owns a 100% interest in Cuattro Software
LLC. Mr. Wilson, Mrs. Wilson and trusts for theihildren and family own a majority interest in Cuat
Veterinary, LLC and Cuattro Medical, LLC.

In 2013, following the Acquisition closing, Cuattid C charged Heska Imaging $6.8 million,
primarily related to digital imaging products, fwhich there is an underlying supply contract with
minimum purchase obligations, software and sernédsasell as other operating expenses; Heska
Corporation charged Heska Imaging $2.2 milliongranily related to sales expenses; Heska Corporation
net charged Cuattro, LLC $140 thousand, primaglgted to facility usage and other services. 11420
Cuattro, LLC charged Heska Imaging $10.5 millionpyarily related to digital imaging products, for
which there is an underlying supply contract witimimum purchase obligations, software and sendees
well as other operating expenses; Heska Corporatiarged Heska Imaging $3.9 million, primarily teth
to sales expenses; Heska Corporation net chargatir@U_LC $219 thousand, primarily related to fiagi
usage and other services.

At December 31, 2014, Heska Imaging had a $1.53amiliote receivable, including accrued
interest, from Cuattro Veterinary, LLC, which isedan March 15, 2016 and which is listed as "Note
receivable - related party" on the Company's cadat@d balance sheets; Heska Imaging had accounts
receivable from Cuattro Software, LLC of $871 themu$, which is included in "Due from - related pesti
on the Company's consolidated balance sheets; Haskmration had net accounts receivable from
Cuattro, LLC of $21 thousand which is included Dué from - related parties" on the Company's
consolidated balance sheets; Heska Imaging haacnetints payable to Cuattro, LLC of $252 thousand
which is included in "Due to - related party" o tGompany's consolidated balance sheets; Heska
Corporation had accounts receivable from Heska imgagf $6.1 million, including accrued interest, iatn
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eliminated in consolidation of the Company's finahstatements; all monies owed accrue intereisteat
same interest rate Heska Corporation pays underetht and security agreement with Wells FargolBan
National Association ("Wells Fargo") once past duin the exception of the note receivable, which
accrues at this rate to its maturity date.

The aggregate position in Heska Imaging of the hbolitlers who hold the 45.4% of Heska Imaging
that Heska Corporation does not own (the "Put Valisebeing accreted to its estimated redemptidoesa
in accordance with Heska Imaging's Operating AgesgmSince the Operating Agreement contains certai
put rights that are out of the control of the Compaauthoritative guidance requires the non-coltml
interest, which includes the estimated value ohud rights, to be displayed outside of the egségtion
of the consolidated balance sheets. The adjusttoémtrease or decrease the Put Value to its ¢ggec
redemption value and to estimate any distributiegsiired under Heska Imaging's Operating Agreeraent
the unit holders who hold the 45.4% of Heska Imgdirat Heska Corporation does not own (the "Imaging
Minority") each reporting period is recorded tocktioolders' equity in accordance with United States
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles.

The following is a reconciliation of the non-corilireg interest balance (in thousands):

Beginning at December 31, 2013 $ 13,659
Accretion of Put Value 2,020
Balance at December 31, 2014 $ 15,679

In addition, Heska Imaging made a distribution gbr@ximately $2 thousand during the twelve
months ended December 31, 2014, approximately&istimd of which was to the Imaging Minority and
which has been recorded on the "Proceeds fromnissuat common stock, net of distributions" linemtef
the Company's consolidated statements of cash flows

Cuattro Vet USA generated net revenue of $26.4anithnd net loss of $1.6 million, inclusive of
net loss of $747 thousand attributable to non-adiimig interest, for the period from February 2813 to
December 31, 2014. The following unaudited proi@financial information presents the combined
results of the Company and Cuattro Vet USA, in samals, as if the Acquisition had closed on
January 1, 2012.

Year Ended December 31,

2013 2014
Revenue, net $ 79,239 % 89,837
Net income (loss) attributable to Heska Corpor: (1,948) 2,603
Basic earnings (loss) per share attributable tekBl€orporation $ (0.34) % 0.44
Diluted earnings (loss) per share attributableléska Corporation (0.34) 0.41

4. CREDIT FACILITY AND LONG-TERM DEBT

The Company has a credit and security agreemehtWiélls Fargo which expires December 31, 2015.
The agreement includes a $15.0 million asset-beserlving line of credit with a stated interesterat
December 31, 2014 of LIBOR plus 3.75% (4.125%)e Tompany anticipates the stated interest rate will
decline to LIBOR plus 2.75% as of April 1, 2015 éd®n the terms of credit and security agreemesht an
the Company's 2014 financial performance. Theamiannual minimum interest charge of $100 thousand
under the agreement. Amounts due under the deaility are secured by a first security interest i
essentially all of the Company's assets excludesgta securing the term debt referenced below hakic

an obligation of Heska Imaging and which was ouatitag when the Company acquired a majority interest
in Heska Imaging. Under the agreement, the Comgsargquired to comply with certain covenants, both
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financial and non-financial. Among the financiavenants through December 31, 2014 are requirements
for minimum capital monthly, minimum net income oealy and capital expenditures monthly. Beginning
January 1, 2015 a key financial covenant is basegl foxed charge coverage ratio, as defined ircthdit

and security agreement with Wells Fargo. The amavailable for borrowings under the line of credit
varies based upon available cash, eligible accoantivable and eligible inventory. As of DecemBgy
2014, there was $48 thousand of borrowings outstgrahd there was approximately $8.8 million
available capacity for borrowings under the linedit agreement.

Long-term debt consists of the following (dollanghousands):

December 31,

2013 2014
Term loan with a financial entity, secured by demgoipment, due
in monthly installments beginning July 2012 witle thalance
paid in full in June 2017 and a stated interest ct6.0%. $ 501 $ 368
Less current portion of long-term debt 132 141
Long-term debt, net of current portion $ 369 $ 227

Maturities of long-term debt as of December 31,2@&re as follows (in thousands):

Year Ending December 31,

2015 $ 141
2016 149
2017 78

$ 368

5. SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF INTEREST AND OTHER EX PENSE (INCOME)
INFORMATION

Year Ended December 31,
2012 2013 2014
(in thousands)

Interest and other expense (income):

Interest income $ (95 $ 127) $ (190)
Interest expense 117 74 206
Other, net 113 16 (55)

$ 135 § (37 $ (39)

6. INCOME TAXES

As of December 31, 2014, the Company had a domastioperating loss carryforward ("NOL"),
of approximateh$108.4million, a domestic alternative minimum tax creafitapproximately
$307 thousand and a domestic research and deveibpemecredit carryforward of approximately
$472 thousand for federal tax purposes. The Coypéederal NOL is expected to expire as follows if
unused: $102.5 million in 2018 through 2022, $&illion in 2024 and 2025 and $385 thousand in 2027.
The NOL and tax credit carryforwards are subjedlternative minimum tax limitations and to
examination by the tax authorities. In additidre Company had a "change of ownership" as definddru
the provisions of Section 382 of the Internal Rexe@ode of 1986, as amended (an "Ownership Change")
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The Company does not believe this Ownership Chalgplace a significant restriction on its abilitg
utilize its NOL in the future. The Company hasab$ished a valuation allowance against those N€k's
which it is estimated to be more likely than naittthey will expire unutilized.

The Company is subject to income taxes in the féderal jurisdiction, and various foreign, state
and local jurisdictions. Tax regulations withirckgurisdiction are subject to the interpretatidhe
related tax laws and regulations and require sit judgment to apply. In the United States,téhe
years 2011 — 2013 remain open to examination byjettheral Internal Revenue Service and the tax years
2010 — 2013 remain open for various state taxinaaities.

The components of income (loss) before income tasers as follows (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,
2012 2013 2014

Domestic $ 1,869 $ (1,508 $ 2,837
Foreign 154 115 113
$ 2,023 % (1,393) $ 2,950

Temporary differences that give rise to the comptsef deferred tax assets are as follows (in
thousands):

December 31,

2013 2014
Current deferred tax assets:
Inventory $ 692 $ 643
Accrued compensation 131 124
Net operating loss carryforwar— domestic 1,589 1,198
Stock and Stock Options 443 57
Other 695 601
3,550 2,623
Valuation allowance (1,399 (1,139
Total current deferred tax ass $ 2,156 $ 1,489
Noncurrent deferred tax assets:
Research and development tax credit $ 598 $ 472
Alternative minimum tax credit 297 308
Deferred revenue 3,978 4,396
Property and equipment 2,006 1,777
Net operating loss carryforwar— domestic 36,445 39,079
Other 60 (732
43,384 45,300
Valuation allowance (17,026 (19,579
Total noncurrent deferred tax ass $ 26,358 $ 25,721

-62-



HESKA CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

The components of the income tax expense (beaeéitas follows (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2012 2013 2014
Current income tax expen(benefit):

Federal $ 41 $ 9%5 % 11
State 140 62 7
Foreign 33 26 29
Total current expense (benefit) 214 183 47

Deferred income tax expense (benefit):
Federal 560 (583) 1,181
State 46 (54) 123
Foreign — — —
Total deferred expense (benefit) 606 (637) 1,304
Total income tax expense (benefit) $ 820 $ (454) 3 1,351

The Company's income tax expense (benefit) rgjatinncome (loss) for the periods presented
differs from the amounts that would result from lgpyy the federal statutory rate to that incomesgoas
follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2012 2013 2014
Statutory federal tax rate 3% 34 % 34 %
State income taxes, net of federal benefit %A 3 % 5 %
Nonr-controlling interest in Heska Imaging US, LLC — 6 % 12 %
Other permanent differences % (10)% (3)%
Change in tax rate (D)% — % 2 %
Foreign rate difference |5 1) % 0 %
Change in valuation allowance (638 (13)% 78 %
Other 637 % 13 % (82) %
Effective income tax rate 4% 33 % 46 %

ASC 740 provides detailed guidance for the findrst@ement recognition, measurement and
disclosure of uncertain tax positions recognizeth@anfinancial statements. Tax positions must raeet
"more-likely-than-not" recognition threshold bef@denefit is recognized in the financial statermems
of December 31, 2014, the Company has not recadiedbility for uncertain tax positions. The Compa
would recognize interest and penalties relatecht®rtain tax positions in income tax (benefit)/enxgee
No interest and penalties related to uncertairptesitions were accrued at December 31, 2014.

7. CAPITAL STOCK
Sock Option Plans

The Company has two stock option plans which aigb@ranting of stock options and stock
purchase rights to employees, officers, directats@nsultants of the Company to purchase shares of
common stock. In 1997, the board of directors éetbthe 1997 Stock Incentive Plan (the "1997 Plan§
terminated two prior option plans. All shares tleahained available for grant under the terminatads
were incorporated into the 1997 Plan, includingesi@aubsequently cancelled under prior plans. dg M
2012, the stockholders approved an amendment tba@ig Plan allowing for an increase of 250,000 eshar
and an annual increase through 2016 based on thkeamwof non-employee directors serving as of the
Company's Annual Meeting of Stockholders, subjeet maximum of 45,000 shares per year. In May
2003, the stockholders approved a new plan, th8 Eg@iity Incentive Plan, which allows for the giiagt
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of options for up to 239,050 shares of the Comgacymmon stock. The number of shares reserved for
issuance under both plans as of December 31, 28§2&2,026.

The stock options granted by the board of direatoay be either incentive stock options ("1ISOs")
or non-qualified stock options ("NQs"). The exsecprice for options under all of the plans maybédess
than 100% of the fair value of the underlying comnstock for ISOs or 85% of fair value for NQs.
Options granted will expire no later than the tesminiversary subsequent to the date of grant eethr
months following termination of employment, excaptases of death or disability, in which case the
options will remain exercisable for up to twelventits. Under the terms of the 1997 Plan, in theethe
Company is sold or merged, outstanding optionseitiier be assumed by the surviving corporatiovest
immediately.

There are four key inputs to the Black-Scholes rhadhich the Company uses to estimate fair
value for options which it issues: expected tempeeted volatility, risk-free interest rate and ecied
dividends, all of which require the Company to makémates. The Company's estimates for thesésinpu
may not be indicative of actual future performaand changes to any of these inputs can have aiatater
impact on the resulting estimated fair value caltad for the option. The Company's expected taputi
was estimated based on the Company's historicarexge for time from option grant to option exseci
for all employees in 2012, 2013 and 2014; the Campieated all employees in one grouping in akéhr
years. The Company's expected volatility input estimated based on the Company's historical stock
price volatility in 2012, 2013 and 2014. The Comga risk-free interest rate input was determinasklol
on the U.S. Treasury yield curve at the time of@pissuance in 2012, 2013 and 2014. The Company's
expected dividends input were 4.3% in 2012, zer20ih3 and zero in 2014. Weighted average
assumptions used in 2012, 2013 and 2014 for eatttesé four key inputs are listed in the followtagle:

2012 2013 2014
Risk-free interest rate 0.38% 0.75% 1.21%
Expected lives 3.0 years 3.4 years 3.4 years
Expected volatility 57% 46% 43%
Expected dividend yield 4.3% 0% 0%

A summary of the Company's stock option plans,wekoly options to purchase fractional shares
resulting from the Company's December 2010 1-forel@rse stock split, is as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2012 2013 2014

Weighted Weighted Weighted

Average Average Average

Exercise Exercise Exercise

Options Price Options Price Options Price

Outstanding at beginning of period 1,448,67% 10.425 1,245,161 $ 11.054 1,321,232 $ 10.386
Granted at Market 137,950 $ 9.534 275,654 $ 7.532 134,800 $ 16.398
Cancelled (218,330 $ 11.373 (166,286) $ 11.437 (218,926 $ 17.786
Exercised (223,139 $ 5.863 (33,297) $ 6.488 (162,855 $ 7.234
Outstanding at end of period 1,245,161% 11.054 1,321,232 $ 10.386 1,074,251 $ 10.110
Exercisable at end of period 971,029 12.129 939,458 $ 11.556 729,175 $ 9.800
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The total estimated fair value of stock optionawgd during the years ended December 31, 2012,
2013 and 2014 were computed to be approximatel® $d@usand, $701 thousand and $712 thousand,
respectively. The amounts are amortized ratabdy twe vesting periods of the options. The weighte
average estimated fair value of options grantethduhe years ended December 31, 2012, 2013 artl 201
was computed to be approximately $2.92, $2.54 &m2B$respectively. The total intrinsic value ptions
exercised during the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2014 was $1.1 million, $42 thousand and
$737 thousand, respectively. The cash proceedsdpiions exercised during the years ended
December 31, 2012, 2013 and 2014 was $263 thou$afd,thousand and $1.2 million.

The following table summarizes information abootktoptions outstanding and exercisable at
December 31, 2014, excluding outstanding optionsitchase an aggregate of 37.4 fractional shares
resulting from the Company's December 2010 1-forel@rse stock split with a weighted average
remaining contractual life of 0.89 years, a weidghdgerage exercise price of $10.55 and exercisesri
ranging from $4.40 to $22.50. The Company inténdssue whole shares only from option exercises.

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Number of Number of
Options Weighted Options

Outstanding Average Weighted Exercisable Weighted

at Remaining Average at Average

December 31, Contractual Exercise December 31, Exercise

Exercise Prices 2014 Life in Years Price 2014 Price

$ 270-% 7.29 246,696 5.92 $ 5.631 220,240 $ 5.498
$ 730-% 834 231,546 8.67 $ 7.490 84,020 $ 7.669
$ 835-% 9.73 214,800 5.06 $ 8.647 150,408 $ 8.685
$ 9.74 - $15.80 186,682 341 $ 12.481 178,480 $ 12.440
$15.81 - $22.50 194,527 6.33 $ 18.250 96,027 $ 18.374
$ 2.70 - $22.50 1,074,251 5.98 $ 10.110 729,175 $ 9.800

As of December 31, 2014, there was $1.2 milliototd| unrecognized compensation expense
related to outstanding stock options. That coskfgected to be recognized over a weighted-averaged
of 2.0 years with all cost to be recognized byahd of December 2018, assuming all options vest
according to the vesting schedules in place at Dbee 31, 2014. As of December 31, 2014, the agdeeg
intrinsic value of outstanding options was $8.7lionl and the aggregate intrinsic value of exerdiesab
options was $6.1 million.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the "ESPP")

Under the 1997 Employee Stock Purchase Plan, thgp@oay is authorized to issue up to 375,000
shares of common stock to its employees, of whith13%9 had been issued as of December 31, 2014.
Employees of the Company who are expected to widdaat 20 hours per week and five months per year
are eligible to participate. Under the terms @&f pilan, employees can choose to have up to 10%ewnf t
annual base earnings withheld to purchase the Quytgpeommon stock. During the period from
January 1, 2012 to June 30, 2013, the Company'® BS® a five-year offering period and six-month
accumulation periods ending on each June 30 andrbleer 31. The purchase price of stock on June 30
and December 31 was 85% of the fair market valyeiathase.
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Beginning on July 1, 2013, the Company's ESPP Hatraonth offering period and three-month
accumulation periods ending on each March 31, 30n&eptember 30 and December 31. The purchase
price of stock on March 31, June 30, Septembem8ecember 31 was the lesser of (1) 85% of the fai
market value at the time of purchase and (2) thatgr of (i) 95% of the fair market value at thgibaing
of the applicable offering period or (ii) 65% ottfair market value at the time of purchase. ditaah,
participating employees may purchase shares uhddt$PP at the beginning of an applicable offering
period for a purchase price of stock equal to 95%h@fair market value at such time or at 5 pnaatay
other than March 31, June 30, September 30 andnilre31 during the applicable offering period for a
purchase price of stock equal to 95% of the fairkeiavalue at purchase.

Since July 1, 2013, the Company has estimatedathedlues of stock purchase rights granted
under the ESPP using the Black-Scholes pricing iremat the following weighted average assumptions:

2013 2014
Risk-free interest rate 0.21% 0.23%
Expected lives 1.3 years 1.3 years
Expected volatility 34% 34%
Expected dividend yield 0% 0%

For the years ended December 31, 2012, 2013 ary gt weighted-average fair value of the
purchase rights granted was $1.45, $1.28 and $264hare, respectively.

Restricted Stock Issuance

On March 26, 2014, the Company issued 63,572 shafeebert B. Grieve. Ph.D., who is
currently the Company's Executive Chair, pursuamint employment agreement between Dr. Grieve and
the Company effective as of March 26, 2014 (thdée& Employment Agreement™”). The shares were
issued in five tranches and are subject to timedbassting and other provisions outlined in theeGei
Employment Agreement. All shares are to vest iinafsiof April 30, 2017.

On March 26, 2014, the Company issued 110,000 sharer. Wilson pursuant to an employment
agreement between Mr. Wilson and the Company @ffees of March 26, 2014 (the "Wilson Employment
Agreement"). The shares were issued in four emaathes and are subject to time-based vestingiuead
provisions outlined in the Wilson Employment Agresath The first tranche vested on September 26,
2014, and each of the three remaining tranchesvedt on the succeeding March 26 until all shares
vested in full as of March 26, 2017. On May 6,20he Company issued an additional 130,000 shares
Mr. Wilson following a vote of approval on the issite by the Company's stockholders. The shares wer
issued in ten equal tranches, five of which welgextt to vesting based on the achievement of cestaick
price targets as defined and further describedden/ilson Employment Agreement and five of whicthreve
subject to vesting based on certain "Adjusted EBATEargets as defined and further described in the
Wilson Employment Agreement. All shares subjeatdsting based on "Adjusted EBITDA" vested based
on the Company's 2014 performance and one of farehes based on the achievement of certain stock
price targets had vested as of December 31, 2014.
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Restrictions on the transfer of Company stock

The Company's Restated Certificate of Incorpora@gsramended (the "Certificate of
Incorporation™), places restrictions (the "TrandResstrictions™) on the transfer of the Companyslsthat
could adversely affect the Company's ability tdizdiits domestic Federal Net Operating Loss Rasitiln
particular, the Transfer Restrictions prevent thagdfer of shares without the approval of the Cayjsa
Board of Directors if, as a consequence of suatstes, an individual, entity or groups of individsiar
entities would become a 5-percent holder underi@e882 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as
amended, and the related Treasury regulationsalandprevents any existing 5-percent holder from
increasing his or her ownership position in the @any without the approval of the Company's Board of
Directors. Any transfer of shares in violationtloé Transfer Restrictions (a "Transfer Violatioghgall be
void ab initio under the Certificate of Incorporation, and therpany's Board of Directors has procedures
under the Certificate of Incorporation to remedyransfer Violation including requiring the sharesising
such Transfer Violation to be sold and any prafguiting from such sale to be transferred to aittide
entity chosen by the Company's Board of Directorspiecified circumstances.

8. MAJOR CUSTOMERS

One customer represented approximately 12% of tmepany's 2014 revenue and 13% of the
Company's 2013 revenue and another customer repeesapproximately 11% of the Company's 2014
revenue. One customer represented approximatétyafthe Company's accounts receivable at
December 31, 2014 and 12% of the Company's accoeces/able at December 31, 2013 and another
entity represented 16% of the Company's accoun&vable at December 31, 2013. No other customers
represented 10% or more of revenue for 2012, 20284 nor 10% or more of accounts receivable at
December 31, 2013 or December 31, 2014.

9. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company holds certain rights to market and rfzenture all products developed or created
under certain research, development and licengjirepanents with various entities. In connectiormwit
such agreements, the Company has agreed to paptilies royalties on net product sales. In tharye
ended December 31, 2012, 2013 and 2014, royaki®sa3 thousand, $391 thousand and $388 thousand
became payable under these agreements, respectively

The Company has contracts with suppliers for unitimmal annual minimum inventory purchases
and milestone obligations to third parties the Camypbelieves are likely to be triggered currenialing
approximately $4.3 million for fiscal 2015.

The Company has entered into operating leasessfoffice and research facilities and certain
equipment with future minimum payments as of Decan@i, 2014 as follows (in thousands):

Year Ending December 31,

2015 $ 1,861
2016 1,642
2017 1,617
2018 1,513
2019 1,504
Thereafter 5,944
$ 14,081

-67-



HESKA CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

The Company had rent expense of $1.8 million, #iilBon and $1.9 million in 2012, 2013 and
2014, respectively.

From time to time, the Company may be involvedtigdtion relating to claims arising out of its
operations. At December 31, 2014, the Companyngaa party to any legal proceedings that were
expected, individually or in the aggregate, to haveaterial adverse effect on our business, fignci
condition or operating results.

The Company's current terms and conditions ofisalade a limited warranty that its products and
services will conform to published specificationshe time of shipment and a more extensive wayrant
related to certain of its products. The Compagy aklls a renewal warranty for certain of its jicid.

The typical remedy for breach of warranty is toreot or replace any defective product, and if rastgible
or practical, the Company will accept the returnhef defective product and refund the amount paid.
Historically, the Company has incurred minimal vaautly costs. The Company's warranty reserve on
December 31, 2014 was $449 thousand.

10. SEGMENT REPORTING

The Company is comprised of two reportable segmé&ure Companion Animal Health ("CCA")
and Other Vaccines, Pharmaceuticals and Produ@igR"). The Core Companion Animal Health segment
includes diagnostic instruments and supplies, dsagesingle use diagnostic and other tests,
pharmaceuticals and vaccines, primarily for caaing feline use. The CCA segment also includesadigi
radiography and ultrasound products along with etdbd software and support, data hosting and other
services from Heska Imaging after February 24, 2008se products are sold directly by the Compzeny
well as through independent third-party distribatand through other distribution relationships. ACC
segment products manufactured at the Des Moines, fjwoduction facility included in the OVP segment’
assets are transferred at cost and are not recasdedyenue for the OVP segment. The Other Vascine
Pharmaceuticals and Products segment includes@iaael vaccine and pharmaceutical production,
primarily for cattle, but also for other animalgliding small mammals. All OVP products are sold b
third parties under third-party labels.

Summarized financial information concerning the @any's reportable segments is shown in the
following table (in thousands):
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HESKA CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

2012:

Total revenue

Operating income (loss)
Interest expense

Total assets

Net asse!

Capital expenditures
Depreciation and amortization

2013:

Total revenue

Operating income (loss)
Interest expense

Total assets

Net asse!

Capital expenditures
Depreciation and amortization

2014:

Total revenue

Operating income (loss)
Interest expense

Total assets

Net asse!

Capital expenditures
Depreciation and amortization

United States
Europe
Other International

Core Other Vaccines,
Companion Pharmaceuticals
Animal Health and Products Total
$ 61,502 $ 11,303 $ 72,805
1,160 998 2,158
91 26 117
55,071 11,755 66,826
39,726 9,136 48,862
634 875 1,509
862 837 1,699
Core Other Vaccines,
Companion Pharmaceuticals
Animal Health and Products Total
$ 66,404 $ 11,935 $ 78,339
(2,295) 865 (1,430)
45 29 74
81,041 12,512 93,553
37,732 9,384 47,116
512 1,418 1,930
1,691 806 2,497
Core Other Vaccines,
Companion Pharmaceuticals
Animal Health and Products Total
$ 72,354 % 17,483 $ 89,837
1,198 1,713 2,911
153 53 206
85,361 11,483 96,844
44,520 8,612 53,132
1,864 473 2,337
2,954 758 3,712
Total revenue by principal geographic area wa®k®as (in thousands):
For the Years Ended December 31,
2012 2013 2014
$ 64,552 $ 71,713 % 83,584
2,996 2,738 2,264
5,257 3,888 3,989
$ 72805 $ 78,339 % 89,837

Total
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Total assets by principal geographic areas wefellasvs (in thousands):

For the Years Ended December 31,

2012 2013 2014
United States $ 63,980 $ 90,572 $ 93,977
Europe 2,846 2,981 2,867
Other International — — —
Total $ 66,826 $ 93553 $ 96,844

11. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (unaudited)

The following summarizes selected quarterly finahiriformation for each of the two years in the
periods ended December 31, 2013 and 2014 (amautitsusands, except per share data).

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Total
2013:

Total revenue $ 18,979 $ 18,261 $ 17,595 $ 23,504 $ 78,339
Gross profit 7,802 5,020 7,406 10,404 30,632
Operating income (loss) (682 (3,578 75 2,755 (1,430
Net income (loss) (352 (2,467 (18) 1,898 (939
Net income (loss) attributable to Heska

Corporation (386 (2,228 241 1,177 (1,199
Basic net income (loss) per share

attributable to Heska Corporation (0.09 (0.38 0.04 0.20 (0.2)
Diluted net income (loss) per share

attributable to Heska Corporation (0.09 (0.38 0.04 0.20 (0.2)

2014:

Total revenue $ 20,793 $ 22916 $ 21,805 $ 24,323 $ 89,837
Gross profit 8,279 9,077 8,317 10,042 35,715
Operating income (loss) (101 917 341 1,754 2,911
Net income (loss) 273 778 15 1,079 1,599
Net income (loss) attributable to Heska

Corporation 192 1,069 513 829 2,603
Basic net income (loss) per share

attributable to Heska Corporation 0.03 0.18 0.09 0.14 0.44
Diluted net income (loss) per share

attributable to Heska Corporation 0.03 0.17 0.08 0.12 0.41
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountéon Accounting and Financial Disclosure.

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures.
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our management, with the participation of our cleedcutive officer and our chief financial officer,
evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure otsand procedures, as defined by Rule 13a-15eof th
Exchange Act, as of December 31, 2014. Basedis®taluation, our chief executive officer and €hie
financial officer have concluded that our discl@soontrols and procedures are effective to provide
reasonable assurance that information we are estjtordisclose in reports that we file or submidemthe
Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarizedegadted within the time periods specified in 8&C's
rules and forms and that such information is acdated and communicated to our management, including
our chief executive officer and chief financialioffr, as appropriate, to allow timely decisionsaregng
disclosure.

Management's Report on Internal Control Over Finarat Reporting.

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over
financial reporting as defined in Rules 13a-15() 45d-15(f) under the Exchange Act. Under the
supervision and with the participation of our magragnt, including our chief executive officer andeth
financial officer, the Company conducted an evadmatdf the effectiveness of its internal controkov
financial reporting based on criteria outlinedhi 11992 COSO Internal Control over Financial Repgr-
Guidance for Smaller Public Companies, a suppleahémplementation guide issued in 2007 which
modified criteria established in the frameworkriternal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Tread@ommission. Based on this evaluation, the
Company's management has concluded that the Cofapatgrnal control over financial reporting was
effective as of December 31, 2014.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohaiver financial reporting may not prevent or déte
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluatibeffectiveness to future periods are subjechéorisks
that controls may become inadequate because ofjekam conditions, or that the degree of compliamite
the policies or procedures may deteriorate. Accmylgli even an effective system of internal contvidl
provide only reasonable assurance that the obgscot/the internal control system are met.

This annual report does not include an attestaidport of our independent registered public
accounting firm regarding internal control overdintial reporting. Management's report was notesiitip
attestation by our independent registered publioaating firm pursuant to rules of the Securitied a
Exchange Commission that permit us to provide omyagement's report in this annual report.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reportm
There has been no change in our internal contre fiwancial reporting during the fourth fiscal

quarter covered by this Form 10-K that has malgréifected, or is reasonably likely to materiadiffect, our
internal control over financial reporting.
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Iltem 9B. Other Information.
None.
PART Il
Certain information required by Part Ill is incorpted by reference to our definitive Proxy Stateimen
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissipadnnection with the solicitation of proxies far®014
Annual Meeting of Stockholders.
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corpora¢ Governance.

Executive Officers

The information required by this item with respecexecutive officers is incorporated by reference
to Item 1 of this report and can be found underctgation "Executive Officers of the Registrant.”

Directors

The information required by this section with restge our directors will be incorporated by
reference to the information in the sections eatitlElection of Directors" and "Section 16(a) Beciaf
Ownership Reporting Compliance" in the Proxy Statein

Code of Ethics

Our Board of Directors has adopted a code of efbicsur senior executive and financial officers
(including our principal executive officer, prinaipfinancial officer and principal accounting o#ig. The
code of ethics is available on our website at wvaska.com. We intend to disclose any amendmems to
waivers from the code of ethics at that location.

Audit Committee

The information required by this section with resige our Audit Committee will be incorporated by
reference to the information in the section erditiBoard Structure and Committees” in the Proxyebtent.

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compince

The information required by this item is incorpecby reference to the information in the section
entitled "Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership RepgriCompliance" in the Proxy Statement.

ltem 11. Executive Compensation.
The information required by this section will beanporated by reference to the information in the
sections entitled "Director Compensation,” "Exe@iCompensation,” "Compensation Committee Report"

and "Compensation Committee Interlocks and IndR#eticipation” in the Proxy Statement.

ltem 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial @vners and Management and Related
Stockholder Matters.

The other information required by this section Wil incorporated by reference to the information in

the section entitled "Common Stock Ownership oft&@emBeneficial Owners and Management" in the Proxy
Statement.
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Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table sets forth information about c@ammon stock that may be issued upon exercise
of options and rights under all of our equity comgetion plans as of December 31, 2014, includiegl888
Stock Option Plan, the 1997 Stock Incentive Plae,2003 Stock Incentive Plan and the 1997 Employee
Stock Purchase Plan. Our stockholders have appief these plans.

(c) Number of Securities

(a) Number of Securities (b) Weighted-Average Remaining Available for Future
to be Issued Upon Exercise Price of Issuance Under Equity
Exercise of Outstanding Outstanding Options Compensation Plans (excluding
Plan Category Options and Rights (1) and Rights (1) securities reflected in column (a))

Equity Compensation Plans

Approved by

Stockholders 1,074,251 $10.11 212,026
Equity Compensation Plans

Not Approved by

Stockholders None None None
Total 1,074,251 $10.11 212,026

(1) Excluding outstanding options to purchase agregate of 37.4 fractional shares resulting from@ecember 2010 reverse stock
split.

ltem 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transaans and Director Independence.

The information required by this section will bedanporated by reference to the information in the
sections entitled "Board Structures and Committees!''Significant Relationships and Transactiorth wi
Directors, Officers or Principal Stockholders" iretProxy Statement.

ltem 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services.

The information required by this section will bednporated by reference to the information in the
section entitled "Auditor Fees and Services" inRinexy Statement.

The information required by Part Il to the exteot set forth herein, will be incorporated hereyn b
reference to our definitive Proxy Statement for20&5 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.
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PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules
(@) The following documents are filed as a pathdf Form 10-K.

(1) Financial Statements:

Reference is made to the Index to Consolidatedn€inaStatements under Item 8 in Part Il
of this Form 10-K.

(2) Financial Statement Schedules:
Schedule Il — Valuation and Qualifying Accounts.
SCHEDULE I
HESKA CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
(amounts in thousands)

Additions
Balance at  charged to Balance
Beginning Costs and Other At End of
of Year Expenses Additions Deductions Year
Allowance for doubtful accounts
Year ended:
December 31, 2012 $ 174 $ 76 — $ (95 (@ $ 155
December 31, 2013 $ 155 $ 98 — $ (44) (@ $ 209
December 31, 2014 $ 209 $ 143 — $ (136) (8 $ 216

(a) Write-offs of uncollectible accounts.
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(3) Exhibits:

The exhibits listed below are required by Item 60Regulation S-K. Each management contract or
compensatory plan or arrangement required to bd &k an exhibit to this Form 10-K has been ideutif

Exhibit
Number Notes Description of Document

3(i) (16) Restated Certificate of Incorporatifrthe Registrant.

3(ii) (16) Certificate of Amendment to Resta@ertificate of Incorporation of
Registrant.

3(iii) (16) Certificate of Amendment to the Ratsid Certificate of Incorporation, as
amended, of Registrant.

3(iv) (21) Amended and Restated Bylaws of thgi&eant, as amended.

3(v) (16) Amended and Restated Operating Agre¢mieHeska Imaging US, LLC.

10.1* 1997 Stock Incentive Plan of Registrastamended and restated.

10.2* 1997 Stock Incentive Plan Employees anddDltants Option Agreement.

10.3* 1997 Stock Incentive Plan Outside DirestOption Agreement.

10.4* 1997 Stock Incentive Plan Restricted Bi@Gcant Agreement.

10.5* 1997 Stock Incentive Plan Restricted Bi@cant Agreement (Management
Incentive Plan Award).

10.6* (12) 2003 Equity Incentive Plan, as amehaled restated.

10.7* 2003 Equity Incentive Plan Employees @uthsultants Option Agreement.

10.8* 2003 Equity Incentive Plan Outside DipestOption Agreement.

10.9* (17) 1997 Employee Stock Purchase PlaReagjistrant, as amended and restated.

10.10* Amended and restated Management Inceitian Master Document.

10.11* 2015 Management Incentive Plan.

10.12* (16) Director Compensation Policy.

10.13* (9) Form of Indemnification Agreementenetd into between Registrant and its
directors and certain officers.

10.14* (22) Employment Agreement between Regidtand Kevin S. Wilson, effective as
of March 26, 2014.

10.15* (21) Restricted Stock Grant Agreementvieen Registrant and Kevin S. Wilson,
effective as of March 26, 2014.

10.16* Restricted Stock Grant Agreement betwéeska Corporation and Kevin S.
Wilson, effective as of May 6, 2014.

10.17* (22) Employment Agreement (Executive @haith Robert B. Grieve, effective as
of March 26, 2014.

10.18* (21) Restricted Stock Grant Agreements/ben Registrant and Robert B. Grieve,
effective as of March 26, 2014.

10.19* (22) Consulting Agreement (Founder Enasitvith Robert B. Grieve, dated
March 26, 2014.

10.20* 4) Employment Agreement between Registaamd Jason A. Napolitano, effective
as of May 6, 2002.

10.21* (9) Amendment to Employment Agreementdeein Registrant and Jason A.
Napolitano, effective as of January 1, 2008.

10.22* (8) Employment Agreement between DiamAnimal Health, Inc. and Michael J.
McGinley, effective as of May 1, 2000.

10.23* (9) Amendment to Employment Agreementdeetin Diamond Animal Health, Inc.
and Michael J. McGinley, effective as of Januarg2dQ8.

10.24* (13) Assignment and Second AmendmentplByment Agreement between

Registrant and Michael J. McGinley, effective ag\afust 4, 2011.
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10.25*

10.26*

10.27*

10.28*

10.29*

10.30*

10.31*

10.32

10.33

10.34

10.35

10.36+

10.37+

10.38+

10.39

10.40+

10.41+

10.42+

10.43+

10.44+

10.45+

(21)
(8)
(9)

(16)

(16)

(6)
(7)
(7)
(15)

(8)

(9)

(9)

(9)

(10)

(11)

(14)

(14)

(15)

(15)

Employment Agreement between Regidtand Steven M. Eyl, effective as of
May 15, 2013.

Employment Agreement between Registamd Nancy Wisnewski, effective
as of April 15, 2002.

Amendment to Employment Agreementdeein Registrant and Nancy
Wisnewski, effective as of January 1, 2008.

Employment Agreement between Regyistand Steven M. Asakowicz,
effective as of February 22, 2013.

Amendment to Employment Agreement betwRegistrant and Steven M.
Asakowicz, effective as of March 1, 2015.

Employment Agreement between Regstand Rodney A. Lippincott,
effective as of February 22, 2013.

Amendment to Employment Agreement betwRegistrant and Rodney A.
Lippincott, effective as of March 1, 2015.

Net Lease Agreement between RegistrathiCCMRED 40, LLC, effective as
of May 24, 2004.

First Amendment to Net Lease AgreemedtDevelopment Agreement
between Registrant and CCMRED 40, LLC, dated Feipriza, 2005.

Second Amendment to Net Lease Agreebeiween Registrant and
CCMRED 40, LLC, dated July 14, 2005.

Third Amendment to Net Lease Agredrbetween Registrant and Millbrae
Square Company, effective as of January 1, 2010.

Third Amended and Restated Credit@aclrity Agreement between
Registrant, Diamond Animal Health, Inc. and Wellsgo Business Credit,
Inc., dated December 30, 2005.

First Amendment to Third Amended &edtated Credit and Security
Agreement between Registrant, Diamond Animal Heatih and Wells Fargo
Bank, National Association, dated December 5, 2006.

Second Amendment to Third AmendedRestated Credit and Security
Agreement between Registrant, Diamond Animal Heatihh and Wells Fargo
Bank, National Association, dated July 20, 2007.

Third Amendment to Third Amended amdtated Credit and Security
Agreement between Registrant, Diamond Animal He#tihh and Wells Fargo
Bank, National Association, dated December 21, 2007

Fourth and Fifth Amendments to Tiirdended and Restated Credit and
Security Agreement between Registrant, Diamond Ahidealth, Inc. and
Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, dated Oetdts, 2008.

Sixth Amendment to Third Amended Redtated Credit and Security
Agreement between Registrant, Diamond Animal He#tthh and Wells Fargo
Bank, National Association, dated December 30, 2008

Seventh Amendment to Third AmendetiRestated Credit and Security
Agreement between Registrant, Diamond Animal He#tthh and Wells Fargo
Bank, National Association, dated November 30, 2009

Eighth Amendment to Third Amended Bestated Credit and Security
Agreement between Registrant, Diamond Animal He#tih and Wells Fargo
Bank, National Association, dated December 15, 2010

Ninth Amendment to Third Amended &estated Credit and Security
Agreement between Registrant, Diamond Animal Heatihh and Wells Fargo
Bank, National Association, dated December 21, 2011

Tenth Amendment to Third Amended Redtated Credit and Security
Agreement between Registrant, Diamond Animal Heatihh and Wells Fargo
Bank, National Association, dated February 9, 2012.
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10.46+ (16) Eleventh Amendment to Third Amendad Restated Credit and Security
Agreement between Registrant, Diamond Animal He#tihh and Wells Fargo
Bank, National Association, dated November 5, 2012.

10.47+ (20) Twelfth Amendment to Third Amendew &estated Credit and Security
Agreement between Registrant, Diamond Animal He#tlith, Heska Imaging
US, LLC and Wells Fargo Bank, National Associatidated August 13, 2013.

10.48+ (24) Letter Amendment to Third Amended Bestated Credit and Security
Agreement between Registrant, Diamond Animal He#tlih, Heska Imaging
US, LLC and Wells Fargo Bank, National Associatidated September 17,

2014.

10.49+ () Product Supply Agreement between fiegit and Quidel Corporation,
effective as of July 3, 1997.

10.50+ (2) First Amendment to Product Supplye&gnent between Registrant and Quidel
Corporation, effective as of March 15, 1999.

10.51 (112) Letter Amendment to Product Supplye®gnent between Registrant and
Quidel Corporation dated July 7, 2004.

10.52+ 3) Amended and Restated Bovine Vaccis&ibution Agreement between

Diamond Animal Health, Inc. and Agri Laboratorieg]., effective as of
September 30, 2002.

10.53+ (5) First Amendment to Amended and RedtBivine Vaccine Distribution
Agreement between Diamond Animal Health, Inc. agd Aaboratories, Ltd.,
effective as of September 20, 2004.

10.54+ (8) Second Amendment to Amended and ReksBovine Vaccine Distribution
Agreement between Diamond Animal Health, Inc. agd Aaboratories, Ltd.,
effective as of December 10, 2004.

10.55+ (8) Third Amendment to Amended and Redt&ovine Vaccine Distribution
Agreement between Diamond Animal Health, Inc. agd Aaboratories, Ltd.,
effective as of May 26, 2006.

10.56+ (9) Fourth Amendment to Amended and RestBovine Vaccine Distribution
Agreement between Diamond Animal Health, Inc. agd Aaboratories, Ltd.,
effective as of November 16, 2007.

10.57+ (12) Fifth Amendment to Amended and Redt8ovine Vaccine Distribution
Agreement between Diamond Animal Health, Inc. agd Aaboratories, Ltd.,
effective as of December 23, 2010.

10.58+ (15) Sixth Amendment to Amended and RedtBovine Vaccine Distribution
Agreement between Diamond Animal Health, Inc. agd Aaboratories, Ltd.,
effective as of July 25, 2011.

10.59+ (17) Seventh Amendment to Amended antbReEBovine Vaccine Distribution
Agreement between Diamond Animal Health, Inc. agd Aaboratories, Ltd.,
effective as of February 1, 2013.

10.60+ (22) Eighth Amendment to Amended and &edtBovine Vaccine Distribution
Agreement between Heska Corporation and Agri Labades, Ltd., effective
as of August 20, 2013.

10.61+ (22) Ninth Amendment to Amended and RedtBovine Vaccine Distribution
Agreement between Heska Corporation and Agri Labades, Ltd., effective
as of October 24, 2013,

10.62 (21) Assignment and Assumption Agreemetwben Diamond Animal Health,
Inc., Agri Laboratories, Ltd. and Eli Lilly and Cgrany (acting through its
Elanco Animal Health Division), effective as of Nowuber 7, 2013.

10.63+ (8) Supply and Distribution Agreementi@sn Registrant and Boule Medical
AB, effective as of June 17, 2003; Letter Amendmergupply and
Distribution Agreement between Registrant and Bdlgéglical AB, dated June
1, 2004, and Letter Amendment to Supply and Distidn Agreement
between Registrant and Boule Medical AB, dated Dy 31, 2004.
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10.64+

10.65+

10.66+

10.67+

10.68+

10.69+

10.70+

10.71+

10.72+

10.73+

10.74+

10.75+

10.76+

21.1
23.1
24.1
31.1

31.2

32.2%*

101.INS

101.SCH
101.CAL
101.DEF
101.PRE
101.LAB

(10)

(13)
(18)

(23)

(8)

(11)
(16)
(20)
(21)

(23)

(16)
(16)

(19)

Letter Amendment to Supply and [bstron Agreement between Registrant
and Boule Medical AB, dated July 12, 2005; Letteneadment to Supply and
Distribution Agreement between Registrant and Bdddglical AB, dated
March 20, 2007; Letter Amendment to Supply andribigtion Agreement
between Registrant and Boule Medical AB, dated dgn3, 2008; and Sixth
Amendment to Supply and Distribution Agreement lestvRegistrant and
Boule Medical AB, effective as of October 1, 2008.

Seventh Amendment to Supply andriDigion Agreement between
Registrant and Boule Medical AB, effective as aidd, 2011.

Eighth Amendment to Supply and [istion Agreement between Registrant
and Boule Medical AB, effective as of January 1120

Ninth Amendment to Supply and Disition Agreement between Registrant
and Boule Medical AB, effective as of January 11420nd Tenth Amendment
to Supply and Distribution Agreement between Regigtand Boule Medical
AB, effective as of July 11, 2014.

Supply and License Agreement betwagistrant and Schering-Plough
Animal Health Corporation, effective as of Augus2003.

Amendment No. 1 to Supply and LieesAgreement between Registrant and
Schering-Plough Animal Health Corporation, effeetas of August 31, 2005.

Amendment No. 2 to Supply and LieeAgreement between Registrant and
Intervet Inc., d/b/a Merck Animal Health, effectise of December 7, 2011.

Amendment No. 3 to Supply and LieesAgreement between Registrant and
Intervet Inc., d/b/a Merck Animal Health, effectiae of July 30, 2013.

Amendment No. 4 to Supply and Lieeagreement between Registrant and
Intervet Inc., d/b/a Merck Animal Health, effectime of December 9, 2013.

Clinical Chemistry Analyzer Agreermbatween Registrant and FUJIFILM
Corporation, effective as of January 30, 2007; kinst Amendment to Clinical
Chemistry Analyzer Agreement, effective as of Afir014.

Amended and Restated Master LicAgseement between Heska Imaging
US, LLC and Cuattro, LLC, effective as of Februagy 2013.

Supply Agreement between Cuattrd lalnd Heska Imaging US, LLC
effective as of February 24, 2013.

Asset Purchase and License Agreebamteen Diamond Animal Health, Inc.,
and Elanco Animal Health, a division of Eli Lillywd Company effective as of
June 17, 2013.

Subsidiaries of the Company.

Consent of EKS&H LLLP, Independent RegetiePublic Accounting Firm.

Power of Attorney (See Signature Pag&isfform 10-K).

Certification of Chief Executive OfficeuiBuant to Rule 13a-14(a) and Rule
15d-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act, as anende

Certification of Chief Financial OfficeuBuant to Rule 13a-14(a) and Rule
15d-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act, as anende
Certification of Chief Executive Officend Chief Financial Officer Pursuant
to 18 U.S.C. 1350, as adopted pursuant to Sec@iérofthe Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002.

XBRL Instance Document.

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document.

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Livdse Document.

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Lirdde Document.

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentatiorklhéise Document.

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbaseddment.
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Notes

* Indicates management contract or compensatory @larrangement.
+ Portions of the exhibit have been omitted purstma request for confidential treatment.
** Furnished herewith but not filed.

Q) Filed with the Registrant's Form 10-Q for theager ended September 30, 1997.
) Filed with the Registrant's Form 10-K for theay ended December 31, 2001.
3) Filed with the Registrant's Form 10-Q for theager ended September 30, 2002.
4) Filed with the Registrant's Form 10-K for theay ended December 31, 2002.
(5) Filed with the Registrant's Form 10-Q for theager ended September 30, 2004.
(6) Filed with the Registrant's Form 10-K for theay ended December 31, 2004.
) Filed with the Registrant's Form 10-Q for theager ended June 30, 2005.

(8) Filed with the Registrant's Form 10-K for theay ended December 31, 2006.
9) Filed with the Registrant's Form 10-K for theay ended December 31, 2007.
(10) Filed with the Registrant's Form 10-Q for tharter ended September 30, 2008.
(12) Filed with the Registrant's Form 10-K for ffemar ended December 31, 2008.
(12) Filed with the Registrant's Form 10-K for ffemar ended December 31, 2010.
(13) Filed with the Registrant's Form 10-Q for thearter ended June 30, 2011.

(14) Filed with the Registrant's Form 10-Q for thearter ended September 30, 2011.
(15) Filed with the Registrant's Form 10-K for tfesar ended December 31, 2011.
(16) Filed with the Registrant's Form 10-K for tfesar ended December 31, 2012.
a7 Filed with the Registrant's Form 10-Q for tharter ended March 31, 2013.

(18) Filed with the Registrant's Form 10-Q for thearter ended June 30, 2013.

(19) Filed with the Registrant's Form 8-K/A on Asg29, 2013.

(20) Filed with the Registrant's Form 10-Q for thaarter ended September 30, 2013.
(21) Filed with the Registrant's Form 10-K for ffemar ended December 31, 2013.
(22) Filed with the Registrant's Form 10-Q for thearter ended March 31, 2014.

(23) Filed with the Registrants' Form 10-Q for thearter ended June 30, 2014.

(24) Filed with the Registrants' Form 10-Q for thearter ended September 30, 2014.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
Registrant has duly caused this report to be signets behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly
authorized, on March 25, 2015.

HESKA CORPORATION

By: /s/KEVIN S. WILSON
Kevin S. Wilson
Chief Executive Officer and President

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each pemsbose signature appears below
constitutes and appoints Robert B. Grieve, Pha3od A. Napolitano and Nancy Wisnewski, Ph.D., and
each of them, his or her true and lawful attorneyfct, each with full power of substitution, foim or her
in any and all capacities, to sign any amendmaentisi$ report on Form 10-K and to file the samehwi
exhibits thereto and other documents in connedlierewith, with the Securities and Exchange Comioniss
hereby ratifying and confirming all that each ofdsattorneys-in-fact or their substitute or sulgés may do
or cause to be done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the SecuritiesEaxatiange Act of 1934, this report has been signed
below by the following persons on behalf of the Riegnt and in the capacities and on the datesaneiil:

Signature Title Date
/s KEVIN S WILS_ON Chief Executive Officer, President and Director March 25, 2015
Kevin S. Wilson
Executive Vice President, Chief Financial
[s/ JASON A. NAPOLITANO Officer and Secretary (Principal Financial March 25, 2015
Jason A. Napolitano Officer and Principal Accounting Officer)
/s/ ROBERT B. GRIEVE Executive Chair

Robert B. Grieve, Ph.D. March 25, 2015

/s/ SHARON L. RILEY Lead Director
Sharon L. Riley

March 25, 2015

/sl WILLIAM A. AYLESWORTH Director
William A. Aylesworth

March 25, 2015

/s/ G. IRWIN GORDON Director
G. Irwin Gordon

March 25, 2015

/s BONNIE J. TROWBRIDGE Director
Bonnie J. Trowbridge

March 25, 2015

/s/ DAVID E. SVEEN Director
David E. Sveen, Ph.D.

March 25, 2015

/s/ CAROL A. WRENN Director
Carol A. Wrenn

March 25, 2015
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Exhibit Index

Exhibit
Number Notes Description of Document

3(i) (16) Restated Certificate of Incorporatifrthe Registrant.

3(ii) (16) Certificate of Amendment to Resta@eltificate of Incorporation of
Registrant.

3(iii) (16) Certificate of Amendment to the Rateid Certificate of Incorporation, as
amended, of Registrant.

3(iv) (21) Amended and Restated Bylaws of thgi®eant, as amended.

3(v) (16) Amended and Restated Operating Agre¢mieHeska Imaging US, LLC.

10.1* 1997 Stock Incentive Plan of Registraistamended and restated.

10.2* 1997 Stock Incentive Plan Employees anoddDltants Option Agreement.

10.3* 1997 Stock Incentive Plan Outside DirestOption Agreement.

10.4* 1997 Stock Incentive Plan Restricted Bi@Gcant Agreement.

10.5* 1997 Stock Incentive Plan Restricted BiGcant Agreement (Management
Incentive Plan Award).

10.6* (12) 2003 Equity Incentive Plan, as amehaled restated.

10.7* 2003 Equity Incentive Plan Employees @uthsultants Option Agreement.

10.8* 2003 Equity Incentive Plan Outside DipestOption Agreement.

10.9* a7 1997 Employee Stock Purchase PlaRegfistrant, as amended and restated.

10.10* Amended and restated Management Inceitian Master Document.

10.11* 2015 Management Incentive Plan.

10.12* (16) Director Compensation Policy.

10.13* (9) Form of Indemnification Agreementenetd into between Registrant and its
directors and certain officers.

10.14* (21) Employment Agreement between Regidtand Kevin S. Wilson, effective as
of March 26, 2014.

10.15* (21) Restricted Stock Grant Agreementvieen Registrant and Kevin S. Wilson,
effective as of March 26, 2014.

10.16* Restricted Stock Grant Agreement betwdeska Corporation and Kevin S.
Wilson, effective as of May 6, 2014.

10.17* (21) Employment Agreement (Executive @haith Robert B. Grieve, effective as
of March 26, 2014.

10.18* (21) Restricted Stock Grant Agreements/ben Registrant and Robert B. Grieve,
effective as of March 26, 2014.

10.19* (22) Consulting Agreement (Founder Enasitvith Robert B. Grieve, dated
March 26, 2014.

10.20* (4) Employment Agreement between Registaamd Jason A. Napolitano, effective
as of May 6, 2002.

10.21* (9) Amendment to Employment Agreementdeein Registrant and Jason A.
Napolitano, effective as of January 1, 2008.

10.22* (8) Employment Agreement between DiamAnimnal Health, Inc. and Michael J.
McGinley, effective as of May 1, 2000.

10.23* (9) Amendment to Employment Agreementdeetin Diamond Animal Health, Inc.
and Michael J. McGinley, effective as of Januarg2dQ8.

10.24* (23) Assignment and Second AmendmentplByment Agreement between
Registrant and Michael J. McGinley, effective ag\afjust 4, 2011.

10.25* (21) Employment Agreement between Regyistand Steven M. Eyl, effective as of
May 15, 2013.

10.26* (8) Employment Agreement between Registaad Nancy Wisnewski, effective
as of April 15, 2002.

10.27* (9) Amendment to Employment Agreementdeein Registrant and Nancy

Wisnewski, effective as of January 1, 2008.
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10.28*

10.29*

10.30*

10.31*

10.32

10.33

10.34

10.35

10.36+

10.37+

10.38+

10.39

10.40+

10.41+

10.42+

10.43+

10.44+

10.45+

10.46+

10.47+

(16)

(16)

(6)
(7)
(7)
(15)

(8)

(9)

(9)

(9)

(10)

(11)

(14)

(14)

(15)

(15)

(16)

(20)

Employment Agreement between Regidtand Steven M. Asakowicz,
effective as of February 22, 2013.

Amendment to Employment Agreement betwRegistrant and Steven M.
Asakowicz, effective as of March 1, 2015.

Employment Agreement between Regstand Rodney A. Lippincott,
effective as of February 22, 2013.

Amendment to Employment Agreement betwRRegistrant and Rodney A.
Lippincott, effective as of March 1, 2015.

Net Lease Agreement between RegistrathiCCMRED 40, LLC, effective as
of May 24, 2004.

First Amendment to Net Lease AgreemedtDevelopment Agreement
between Registrant and CCMRED 40, LLC, dated Feipriza, 2005.

Second Amendment to Net Lease Agreebeween Registrant and
CCMRED 40, LLC, dated July 14, 2005.

Third Amendment to Net Lease Agredrheiween Registrant and Millbrae
Square Company, effective as of January 1, 2010.

Third Amended and Restated Credit@aclrity Agreement between
Registrant, Diamond Animal Health, Inc. and Wellsgo Business Credit,
Inc., dated December 30, 2005.

First Amendment to Third Amended Redtated Credit and Security
Agreement between Registrant, Diamond Animal Heatih and Wells Fargo
Bank, National Association, dated December 5, 2006.

Second Amendment to Third AmendedRestated Credit and Security
Agreement between Registrant, Diamond Animal Heatihh and Wells Fargo
Bank, National Association, dated July 20, 2007.

Third Amendment to Third Amended amdtated Credit and Security
Agreement between Registrant, Diamond Animal He#tihh and Wells Fargo
Bank, National Association, dated December 21, 2007

Fourth and Fifth Amendments to Tiirdended and Restated Credit and
Security Agreement between Registrant, Diamond Ahidealth, Inc. and
Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, dated Oetds, 2008.

Sixth Amendment to Third Amended Redtated Credit and Security
Agreement between Registrant, Diamond Animal Heatihh and Wells Fargo
Bank, National Association, dated December 30, 2008

Seventh Amendment to Third Amendesatl Restated Credit and Security
Agreement between Registrant, Diamond Animal He#tth and Wells Fargo
Bank, National Association, dated November 30, 2009

Eighth Amendment to Third Amended Restated Credit and Security
Agreement between Registrant, Diamond Animal He#tth and Wells Fargo
Bank, National Association, dated December 15, 2010

Ninth Amendment to Third Amended &estated Credit and Security
Agreement between Registrant, Diamond Animal He#tihh and Wells Fargo
Bank, National Association, dated December 21, 2011

Tenth Amendment to Third Amended Redtated Credit and Security
Agreement between Registrant, Diamond Animal He#tthh and Wells Fargo
Bank, National Association, dated February 9, 2012.

Eleventh Amendment to Third Amendad Restated Credit and Security
Agreement between Registrant, Diamond Animal Heatihh and Wells Fargo
Bank, National Association, dated November 5, 2012.

Twelfth Amendment to Third Amendew &estated Credit and Security
Agreement between Registrant, Diamond Animal He#tih, Heska Imaging
US, LLC and Wells Fargo Bank, National Associatidated August 13, 2013.
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10.48+ (24) Letter Amendment to Third Amended Restated Credit and Security
Agreement between Registrant, Diamond Animal He#tlih, Heska Imaging
US, LLC and Wells Fargo Bank, National Associatidated September 17,

2014.

10.49+ (1) Product Supply Agreement between &egit and Quidel Corporation,
effective as of July 3, 1997.

10.50+ (2) First Amendment to Product Supplye&gnent between Registrant and Quidel
Corporation, effective as of March 15, 1999.

10.51 (112) Letter Amendment to Product Supplye®gnent between Registrant and
Quidel Corporation dated July 7, 2004.

10.52+ 3 Amended and Restated Bovine Vaccis&ibution Agreement between

Diamond Animal Health, Inc. and Agri Laboratorieg]., effective as of
September 30, 2002.

10.53+ (5) First Amendment to Amended and RedtBvine Vaccine Distribution
Agreement between Diamond Animal Health, Inc. agd Aaboratories, Ltd.,
effective as of September 20, 2004.

10.54+ (8) Second Amendment to Amended and ReksBovine Vaccine Distribution
Agreement between Diamond Animal Health, Inc. agd Aaboratories, Ltd.,
effective as of December 10, 2004.

10.55+ (8) Third Amendment to Amended and Redt&ovine Vaccine Distribution
Agreement between Diamond Animal Health, Inc. agd Aaboratories, Ltd.,
effective as of May 26, 2006.

10.56+ (9) Fourth Amendment to Amended and RestBovine Vaccine Distribution
Agreement between Diamond Animal Health, Inc. agd Aaboratories, Ltd.,
effective as of November 16, 2007.

10.57+ (12) Fifth Amendment to Amended and Redt8ovine Vaccine Distribution
Agreement between Diamond Animal Health, Inc. agd Aaboratories, Ltd.,
effective as of December 23, 2010.

10.58+ (15) Sixth Amendment to Amended and RedtBovine Vaccine Distribution
Agreement between Diamond Animal Health, Inc. agd Aaboratories, Ltd.,
effective as of July 25, 2011.

10.59+ (17) Seventh Amendment to Amended antbReEBovine Vaccine Distribution
Agreement between Diamond Animal Health, Inc. agd Aaboratories, Ltd.,
effective as of February 1, 2013.

10.60+ (22) Eighth Amendment to Amended and &edtBovine Vaccine Distribution
Agreement between Heska Corporation and Agri Labades, Ltd., effective
as of August 20, 2013.

10.61+ (22) Ninth Amendment to Amended and RedtBovine Vaccine Distribution
Agreement between Heska Corporation and Agri Labades, Ltd., effective
as of October 24, 2013,

10.62 (21) Assignment and Assumption Agreemetwéen Diamond Animal Health,
Inc., Agri Laboratories, Ltd. and Eli Lilly and Cgrany (acting through its
Elanco Animal Health Division), effective as of Nowuber 7, 2013.

10.63+ (8) Supply and Distribution Agreementimsn Registrant and Boule Medical
AB, effective as of June 17, 2003; Letter AmendnterBupply and
Distribution Agreement between Registrant and Bdlgelical AB, dated June
1, 2004; and Letter Amendment to Supply and Distidn Agreement
between Registrant and Boule Medical AB, dated Dy 31, 2004.
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10.64+

10.65+

10.66+

10.67+

10.68+

10.69+

10.70+

10.71+

10.72+

10.73+

10.74+

10.75+

10.76+

21.1
23.1
24.1
31.1

31.2

32.1**

101.INS

101.SCH
101.CAL
101.DEF
101.PRE
101.LAB

(10)

(13)
(18)

(23)

(8)

(11)
(16)
(20)
(21)

(23)

(16)
(16)

(19)

Letter Amendment to Supply and [bstron Agreement between Registrant
and Boule Medical AB, dated July 12, 2005; Letteneadment to Supply and
Distribution Agreement between Registrant and Bdddglical AB, dated
March 20, 2007; Letter Amendment to Supply andribigtion Agreement
between Registrant and Boule Medical AB, dated dgn3, 2008; and Sixth
Amendment to Supply and Distribution Agreement lestvRegistrant and
Boule Medical AB, effective as of October 1, 2008.

Seventh Amendment to Supply andriDigion Agreement between
Registrant and Boule Medical AB, effective as aidd, 2011.

Eighth Amendment to Supply and [istion Agreement between Registrant
and Boule Medical AB, effective as of January 1120

Ninth Amendment to Supply and Disition Agreement between Registrant
and Boule Medical AB, effective as of January 11420nd Tenth Amendment
to Supply and Distribution Agreement between Regigtand Boule Medical
AB, effective as of July 11, 2014.

Supply and License Agreement betwagistrant and Schering-Plough
Animal Health Corporation, effective as of Augus2003.

Amendment No. 1 to Supply and LieesAgreement between Registrant and
Schering-Plough Animal Health Corporation, effeetas of August 31, 2005.

Amendment No. 2 to Supply and LieeAgreement between Registrant and
Intervet Inc., d/b/a Merck Animal Health, effectise of December 7, 2011.

Amendment No. 3 to Supply and LieesAgreement between Registrant and
Intervet Inc., d/b/a Merck Animal Health, effectiae of July 30, 2013.

Amendment No. 4 to Supply and Lieeagreement between Registrant and
Intervet Inc., d/b/a Merck Animal Health, effectime of December 9, 2013.

Clinical Chemistry Analyzer Agreermbatween Registrant and FUJIFILM
Corporation, effective as of January 30, 2007; kinst Amendment to Clinical
Chemistry Analyzer Agreement, effective as of Afir014.

Amended and Restated Master LicAgseement between Heska Imaging
US, LLC and Cuattro, LLC, effective as of Februagy 2013.

Supply Agreement between Cuattrd lalnd Heska Imaging US, LLC
effective as of February 24, 2013.

Asset Purchase and License Agreebsmteen Diamond Animal Health, Inc.,
and Elanco Animal Health, a division of Eli Lillywd Company effective as of
June 17, 2013.

Subsidiaries of the Company.

Consent of EKS&H LLLP, Independent RegetiePublic Accounting Firm.

Power of Attorney (See Signature Pag&isfform 10-K).

Certification of Chief Executive OfficeuiBuant to Rule 13a-14(a) and Rule
15d-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act, as anende

Certification of Chief Financial OfficeuBuant to Rule 13a-14(a) and Rule
15d-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act, as anende
Certification of Chief Executive Officend Chief Financial Officer Pursuant
to 18 U.S.C. 1350, as adopted pursuant to Sec@iérofthe Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002.

XBRL Instance Document.

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document.

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Livdse Document.

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Lirdde Document.

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentatiorklhéise Document.

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbaseddment.
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Notes

* Indicates management contract or compensatory @larrangement.
+ Portions of the exhibit have been omitted purstma request for confidential treatment.
* Furnished herewith but not filed.

Q) Filed with the Registrant's Form 10-Q for theager ended September 30, 1997.
) Filed with the Registrant's Form 10-K for theay ended December 31, 2001.
3) Filed with the Registrant's Form 10-Q for theager ended September 30, 2002.
4) Filed with the Registrant's Form 10-K for theay ended December 31, 2002.
(5) Filed with the Registrant's Form 10-Q for theager ended September 30, 2004.
(6) Filed with the Registrant's Form 10-K for theay ended December 31, 2004.
) Filed with the Registrant's Form 10-Q for theager ended June 30, 2005.

(8) Filed with the Registrant's Form 10-K for theay ended December 31, 2006.
9) Filed with the Registrant's Form 10-K for theay ended December 31, 2007.
(10) Filed with the Registrant's Form 10-Q for tharter ended September 30, 2008.
(12) Filed with the Registrant's Form 10-K for tfesar ended December 31, 2008.
(12) Filed with the Registrant's Form 10-K for tfesar ended December 31, 2010.
(13) Filed with the Registrant's Form 10-Q for thearter ended June 30, 2011.

(14) Filed with the Registrant's Form 10-Q for thearter ended September 30, 2011.
(15) Filed with the Registrant's Form 10-K for ffemar ended December 31, 2011.
(16) Filed with the Registrant's Form 10-K for ffemar ended December 31, 2012.
a7 Filed with the Registrant's Form 10-Q for th&rter ended March 31, 2013.

(18) Filed with the Registrant's Form 10-Q for thearter ended June 30, 2013.

(29) Filed with the Registrant's Form 8-K/A on Asg9, 2013.

(20) Filed with the Registrant's Form 10-Q for thearter ended September 30, 2013.
(22) Filed with the Registrant's Form 10-K for tfesar ended December 31, 2013.
(22) Filed with the Registrant's Form 10-Q for thearter ended March 31, 2014.

(23) Filed with the Registrants' Form 10-Q for thearter ended June 30, 2014.

(24) Filed with the Registrants' Form 10-Q for tharter ended September 30, 2014.
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